*kkk

*kkk

*kkk

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA CITY COUNCIL

Health & Wellbeing Board
Date: Thursday, 15th June, 2023
Time: 5.00 pm
Place: Committee Room 1
Contact: Robert Harris

Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest

Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 6 March 2023 (Pages 3 - 6)

Public Questions

ITEMS FOR DECISION

Southend Drugs and Alcohol Strategy 2023 - 2025: Our collective
priorities for delivering the Governments 10 year drugs strategy
(Pages 7 - 28)

Report from Director of Public Health

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

A Better Start Southend Update (Pages 29 - 44)
Joint report from ABSS Chair and Director

Health Inequalities programme for 2022/23 and 2023/24
Verbal report from Health Inequalities Clinical Lead (no papers)

NHS Mid and South Essex Joint Forward Plan (Pages 45 - 276)
Report from Director of Strategic Partnerships, Mid and South Essex

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION

Health Protection Updates
Verbal report from Director of Public Health (no papers)



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTHEND-ON-SEA CITY COUNCIL

Meeting of Health & Wellbeing Board

Date: Monday, 6th March, 2023
Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite
Present: Councillor K Mitchell (Chair)

Councillors M Davidson, J Moyies and M Sadza

R Hallett (SEE Alliance), R Polkinghorne (SCC), M Marks (SCC), M
Harvey (SCC), S Dolling (SCC), O Richards (Healthwatch Southend),
A Quinn (SAVS), A Pike (Southend Hospital), M Eni-Oloto (Public
Health — SCC), T Schneider (SCC), T Poore (ABSS) and A Khaldi
(ABSS).

In Attendance: Councillor L Salter (Observer — People Scrutiny Committee Chair)

R Harris.
Also in attendance: A Cunningham, | Wilson, E Mills (Item 6 —
NetPark Wellbeing Project only).

Start/End Time: 5.00 pm -6.55 pm

737

738

739

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mulroney and Terry, K
Ramkhelawon, J Gardner, M Atkinson, G Halksworth and Dr T Syed.

Declarations of Interest

(a) Clir Mitchell — Minute 743 (A Better Start Southend Update) — ABSS is in
partnership with Hamlet Court Road in Harmony Community Group — the
Councillor is the Chair of this group.

(b) Councillor Salter — Minute 740 (Draft Integrated Care Strategy for Mid and
South Essex) and Minute 741 (Developing the SEE Alliance Plan Update) —
Husband is a consultant surgeon at Southend Hospital; Daughter is a
consultant at Basildon Hospital; Son-in-law is a GP in Southend-on-Sea.

(c) Councillor Sadza — Minute 740 (Draft Integrated Care Strategy for Mid and
South Essex) and Minute 741 (Developing the SEE Alliance Plan Update) —
Governor at EPUT.

Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday, 8 December 2022

Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday, 8 December 2023, be
confirmed as a correct record.



740

741

742

743

Draft Integrated Care Strategy for Mid and South Essex

The Board considered a report of the Director of Strategic Partnerships
presenting the draft Integrated Care Strategy produced by the Mid and South
Essex Integrated Care Partnership covering the wider integrated care system.

The Board noted that the draft strategy would be presented to the Integrated
Care Partnership on 20 March 2023 for formal adoption. This was a
comprehensive strategy and a detailed programme of communications will take
place following formal approval by the ICP on 20 March 2023.

The Board asked questions which were responded to by the Director of
Strategic Partnerships.

Resolved:
That the draft Integrated Care Strategy, be endorsed.
Developing the SEE Alliance Plan Update

The Board received and considered a powerpoint presentation from the Alliance
Director presenting an overview of the SEE Alliance 5 year plan and the next
steps.

The Board asked questions which were responded to by the Alliance Director.
The Board also commented on the need to align and use common language
across partners, particularly to ensure it makes sense from a residents
perspective.

Resolved:

That the presentation on the development of the SEE Alliance 5 year plan, be
noted.

NetPark Wellbeing Project

The Board received and considered a presentation from representatives of
Metal providing information on the NetPark Wellbeing Project.

The Board asked questions which were responded to by the representatives
from Metal. The Board also discussed how the Council and partners could
support the sustainability of future funding of the project.

Resolved:

That the presentation on the NetPark Wellbeing Project be noted and Board
members give further consideration to the future sustainable funding of the
project.

A Better Start Southend Update

The Board considered a joint report of the Director and Chair of ABSS
presenting an update on the key developments since December 2022.



744

745

746

Resolved:

1. That the report be noted.

2. That it be noted that ABSS are focussing on a Partnership Workforce
Development Programme that seeks to retain skills and experience in Southend
and/or the early years space whilst addressing attrition issues that are expected
to start arising as the programme nears the end of the funding period.

Health Protection Updates

The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health presenting an
update concerning the on-going management of the COVID-19 and wider
health protection response.

Resolved:

That the on-going operations and steer of the Health Protection Board and the
Oversight and Engagement Board, be noted.

SEE Communications and Engagement Network

The Board received a powerpoint presentation from the Alliance Director
presenting an overview of the SEE Alliance Communications and Engagement
network.

Resolved:

That the presentation be noted.

Able Like Mabel Falls Campaign

The Board received and considered a powerpoint presentation from the Alliance
Director presenting information on the Able Like Mable Falls Campaign.

Resolved:
That the presentation be noted.

Chair:




This page is intentionally left blank



Southend Health & Wellbeing Board [ agenda

Report of the Director of Commissioning and Director of Al
Public Health
To 5
Health & Wellbeing Board
on
15t June 2023

Report prepared by: Sharna Allen, Lead Commissioner for
Prevention

For information For discussion Approval required | x
only

Southend Drugs and Alcohol Strategy 2023 - 25

Overview of Strategy Priorities and Implementation

Part 1 (Public Agenda Item)

1. Overview

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the development and
implementation of the Southend Drugs and Alcohol Strategy, as well as
proposed governance and decision-making arrangements for 2023/24. The
Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to consider the strategic priorities and
proposed governance arrangements, and to provide approval and sign off for
these arrangements for 2023-25.

2. Recommendations
It is recommended that the board:

a) Approve and sign off the Southend Drugs and Alcohol Strategy 2023-25

b) Approve and sign off the proposed governance arrangements as put forward
by the Southend, Essex and Thurrock Drugs and Alcohol Partnership

c) Acknowledge local priorities.

3. Background

3.1 Over the past year, the Southend City Council, in collaboration with partners,
has been working on developing our local approach to implementing the 2021
national 10-year drug strategy, From ‘From Harm to Hope'. The national
strategy was written following an independent Review of Drugs initiated by the
Home Secretary in February 2019 led by Professor Dame Carol Black and
outlined key ambitions and requirements for each local area in terms of
priorities, implementation and governance.

| Report Title Page 1 of 5 Report Number



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/from-harm-to-hope-a-10-year-drugs-plan-to-cut-crime-and-save-lives/from-harm-to-hope-a-10-year-drugs-plan-to-cut-crime-and-save-lives

3.2Local areas were required to establish local Combating Drugs Partnerships,
which bring partners together from key organisations and sectors to enable the
development and implementation of local delivery plans aligned to the ambitions

in the national strategy.

3.3 Previous papers have been presented to the Board which have outlined our
local response, and have included:

» Tt March 22 — paper outlining the national drug strategy and implications for
Southend. This highlighted expectations and informed the board about
additional funding being made available to supplement core public health
funding and support with achieving the objectives of the national strategy.

> 8t June 22 — National Drug Strategy and Grant Funding Progress Report
which provided an update on the establishment of a Southend drugs and
alcohol executive group and proposals for use of year 1 of additional

funding.

> 8th December 22 — Paper on the establishment of a joint Southend, Essex
and Thurrock Drugs and Alcohol Partnership Board which outlined further
developments to support the alignment of the three drugs and alcohol
executive boards across Southend, Essex and Thurrock.

4. Progress to date

4.1 The below summarises the national timeline and requirements, and progress
against these requirements in Southend:

Key tasks and timeline

Partnership geography,
membership and local SRO
agreed by 15t Aug 2022

Initial geography was confirmed to be Southend only, with
the Director of Public Health — Krishna Ramkhelawon — as
our local SRO.

New local multi-agency
partnership Terms of Reference
(ToR) and governance agreed
by end of Sep 2022

The Southend Drugs and Alcohol Strategic Executive Group
was established with key membership from SCC, Essex
Police, the local Alliance, Integrated Care Board and
Probation. Direct reporting lines to the Health and Wellbeing
Board and Community Safety Partnership were established,
and Terms of Reference agreed in Sep 22.

Partners carry out a joint
assessment of local evidence,
data and need by end of Nov
2022

Needs assessment conducted between June — Aug 22, and
published in Nov 22 (Substance Misuse Needs Assessment

arcgis.com

Delivery Plan and Performance
framework developed by end of
Dec 2022

The publishing of the needs assessment was accompanied
by a range of engagement and coproduction activities to
identify local priorities for Southend including:

- Interviews with professional stakeholders

- Qualitative engagement with 16 service users

- Resident survey receiving 78 responses.

- Needs assessment consultation event.

- Two drugs and Alcohol Strategy networking events.

- Liaison with the regional Office for Health

Improvement and Disparities (OHID)

Report Title

Page 2 of 5 Report Number



https://substance-misuse-needs-assessment-southend.hub.arcgis.com/
https://substance-misuse-needs-assessment-southend.hub.arcgis.com/

These activities have informed the development of a local
Drugs and Alcohol Strategy [See Appendix Al.

Review progress against plan A review has been undertaken to inform priority areas and
and local outcomes by end of actions for 2023/24.
April 2023

5. Southend Drugs and Alcohol Strategy 2023-25

5.11n order to support the development of a local delivery plan, it was agreed that a
high-level strategy document would be produced with the aim of:

e Outlining our shared vision for Southend

e Specifying our local priorities and how they will contribute to realising the
national ambition.

¢ Defining the principles for working together.

e Ensuring alignment with ambitions of other key strategies guiding our
actions Southend. This includes but is not limited to: Southend 2050;
Southend-On-Sea Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2024; Southend-On-
Sea Community Safety Partnership Strategy 2022-2025; Mid and South
Essex Integrated Care Strategy (2023); Southeast Alliance 5-year plan.

5.2The full strategy document has been included in Appendix A. The board are
asked to acknowledge, and provide approval for the following locally agreed
priorities:

Break Drug Supply Deliver a world-class treatment Achieve a generational

Chains and recovery system shift in demand for
We will reduce the availability We will rebuild our substance misuse services, drugs

and supply of drugs by making improving quality, capacity and outcomes. We will We will take bold steps to change

Overarching
National
Priorities it a significantly harder place rebuild our professional workforce, ensure better

for organised crime groups to integration of services, and work holistically to

operate. address the wider determinants of health.

attitudes in society around the
perceived acceptability of illegal
drug use.

We will dJ
thisl by Bolstering
focussing on Prevention and Reducing drug-
6 key early related deaths sl s related crime T build recovery

ioriti intervention - into
priorities system population i
locally communities

Adopting a
place-based
approach to

Improving Improving
support for Reducing drug outcomes for an
those inthe and alcohol ageing

Figure 1. Overview of National and Local Strategy Priorities

6. Proposed Governance Arrangements 2023/24

6.10n 8 December 2022, the Health and Wellbeing Board provided approval for
the establishment of a joint Southend, Essex and Thurrock Drugs and Alcohol
Partnership (SETDAP).

6.2 The purpose of this joint board is to:

e Facillitate better alignment with the tactical policing and probation services,
creating efficiencies for partners working across all three local authority
areas and supporting a consistent in approach across the patch.

e To streamline work and improve attendance and partnership working at
board meetings.

Report Title Page 3 of 5 Report Number |




To foster opportunities for joint commissioning where appropriate.

Greater cross fertilisation and opportunities for shared intelligence around
demand, trends and hotspots

Greater scope for piloting new approaches and facilitating learning across
areas.

Creating potential to level up the offer over time, and work towards reducing
variations and health inequalities that span borders.

6.3The SETDAP had an initial meeting on 27t April, in which Terms of Reference
and a Proposed Governance were discussed.

6.4The Board is asked to consider and approve the following proposed

governance arrangements as discussed and agreed at the above meeting:

The SETDAP will report directly into each of the Health and Wellbeing
Boards for each Upper Tier Local Authority area, providing a joint highlight
report outlining progress, key decisions and outcomes (individual local area
summaries will be included as appendices).

The Southend Drugs and Alcohol Local Operational Delivery Group will be
retained locally to support operational and strategic planning and to drive
action around SETDAP priorities at a local level. This will include direct
engagement with local stakeholders, collation and oversight of the work of
local sub-groups, and the production of quarterly summaries of local
progress and decision making to feed back up to SETDAP for ratification.

Tactical/ operational planning groups (or sub-groups) will be established
where appropriate around specific programmes of work and will be focussed
primarily on operational delivery and coordination. They will have a key
responsibility for taking forward actions and reporting back up into the
operational delivery group to inform the collation of progress against
SETDAP priorities.

Essex Recovery Foundation (ERF) (lead charity for public voice around
recovery and addiction in Essex) will take on the role as lead body for
coordinating and embedding engagement and coproduction activity to shape
our shared action and implementation of strategy priorities. ERF will operate
across all three local authority areas.

Lead commissioners will take on the role as partnership leads for each local
authority area and will work with the chair of the SETDAP board to comprise
the agenda to ensure the needs of local areas are considered in a balanced
way. Partnership leads will also chair/ play a leading role in the delivery of
local operational groups to retain overall oversight and join up and support
strategic planning at a SETDAP level.

Report Title

Page 4 of 5 Report Number

10



Appendix A — Southend Drugs and Alcohol Strategy 2023-25

=

Southend Drugs and
Alcohol Strategy 202:

Report Title Page 5 of 5 Report Number

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-On-Sea
Drugs and Alcohol
Strategy

April 2023 - March 2025

Mid and South Essex @ ESSEX Probation
1 I3 Integrated Care POL|CE Service
v ""V System serving Essex

=

sS Southend-on-Sea
4\‘ City Council

13

Last updated: May 2023



Contents

Foreword......ccccovveiiiieeiiiennininnninnenecnnenne 2
................................................................. 2
(O 10T g VAT To T o T 3
Executive SUMMArY .....cccciiveeiiinncienncnennenes 4
Background and context..........cccceeeiirinnnnes 5
OUr Priorities ....cceeereeeiiiieniiinnnciniensennnnnne 7

Priority 1 — Prevention and Early Intervention 7

Priority 2 — Reducing Drug-related Deaths.8

Priority 3 — improving support for those in the criminal justice system. 9
Priority 4 — Reducing drug and alcohol related crime. 10

Priority 5 — Improving treatment outcomes. 11

Priority 6 — Adopting a place-based approach to building recovery into
COMMUNILIES. coireveirreniiireniiinencnreaesennnnees 12

How we will work together..................... 13

How we will know we are successful ...... 14

“I have valued having input into the council strategy and enjoyed getting feedback.
The shadow board that | am a part of setting up will enlighten other people who
have not had lived experience and they will be better able to understand the needs
of people with addiction. | have now become a mentor and volunteer support
worker which will lead onto fulltime employment.”

lan, Southend Resident with Lived Experience
14


https://5058-my.sharepoint.com/personal/sharnaallen_southend_gov_uk/Documents/Documents/Drugs%20and%20Alcohol/2023-05-16%20Southend%20DA%20Strategy%202023-25_FINAL%20DRAFT.docx#_Toc136444263

Foreword

Misusing drugs and alcohol causes significant harm. Not only is it associated with poor
mental and physical health, but it is also closely linked with experiences of trauma,
involvement in the criminal justice system and domestic violence. It has a considerable
impact on families, children, and the wider community, with those living in more
disadvantaged communities being much more likely to be affected.

Across Southend, we have high rates of drug-related deaths, high levels of alcohol-related
hospital attendances and a high level of criminality associated with the misuse of these
substances; all of which have a significant negative impact on childhood, the lives of young
people and families as well as the individual impact on people’s health and wellbeing, now
and later in life.

For these reasons, it is imperative that public sector bodies, schools, families and community
groups, work together to tackle the harmful impact of drugs and alcohol. We all need to
recognise how the misuse of these substances permeate our homes, schools, workplaces,
and communities, and play a more active part to collectively tackle these challenges.

Krishna Ramkhelawon, Director of Public Health, Southend City Council

Misuse of drugs and alcohol is a significant factor in the causes of crime and anti-social
behaviour. Violence in our public and private spaces, safety on our roads and perceptions of
safety in our communities are all too frequently linked to taking drugs or to overconsumption
of alcohol. Police patrols and enforcement activity can make a difference, but by themselves
they cannot achieve a long-term change in individual behaviour or address all the harm
substance abuse brings about. A partnership approach is needed.

The national ‘From Harm, to Hope' strategy, and the associated investment, gives us the
opportunity to improve services in Southend and to reduce drug and alcohol related harm.
By working in partnership across the local authority, health, education, voluntary and criminal
justice sectors we can make sure that our investment and our energy goes towards those
things that will make the greatest difference. Essex Police is pleased to be part of a Southend
partnership that seeks to reduce the demand for illegal drugs, that seeks to tackle their
supply, especially the violence and harm that comes with the scourge of drug lines, and that
seeks to improve treatment and recovery services. Working together, I'm convinced we can
make things better for our city.

Chief Superintendent Simon Anslow, Head of Operational Policing and
Command, Essex Police 15

oy



Our Vision

Our vision is for Southend-On-Sea to be a place where people feel safe, connected
and well, and where they can live happy and prosperous lives free from the harms
caused by drugs and alcohol. We want people to have the best possible physical and
mental health, to be able to make informed choices and have control over their health
and wellbeing. This means creating an environment where:

» People are empowered to make positive changes and to avoid using substances to
cope with adversity and stress.

» Our children and families have the best start in life and are protected from the
harmful affects of drugs and alcohol as they grow and age.

» We have compassionate communities which support resilience and recovery.

» We have person-centred, responsive services which see people as individuals and
take the time to listen to, and learn from, their experiences.

» Our workforce feels empowered and takes a trauma-informed approach to providing
treatment, care and support, recognising the wider factors which feed into harmful
substance use.

» We have an improved shared understanding of the local drugs markets and work in
partnership to take action against individuals and groups who are willingly
concerned in the production and supply of illegal drugs.

This strategy aims to provide a framework for achieving this vision, drawing upon national
and local evidence and an understanding of local need, to outline the context, the
partnership approach we are committed to, and the strategic priorities we wish to focus on
for the next 2 years.

mllllllm/ A

16



Executive Summary

Working with residents, users of treatment and recovery services, professionals, and wider
stakeholders, we have developed six priorities for tackling the harms of drugs and alcohol in
Southend:

1) Prevention and early intervention

2) Reducing drug-related deaths

3) Reducing drug and alcohol related crime

4) Improving support for those involved in the criminal justice system.
5) Improving treatment outcomes

6) Adopting a place-based approach to building recovery into communities

Tackling the harms from drugs and alcohol is everyone's business, so underpinning these
priorities are also a set of key principles which we believe will help us to achieve our vision.

o\We will ensure we build an effective, trained and well
supported workforce, to enable them to provide the
best possible services to those who need it.

Growing and developing
our workforce

Embedding co- *We will work with the local third sector and southend
production and residents to co-produce local solutions, building on the
harnessing the strengths strengths and assets in communities to ensure
of the third sector resilience and strong recovery capital.

* We will ensure that we work in a collaborative way, with
a range of different partners, to ensure actions and
outcomes align, and that each partner feels they are
able to contribute to the priorities and actions within
the strategy.

Working together to plan
services and support

*\We will take an outcomes focussed approach: not just
focussing on the actions we need to take, but on what
this looks and feels like for individuals. We will work
with local people in co-production to develop outcome
measures which are reflective of the needs of our local
communities.

Taking an outcomes

focussed approach

Together, these priorities and principles will drive our collective action over the

next 2 years.
17



Background and
context

The harms of drugs and alcohol can be felt by anyone, at any stage in life, and if not addressed,
go on to affect the health and wellbeing of individuals and families, the safety of communities,
and the economic growth and prosperity of our city.

In 2021, the UK Government published its 10-year drugs strategy, 'From Harm to Hope: a 10-
year drugs plan to cut crime and save lives’ following Dame Carol Black’s Independent Review
of Drugs (Parts 1 & 2). The Dame Carol Black review has been influential in pushing the drug
treatment agenda forward, articulating unmet need and gaining Government backing including
a considerable increase in funding for drug and alcohol treatment.

Outlined in the 10-year drugs strategy are three strategic priorities which, through the
development of local combating drugs partnerships, we are required to work towards locally:

1 - Break Drug Supply Chains

*Break the ability of gangs to supply drugs wholesale to neighbourhood dealers

eMake it harder for organised crime groups to operate by distrupting operations and
seizing cash

e Tackle county lines by bringing perpertrators to justice, safeguarding and supporting
victims, and reducing violence and homicide

ebetter target local drug gangs and street dealing
*Reducing violence and exploitation and protect our prison populations.

2 - Deliver a world-class treatment and recovery system

eImprove quality, capacity and outcomes of commissioned services

*Rebuild the professional workforce

eEnsure better integration of services

eImprove access to accomodation and employment opportunities alongside treatment
eincrease referrals into treatment in the criminal justice system

ekeep those that have been in prison engaged in treatment after release

3 - Achieve a generational shift in the demand for drugs

*Build a better evidence base to test and learn and drive change

® Ensure local pathways to identify and change behaviour of people involved in activities
caused by drug-related harm

edeliver school-based prevention and early intervention
esupport young people and families most at risk of substance misuse
eapply tougher and more meaningful consequences for thise in possession of illegal drugs

18


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/from-harm-to-hope-a-10-year-drugs-plan-to-cut-crime-and-save-lives
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/from-harm-to-hope-a-10-year-drugs-plan-to-cut-crime-and-save-lives
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/independent-review-of-drugs-by-professor-dame-carol-black

Successfully addressing drug use and supply in a local area requires a range of organisations to
work together to tackle this issue based on local needs’. In November 2022, Southend-On-Sea
City Council published a substance misuse needs assessment to explore the impact of
substance misuse on the population, including a review of current provision for both adults and

children and young people and identification of gaps in service provision.

The key findings of this needs assessment highlighted that in Southend:

The direct negative impact of alcohol
appears to be lower than for other
comparable areas, however, around a
quarter of the population in the UK are
estimated to drink above recommended
levels.

The proportion of people in treatment
aged 50 or over has increased from 11% in
2009/10to 25% in 2020/21.

Drug-related deaths are significantly higher
than both the England and East of England
averages.

Treatment for young people is broadly
effective, with 90% of young people
successfully completing, and 48% leaving
treatment drug free.

Among secondary school pupils, rates of
alcohol consumption increase dramatically
when compared to primary school, with
just 41% indicating that they have never
had alcohol and 15% of young people
reporting drinking alcohol sometimes or
once a week (compared to 83% of year 6
pupils reporting not drinking within past 7
days.

While over 1/3 of people successfully
complete treatment, around half of the
people in treatment dropped out or left
treatment. Successful completion of
treatment has been declining over several
years.

Residents are concerned about drug and
alcohol use across and believe that this is a
growing issue across the city.

There is a lack of knowledge and
understanding of substance misuse among
children and young people, with 38% of
year 8 and 10 students statings that it is
safe to use cannabis

Using the findings of this needs assessment, a series of engagement events have been held to

develop local priorities and ensure that our plans to address the priorities in the national

strategy, are informed by an understanding of local needs, resources and assets. This has
included:

>

YV VYV VYV

Interviews with professional stakeholders as part of the needs assessment activities
Qualitative engagement with 16 service users

Residents survey receiving 78 responses to gather local perceptions.

1 Needs assessment consultation event.

2 wider stakeholder engagement events.

Liaison with our regional leads from the Office of Health Improvement and Disparities

1 Guidance for Local Delivery Partners (2022) - Guidance fd8 local delivery partners FINAL.pdf



https://substance-misuse-needs-assessment-southend.hub.arcgis.com/
file://///sbcdata.sbc.local/People/DATA/JointComm/STRATEGY%20PLANNING%20&%20WORKFORCE%20DEVELOPMENT/Drug%20&%20Alcohol%20Commissioning/Strategy%20&%20Planning/2021%20National%20Drug%20Strategy/Guidance_for_local_delivery_partners_FINAL.pdf

Our Priorities

Priority | — Prevention and Early Intervention

What do we know?

Around 1/4 of the population in England and Wales drink above recommended
levels, increasing the risks for a range of long-term health conditions and wider
social impacts

in 2021/22, 22% adults who were new to drug An estimated 27,000
treatment, and 34% adults new to treatment for young people have been
alcohol use in Southend, were either parents or living pulled into the drugs

with children trade nationally

Residents are concerned

about drug and alcohol

use and believe that this

is a growing issue across
the city.

15% of secondary school
children in Southend
report drinking alcohol
sometimes or once a
week

In a recent survey, 38%
of Year 8 and 10
students stated that it
was safe to use cannabis

How will we tackle these challenges?

»  We will explore the feasibility of implementing a population-wide alcohol
identification and brief advice intervention to enable residents to receive
opportunistic screening, advice, and signposting.

» We will conduct a review of current delivery of the drugs and alcohol curriculum in
schools to support improvements in the coverage and quality of teaching about
substance misuse.

» We will better coordinate our messaging to residents, developing a mechanism of
ongoing community engagement and feedback to understand and address issues,
build upon strengths and assets and shape service development.

>  We will work to improve the support for young people and families affected by
substance misuse, through commissioning a targeted service to work with social care
and other partners to reduce risk, address wider social factors and support families to
access treatment where appropriate.

How will this contribute to achieving the national priorities?

Priority 1 - Break Drug Supply Chains
¢ Reducing exploitation through better and more targeted work with children and
young people and families
e Improving targeting of local gangs and street dealing through facilitating better
relationships and dialogue with residents and community groups
Priority 3 - Create a generational shift in the demand for drugs.
e Delivering school-based prevention and early intervention

e Supporting young people and families most at risk
20



Priority 2 — Reducing Drug-related Deaths.

What do we know?

Nationally, drug-related deaths are at an all time high, and have been increasing

year on year.

In Southend, the rate of drug related deaths in 2018- There were 23 recorded

20 was 5.7 per 100,000 population, signficantly drug and alcohol related

higher than the England average of 5 per 100,000 deaths in Southend in

and the East of England rate of 3.7 per 100,000. 2020

There is no shared Nationally, data indicates There has been a 23%

process in place in the highest number of increase in deaths in

Southend for monitoring rough sleepers dying people in treatment for
and learning from drug from drug posioning opiates when comparing

Y

Y

Y

and aléc)egcsu]gelated since records began. 2019-20 to 2021-22.

How will we tackle these challenges?

We will enhance harm reduction provision by increasing the distribution of Naloxone*
and breadth of access points across Southend.

We will increase the number of adults in structured treatment through increasing the
capacity within our treatment service, and working in collaboration with our treatment
provider and wider partners to improve pathways and engagement with treatment
We will establish a local process for recording, monitoring, and sharing learning from
drug and alcohol related deaths and near misses in Southend.

We will establish a multi-agency panel to oversee this process and coordinate the
dissemination of learning and actions to relevant partners.

How will this contribute to achieving the national priorities?

Priority 1 - Deliver a world-class treatment and recovery system.

Contribute to improving the quality, capacity, and outcomes of service delivery.
Supporting better integration between services through shared learning and multi-
agency review of deaths

Contribute to reversing the national upward trend in drug-related deaths.

*Naloxone is the emergency antidote for overdoses caused by heroin and other opiates or opioids (such as
methadone, morphine and fentanyl) - Widening the availability of naloxone - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

21


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/widening-the-availability-of-naloxone/widening-the-availability-of-naloxone

Priority 3 — improving support for those in the
criminal justice system.

What do we know?

Nationally, it is estimated that over 1/3

of the prison population are there for
drugs-related crimes, with 60% of Out of 490 referrals into treatment
these serving sentences for crimes in Southend in 2021/22, 12% were
related to drug addiction made via the criminal justice system

Southend has a higher
proportion of criminal justice

clients in treatment for opiates ,

(19%), when compared to the Only a th.lrd of people referred for

; 5 community treatment after release
National average (16%)

(2020/27) go on to recieve it within three
WEELS

How will we tackle these challenges?

> We will improve early assessment of individuals going through police custody to
promote engagement with community treatment post-release.

> We will develop pathways of support following the implementation of drug-test on
arrest to ensure those testing positive for drugs receive appropriate sentencing and
treatment support.

» We will increase residential treatment places for offenders with complex needs.

» We will increase the use of diversionary schemes and out of court disposals where

appropriate.

Supported by additional investment in capacity in 2022/23, will work to embed and

strengthen joint posts between specialist treatment services and criminal justice.

Y

Y

We will work with Essex and Thurrock to improve our relationships with local prison’s,
to improve pathways and partnership working.

How will this contribute to achieving the national priorities?

Priority 2 - Deliver a world-class treatment and recovery system.
e Increase referrals into treatment via the criminal justice system.
e keep those that have been in prison engaged in treatment after release.
e Ensure better integration of services.

22



10

Priority 4 — Reducing drug and alcohol related
crime.

What do we know?

In 2022, there were 619 drug offences recorded in Southend with 27% being drug
trafficking offences and 73% for the possession of drugs

Since 2014, drug-related offending It is estimated that 59,900 crimes can
has consistently been highestin be prevented by engaging individuals
Kursaal, Milton, Southchurch and in Southend drug and alcohol

Victoria wards. treatment

How will we tackle these challenges?

Y

We will assess the feasibility of implementing Turnaround or Op Novice approach in
Southend to support whole family interventions with young people.

We will increase the number of major and moderate disruptions against activities or
organised crime group involved in the production and/or supply of controlled drugs.
We will target the highest threat drugs lines operating in Southend (assessed through
MORILE framework) to achieve an overall reduction in the risk presented by such
lines.

v

v

v

We will reduce the supply and use of class A drugs in the night-time economy by
increasing the number of drug tests on arrest where class A drugs are expected to
have been taken

How will this contribute to achieving the national priorities?

Priority 1 - Break Drug Supply Chains
e Make it harder for organised crime groups to operate by disrupting operations and
seizing cash.
e Better target local drug gangs and street dealing
Priority 3 - Achieve a Generational Shift in the Demand for Drugs
e support young people and families most at risk of substance misuse
e apply tougher and more meaningful consequences for those in possession of illegal
drugs

23


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/management-of-risk-in-law-enforcement-morile-based-scoring

11

Priority 5 — Improving treatment outcomes.

What do we know?

Successful completion of treatment for opiate users has declined steeply since
2019, and rates in Southend are now lower than both the East of England and
England rates.

There is an ageing treatment population: the ‘There has been a decline
proportion of people in treatment in Southend in the number of people in
aged 50+ has increased from 11% in 2009/10 to treatment for substance
25% in 2020/21 misuse in Southend over
the past 10 years.

It is estimated that 60% 10% of people in 65% of the treatment
of opiate and crack treatment in Southend population in Southend
cocaine users in in 2020/21 were were unemployed or
Southend are not in recorded as having a economically inactive in
treatment housing problem 2020/21

How will we tackle these challenges?

Y

We will conduct a review of the non-opiate and opiate pathways to understand

the barriers to accessing treatment and identify local actions for improvement.
Supported by recruitment undertaken in 2022/23, we will increase the number

of adults and young people in structured treatment.

We will work with Forward Trust to ensure good pathways into residential
rehabilitation, increasing our target from 10 in treatment in 2022/23 to 21 in 2024/25.
We will develop better working relationships between primary care and treatment
services to understand and support those not engaging with structured treatment.
We will establish a multiagency treatment and recovery group to drive improvements
in treatment quality, workforce development and build links with employment and
housing teams.

Y

v

v

v

» We will engage with older services users to ensure our treatment services are
responsive and adaptable to the needs of an ageing treatment population.

How will this contribute to achieving the national priorities?

Priority 2 - Deliver a world-class treatment and recovery system.
e Improve quality, capacity and outcomes of commissioned services.
e Rebuild the professional workforce.
e Ensure better integration of services.
e Improve access to accomodation and employment opportunities alongside
treatment.

24



Priority 6 — Adopting a place-based approach to
building recovery into communities.

What do we know?

Southend Victoria Locality has the highest levels of deprivation across Mid and
South Essex, and has a higher rate of hospital admissions for alcohol-attributable
conditions than the England average.

Drug-related We have a strong Those with lived

crimes are infrastructure of community- experience have fed back
consistently based organistions which that meaningful activities
higher in Kursaal, can support recovery and and community networks
Milton, further work is needed to are crucial for supporting
Southchurch and improve knowledge and successful treatment and
Victoria wards. awareness of these initatives recovery outcomes

How will we tackle these challenges?

»  We will work with the Voluntary and Community sector and our local alliance to map
and build upon local assets and recovery capital in Southend, taking a place
approach.

We will grow our local recovery support by investing time and resource into the

Y

development of social networks, peer support, and access to meaningful activities in
local communities.

Y

We will increase public understanding of recovery through the co-production of a
public engagement plan, with a focus on creating compassionate communities.

Y

We will develop a mechanism of ongoing community engagement and feedback to
understand and address perceptions of drug related crime and substance misuse.

How will this contribute to achieving the national priorities?

Priority 2 - Deliver a world-class treatment and recovery system.
e Improving treatment outcomes.
e Rebuild the professional workforce.
e Ensure better integration of services.
e Improve access to accomodation and employment opportunities alongside
treatment.

25

12



How we will work 13
together

The drivers of drug use and drug-related harm are complex, and therefore cut across the
responsibilities of a range of different organisations?. As such, each local authority area is
required to establish a local Combating Drugs Partnership which comprises of key
representatives from across the local authority, NHS, Jobcentre Plus, substance misuse
treatment providers, police, police and crime commissioner, probation, people with lived
experience, elected members and secure estate such as prisons and young offender
institutions.

In Southend, our partnership is an evolving structure. Due to the geographical cross-over of key
services including policing, probation and our integrated care system, we have joined forces
with Essex and Thurrock to establish a Joint Southend, Essex and Thurrock (SET) Drug and
Alcohol Partnership board. This board will provide strategic oversight of delivery against the
national drug strategy, and will be a key vehicle for understanding and addressing shared
challenges related to substance misuse across this greater Essex footprint. However,
recognising local variation in need, a framework of local governance will be in place to capture
and discuss local need and priorities, drive the operational delivery of our SET plans at a local
level, and ensure wider partners and networks are engaged and have the opportunity to
contribute to the delivery and development of our approach in Southend.

The below outlines the partnership arrangement in Southend as it currently stands:

Governance and Decision making

Southend

Health &

Wellbeing T
Board

SET Drugs and Alcohol Partnership Board

Operational Oversight

Collation of discussions,

Southend Drugs and Alcohol Operational Oversight Group

reviews, facilitation

Drug and alcohol Prevention, early Treatment
related deaths intervention, and recovery
review group and education group

Performance
and data

Coproduction,
collaboration,

investigation, contract Southend Southend Health Southend Drugs People
management, reports Community Safety and Wellbeing and Alcohol affected by
a(:_d focussed Partnership Board Stakeholder drug-related
Iscussions. Network harm

Feedback, ideas, proposals, concerns

2 Guidance for Local Delivery Partners (2022) - Guidance for local @@ivery partners FINAL.pdf



file://///sbcdata.sbc.local/People/DATA/JointComm/STRATEGY%20PLANNING%20&%20WORKFORCE%20DEVELOPMENT/Drug%20&%20Alcohol%20Commissioning/Strategy%20&%20Planning/2021%20National%20Drug%20Strategy/Guidance_for_local_delivery_partners_FINAL.pdf

How we will khow 14

we are successful

The national drugs strategy outlines six overarching outcomes that local areas should work
towards achieving, as well as some high-level metrics that will be captured at a national level to
understand the impact we are having locally:

What we will deliver for citizens
(strategic outcomes)

Measured by:

%\ Reducing drug use

the proportion of the population reporting drug use in the last year (reported by age)
prevalence of opiate and/or crack cocaine use

Reducing drug-related
crime

the number of drug-related homicides
the number of neighbourhood crimes

Reducing drug-related
deaths and harm

What will help us deliver this
(intermediate outcomes)

deaths related to drug misuse

hospital admissions for drug poisoning and drug-related mental health and behavioural
disorders (primary diagnosis of selected drugs)

Measured by:

Q: Reducing drug supply

the number of county lines closed
the number of moderate and major disruptions against organised criminals

Increasing engagement
in drug treatment

the numbers in treatment (both adults and young people, reported by opiate and crack
users, other drugs, and alcohol)

continuity of care — engagement with treatment within three weeks of leaving prison

’ Improving drug
recovery outcomes

the proportion who are in stable accommodation and who have completed treatment,
are drug-free in treatment, or have sustained reduction in drug use

Key additional components integral to recovery include housing, mental health,
and employment

Figure 1. National Combating Drugs Outcomes Framework (2022)

These measures will form the foundations of our understanding of the impact we are having in
Southend. Further work will be undertaken in Quarter 1 of 2023/24, in collaboration with our
newly established SET partnership board, to develop supplemental local measures which will
provide a comprehensive, meaningful understanding of progress, outcomes and achievements.

Demonstrating that we are meeting these objectives locally will be crucial to support the case
for future funding at the next spending review.

27



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda

Iltem No.

Southend Health and Wellbeing Board 6

Report by
Alex Khaldi, Independent Chair, A Better Start Southend

to
Health & Wellbeing Board on 15" June 2023
Report prepared by:
Tara Poore, Director, A Better Start Southend

For discussion X For information Approval required
only

1

A Better Start Southend - update
Part 1 (Public Agenda ltem)

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to provide an update from the Chair of A Better Start Southend (ABSS)
on key developments since the last meeting.

2

Recommendations

HWB are asked to:

1.

3

Note the content of the report and raise questions or comments with Alex Khaldi,
Independent Chair of A Better Start Southend (ABSS).

Note that ABSS has set its Core Strategy key priorities for the final phase of the programme.

Governance

The ABSS Programme continues to benefit from strong Partnership engagement, with positive
participation at a range of levels for all core Partners, including:

Early Years Alliance

Southend City Council

Essex Police

Mid and South Essex Hospital Trust

Essex Partnership University NHS Foundation Trust (EPUT)
Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Board

University of Essex

SAVS

As a reminder, the ABSS Programme Governance structure comprises the following Groups:

Partnership Board - Chair, Alex Khaldi, ABSS
Executive Consultative Board - Chair, Alex Khaldi, ABSS
Programme Group - Chair, Krishna Ramkhelawon, SCC

29



¢ Insight and Analysis Group - Chair, Michael Freeston, EYA

¢ Finance and Risk Group - Chair, Paul Grout, SCC

e Parents’ Group - Rolling Parent Champion Chairs

e YourFamily Partnership Group - Chair, Emma Hawker, Parent Champion.

All ABSS governance meetings continue to take place regularly and are aligned to the governance
schedule, to aid with oversight and scrutiny of ABSS Programme activity.

Engagement of Parent Champions within ABSS (Governance) Meetings and wider Co-Production

All committees and groups include the active participation of engaged parents, with Terms of
Reference stating that no meeting is quorate unless there is parent and Partner presence at each
forum.

Outside of governance, Parent Champion have been involved in a number of ABSS initiatives and
programmes of work including Southend Supports Breastfeeding (due to launch in August) and
assessment of funding applications.

Southend Family Centres

Southend Family Centres and ABSS continue to work together to meet the needs of children and
families in Southend. Exploration of opportunities to integrate further are currently taking place, with
increased emphasis being placed on the pre-natal period and cost of living response.

The National Lottery Community Fund (TNLCF)

Over the next year, ABSS will be working with the Lottery to determine the intellectual property
position of logos, branding, websites, trading names etc. As part of the Lottery grant terms and
conditions, intellectual property is retained by the Lottery and can only be transferred following
written request. It is important ABSS is thorough in making this request as in some cases, branding,
future website management and logos will be transferred on to City Family CIC and other
organisations who will be picking up the legacy baton from ABSS. We are therefore working with
the Government’s Intellectual Property Office to ensure a secure legal position for the future.

ABSS Core Strategy 2023-2025

The ABSS Annual Core Strategy is an internal document, which has previously been reviewed
annually to record the operational objectives of A Better Start Southend (ABSS). It was agreed by
the ABSS Partnership Board (February 2023) that the term of the next Core Strategy would cover
the remainder of the programme’s funded period. The overarching rationale for this change in term
is to ensure that all operational, commissioning, delivery and research activities are undertaken
through a legacy and sustainability lens.

The ABSS focus has not changed and will not change. The Partnership continues to work towards
improving outcomes against the pillars of childhood development - communication and language,
diet and nutrition and social and emotional development, underpinned by community resilience and
driving system change.

Consultation was undertaken with ABSS Programme staff, strategic partners, parent representatives
and governance chairs to set the priorities of the final ABSS Core Strategy, work is now underway to
agree and set out the operational objectives that will underpin the strategy. Progress against these
will be reported to the ABSS Partnership Board and to Southend’s Health and Wellbeing Board.

D



Core Strategy — Priorities 2023-2025

e RESPONDING TO A CHANGING LANDSCAPE: We will ensure services are able to
respond to a changing landscape to best meet the needs of children and their families.

o PARENT-CHILD RELATIONSHIPS: We will focus on family relationships, promoting positive
parent-child relationships through tackling barriers.

o SERVICE MAPPING: We will map family services and support offers to improve access and
use evidence and community knowledge to highlight gaps in provision.

o LONG-LASTING LEGACY: We will focus on how to best ensure there is a strong and long-
lasting legacy.

o IMPACT & LEARNING: We will share learning and improve how we capture and report
impact.

o GOVERNANCE & COMPLIANCE: We will review what is required to deliver the Programme
and maintain strategic oversight through the final phase of the Lottery funding.

4 ABSS Legacy and Sustainability
Commissioned Services

The Project Team continue to work with commissioned delivery partners to determine their vision
and aspirations for services beyond 2025. These will continue in earnest now that the Quarter 4
project reviews have concluded. Assessments of the future viability of individual projects and
programmes of work will also gather pace over the next 6 months. To facilitate this activity, the
Team is reviewing the current end date of contracts with delivery partners and considering the
benefits in seeking to extend, change or bring contracts to an end.

The Workforce Development Programme

The Workforce Development Programme has been developed further. The initial focus has been on
identifying training and development needs for ABSS programme staff, including immediate training
needs, longer-term needs likely before the end of the ABSS programme. A programme of internal
training is being developed to support immediate and longer-term needs for ABSS, and to identify a
suitable and equitable approach to supporting staff with more aspirational development
opportunities.

In addition, a programme of external learning / knowledge sharing events will be arranged to provide
the wider ABSS and Early Years workforce in Southend with opportunities to develop and share
knowledge, experience and ideas that can support the continuation of the ABSS approach to
changing systems and building community resilience. The Insights and Analysis Group meeting in
March 2023 agreed the establishment of a Working Group to develop these learning/knowledge
sharing events, and the first meeting of this group is now being arranged.

City Family Community Interest Company

City Family has recently appointed their non-founding board members, who bring a broad range of
experience and expertise to the organisation. Business development activity is underway to ensure
that the organisation is able to access and draw down a diverse range of income to enable the best
chance of driving forward the ABSS legacy.

31 3



City Family Board members

Emma Stoakes

Emma lives in Southend with her partner, young son and pets. She has recently volunteered for a
range of causes from Cat’s Protection to school governing and becoming an ABSS Parent
Champion. Emma enjoys cooking, DIY and crafts and is keen to develop and improve the support
that is available for new parents in Southend.

Sarah Miller

Sarah volunteers as a Community Investment Board member in Southend and was an ABSS Parent
Champion for many years. She has worked full-time in electrical manufacturing for 15 years and has
progressed from machine operations, to process team leader and achieved safety qualifications to
be a future HSE leader. Sarah has two young daughters and lives in Southend.

Erin Brennan-Douglas

Erin is an established professional who has worked 30 years with children, young people and
families as a nurse and senior public health professional. Erin’s focus is to ensure that families have
the best start in life and thrive despite adversity. Reducing inequalities is at the core of Erin’s
professional ethos.

Richard Merrington

Richard is the Chief Accountant at London Councils, a cross party organisation representing the 32
London boroughs as well as the City of London Corporation. Richard has a wealth of experience on
establishing financial procedures to ensure best value and financial stability is achieved. Richard
lives in south Essex

Dr Taz Syed

Taz is a GP with specialist interests in safeguarding and technology and works in Southend. He is a
Named GP for Safeguarding and a Chief Clinical Information Officer in Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care Board. he is lucky enough to work at both regional and national level in his roles.
Originally from Manchester, Taz now lives in Southend.

Andy Bush

Andy is a Broadcaster, his role sees him interview celebrities and speak to the nation on ‘Hometime
with Bush and Richie’ and ‘Indie Disco’ on Absolute radio. He is also a writer and voice over artist.
Andy lives in South Essex with his family.

James Boxer

James has 15 years of experience of work in the public sector with a strong focus on health and
social care improvement. James has held several senior operational, strategic and political roles,
most recently working on delivery of policy across a broad range of areas including; Science and
Technology, Levelling up and Public Sector innovation.

Founding Board members
Alex Khaldi

Dr Craig Dearden-Phillips MBE
Michael Freeston

Tara Poore

5 Research and evidence

Programme Evaluation Partnership

The University of Essex Research team is conducting semi-structured qualitative interviews with
beneficiaries for the seventh round of reporting for the Formative Evaluation to be shared with ABSS

P



at the end of July 2023. The interviews allow the team to analyse beneficiaries’ narratives about the
impact of the ABSS programme on families and how services are being delivered. A new online survey
instrument has been developed for YourFamily and went live in January 2023. Another online survey
for Families Growing Together is currently under review by the University’s ethics approval team.

The research team together with ABSS colleagues is developing a tool to inform thinking and decision
making around which projects to continue evaluating in the current form and which to move to a form
of reporting that will summarise findings and recommendations from the wealth of evidence collected
to date. This forms part of a wider conversation about how evidence from the formative evaluation can
be used to support ABSS’s legacy and sustainability strategy and programme of work.

A proposal based on the first ‘evidence map’ about the relationship between breastfeeding and long-
term outcomes beyond early childhood is accepted for presentation at the Annual Kathmandu
Conference on Nepal and the Himalaya 2023, to be held in Nepal between 26 and 28 July 2023. The
research team is developing a research-based paper and a poster for presentation by the two Senior
Research Officers, based on ABSS interventions and outcomes. The team is also working on the
second ‘evidence map’ relating to the relationship between early communication stimuli and long-term
outcomes for children’s overall development.

The second research paper arising from ABSS work: ‘Making sense of organisational challenges
and community resilience during Covid-19: A case-study of a multi-agency intervention tackling child
poverty in England’ is co-authored with ABSS colleagues and is in submission with ‘Practice’ journal.

Independent Programme-wide Summative Evaluation

Data collection for Phase 2 of the Summative Evaluation began in March 2023 with RSM arranging
interviews with a range of stakeholders, including strategic partners, delivery partners and members
of the wider community. Surveys will shortly be launched to explore the experiences of parents who
have participated in ABSS activities, parents who have not participated in ABSS activities, and staff
and volunteers working to deliver the ABSS programme and its projects. Interviews and small focus
groups with parents will follow. RSM have worked with ABSS PMO staff and MarComms staff to
identify ways to promote participation in the evaluation activities and will be attending selected
sessions of ABSS projects and community events to encourage parents to participate

INNOVATE Research Project

ABSS have joined a research project led by colleagues from the University of Essex, INNOVATE:
INtersectional Network Of community and stakeholder Voices And research to Tackle (in)Equalities
in mental health and well-being. ABSS, along with Mid and South Essex ICS, Essex Anchor Network
and MQ Mental Health Research, are partners with the University team from the School of Health
and Social Care on a project examining place-based partnerships to address health inequalities,
with a particular focus on mental health. Our Research, Evaluation and Impact Manager joined the
project team to run a Challenge Lab that brought together stakeholders from a range of community
organisations to identify challenges and map community assets around mental health and suicide
prevention. There are plans to develop some workshops in community settings to allow individuals,
particularly those with lived experience, to contribute their ideas and experiences to the research

6 Programme Activity and Reach

An extract of the ABSS Data Dashboard titled ‘Partnership Board Programme Activity Summary’
is shown in Appendix One

33 5



The number of beneficiaries engaging with the ABSS programme continues to increase, data from
the ABSS Dashboard show the following.

e Between 15t April 2015 and 315t March 2023, a total of 6,318 unique primary beneficiaries
engaged with the programme.

e In the 12-month period to 31st March 2023, there were 2,084 primary unique beneficiaries,
representing 47.3% of those eligible.

e This was a rise from 2,017 unique beneficiaries (45.8% of eligible) in the 12 months to 31¢
March 2022.

e Of the 2,084 unique beneficiaries in the 12 months to 31t March 2023, 1,136 were new
beneficiaries engaging with ABSS for the first time. This was a small rise from 1,023 in the
same period the previous year.

e The highest level of reach was seen in Shoeburyness ward, with 62.3% of those eligible
participating in the year to 315t March 2023.

e The lowest was in Westborough ward (40.0%), which was little changed from the previous 12
months (39.6%). However, 12 months previously the lowest had been in Victoria Ward,
which rose from 39.5% in the 12 months to 31t March 2022 to 46.3% in the 12 months to
31st March 2023.

Furthermore 1002 children have taken part in a Talking Transition activity and 925 people attended
events during the ABSS Festival of Conversation, at this stage it is not possible to say whether
these are unique beneficiaries, therefore are not included in the dashboard figures.

Looking at reach by target areas for deprivation (deciles on the Index of Multiple Deprivation) in the
12 months to 31 March 2023:

o 45.7% of those eligible living in areas of the highest deprivation (0-10% IMD), up slightly from
44.2% in the previous 12-month period.

e Engagement also rose with those living in the second-highest target areas (11-20%, rising
from 44.7% to 49.9%) and third-highest target areas (21-30%, rising from 46.8% to 50.4%)
during the same period.

YourFamily

To give children the best start in life, YourFamily builds trusting relationships with expectant parents
and parents with young children to develop their strengths and resilience, and connects them to
community resources. YourFamily operates right across Southend and provides support to
expectant parents and parents of children under 4. YourFamily is a facilitated community of
Southend professionals and parents, all supporting each other to achieve the best for children.

The important component that YourFamily offers to expectant parents and parents, is a community
of professionals who can provide help and support when parents might not have their own family
networks around them. YourFamily also helps parents and families to develop peer networks that
can continue beyond and outside of the support that the professional YourFamily Team can offer. In
building a community, YourFamily provides a support network that parents and families can draw on
in times of need, as others would do if their families were nearby, reducing reliance on statutory
services.

Since inception, 1084 families have joined the YourFamily community. This includes 623 under 4’s,
222 over 4s and 131 pregnancies. 48% of registered families are from ABSS wards and 37% are
from outside ABSS wards (15% did not disclose the information).

Families join the community either through meeting the team in the community (44%), introductions
from other professionals (35%) or via the YourFamily website (21%). The majority of introductions
to YourFamily come via Health Visitors (HV) and Health Visitor Assistants (HVA) (72%), although
Family Centres also play a significant part in facilitating introductions (23%). Other introductions

B



come from SCC Supporting Families Team, Centre Place Nursery, Family Nurse Partnership, Social
Prescribers and SCC Social Care

The Service will be funded by A Better Start Southend until 2025, when the Lottery grant ends. Itis
envisaged that the Service will be relocated into the newly established ABSS legacy body, City
Family Community Interest Company, between now and 2025, achieving sustainability through
successful tendering processes and a range of other fund-raising activities.

Details of all ABSS programmes in delivery are attached for reference - see Appendix Two

7 Programme Management Office

Human Resources

At the end of February, the team were pleased to welcome, Dr Beth Buzza as Research, Evaluation
and Impact Lead and Leane Lane as a part-time Connector in the YourFamily team.

Interviews have been taking place for the Communications and Marketing Officer and Assistant
roles as well as for a YourFamily Volunteer Coordinator and YourFamily Connector. Appointments
are expected soon.

An advert for a health professional is due to go out soon following a decision to recruit directly.

The first round of recruitment for a Business and Planning Lead was unsuccessful. This has now
been re-advertised and it is hoped an appointment will be made in June.

An Information Systems role will shortly be advertised to continue the Inform2 Project Management
support currently provided by agency staff, commissioned via SCC.

All future vacancies within ABSS will be reviewed by the Senior Programme Team as they arise to
ensure they are aligned with the Legacy and Sustainability plans and the end of the funding period
in 2025.

Inform2 Customer Relationship Management System

Inform2 is the cloud-based customer relationship management (CRM) system which is initially being
used by the YourFamily Team and Southend City Council’s Family Centre’s Family Support Team
for case management and future reporting purposes, with a vision to roll-out wider in the coming
year.

The Information Sharing Agreement and Model between ABSS and SCC is now in the process of
being signed. Next steps will be to test out the sharing model to determine whether there are any
technical changes required to the system. Once that is complete, training will be carried out for all
users in readiness for use by parents. All parents will be able to complete a joint registration form
online using their mobile phones or tablets, which YourFamily will be able to provide for them. This
will be considered the completion of Phase 1.

The second phase will be the move of the Talking Transitions and Creche Team on to the system.

This will include the uploading of all of the WellCom assessments, putting ABSS in a better place to
produce data related to speech and language outcomes.

35 7



8 Communications and Marketing

The final Communication & Language webpage content is currently being cross referenced to check
accuracy ahead of onward page review and imminent go live date.

Social media output continues to promote ABSS and YourFamily updates, relevant national
campaigns and news from our Delivery Partners. It has been decided that once the ABSS Core
Strategy is ready, a review of the ABSS social media strategy will be developed to encompass the
necessary messaging of Legacy and Sustainability while keeping the community aware of current
news and support.

Comms Communities of Practice with NCB and the other ABS sites continue regularly and have

been beneficial in developing an understanding of how comms operate effectively moving forwards
with regards to Legacy and Sustainability.

9 Reasons for Recommendations

ABSS Governance have reviewed and approved activities at the appropriate level. The Health and
Wellbeing Board are asked to:

1. Note the contents of the report and raise opportunities with Tara Poore, ABSS Director or
Alex Khaldi, Independent Chair of A Better Start Southend (ABSS).

2. Note that ABSS has set its Core Strategy key priorities for the final phase of the programme

10 Financial / Resource Implications

There are no financial/resource implications for this report.

11 Legal Implications

There are no legal implications for this report.

12 Equality & Diversity

There are no equality and diversity implications for this report.
13 Appendices

Appendix One — ABSS Partnership Board Programme Activity Summary
Appendix Two - ABSS Project Names and Workstreams

Tara Poore, Director, ABSS
15" June 2023



Appendix One — ABSS Partnership Board Programme Activity Summary

Partnership Board Programme Activity Summary

Produced by the Operational Performance and Intelligence Team
05/06/2023

This short extract is based on the ABSS Programme Activity Dashboard for the period ending 30-Apr-2023.

For further details please click the following link to view the full dashboard:

https://sbcdata.shinyapps.io/ABSS_Programme_Activity/
(https://sbcdata.shinyapps.io/ABSS_Programme_Activity/).

Section 1 - Programme Reach

The total number of beneficiaries of the A Better Start Southend programme since April 2015 is now 6434, which

has risen from 6267 at the end of the previous month.

As chart 1 below shows, reach has continued to grow during the life of the programme and the total number of
beneficiaries of A Better Start in the past 12 months was 2122. This represents 48.1% of all potential beneficiaries
and is among the highest proportions achieved since the start of the programme. There has been an upwards
trend in reach since March 2021 indicating a recovery from the effects of Covid, although there has been no short-

term growth since October 2022.

Rolling 12-month period
2500

2000

1500

1000

500

Count of Unique Primary Beneficiaries

Chart 1: Count of Unique Primary Beneficiaries

12-month period end date

Section 2 - New Primary Beneficiaries

Chart 2 shows that new families continue to be introduced to the programme each month and the number of new

beneficiaries shows a peak at the start of the new calendar year.

Monthly

141
140

120
120

100 94

89 90

79
80

69

Count of New Primary Beneficiaries

60

40

May-2022 Jun-2022  Jul-2022 Aug-2022 Sep-2022 Oct-2022 Nov-2022

Month end date

Chart 2: Monthly Uptake of New Primary Beneficiaries

140

95

84

72

52

Dec-2022 Jan-2023 Feb-2023 Mar-2023 Apr-2023

37



https://sbcdata.shinyapps.io/ABSS_Programme_Activity/

Appendix One — ABSS Partnership Board Programme Activity Summary

Section 3 - Project Delivery

As Chart 4 from the Programme Activity Dashboard shows below, activity was fairly consistent throughout the
2022-2023 financial year with quarter 4 (Jan - Mar) being the busiest quarter and activity being slightly reduced

over the Summer holiday period.

2022-23: Q1

2022-23: Q2

2022-23: Q3

2022-23: Q4

o

100 200

Chart 4: Count of Unique Quarterly Beneficiaries

_ﬂ
_225_

300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000 1100 1200

Quarter 4 of 2022-23 is displayed in Chart 4a at project level, showing the relative reach of each project in terms
of numbers of primary beneficiaries. Note that the YourFamily project which was live from April 2022 has shown

significant growth and is now reporting the largest number of primary beneficiaries with the exception of the well
established Let’s Talk suite of projects.

1D020: Let's Talk

ID056: YourFamily

ID049: Perinatal Mental Health

ID054: SUHFT 1:1 Breast Feeding Support
ID053: 3-4 Month Health Visitor Contact
ID046: Engagement & Co-Production

ID092: ABSS Parent, Family and Community Hub
ID052: SYMCA Group Breast Feeding Support
ID110: FOOD Club

ID107: Families Growing Together

ID036: ABSS Work Skills

ID059: SCN Family Support Workers

ID083: Volunteer Home Visiting

ID050: Family Nurse Partnership

ID101: Story Sacks

ID102: Umbilical Chords

Chart 4a: Count of Quarterly Beneficiaries

2022-23: Q4

S, 264
T 200
I 1ea
o

I 106

I a7

]

I e3

e s

e a7

T 24
2
e
4
s

0 25 50 75 100 125 175 200 225 275

300 325

Section 4 - Age and Gender

Chart 6 extracted from the Programme Activity Dashboard below shows that there is a fairly even distribution of
male and female beneficiaries and that there is an emphasis on engaging children from the earliest stage in their

lives (i.e. age 0).

The number of pregnant primary beneficiaries that participated in the past 12 months has decreased from 312 for
the equivalent 12-month period ending one year ago.

10




Appendix One — ABSS Partnership Board Programme Activity Summary

Chart 6: Gender and Age Distribution of Primary Beneficiaries in Period

(Where Gender and Age known)
1000

600 427

Count

400

160
127

254
186

1 2 3 Pregnant

200

Age/Status at earliest event in period

Female @ Male Not known

Section 5 - Delivery by Ward

Chart 8 extracted from the Programme Activity Dashboard shows a comparison of the percentage of eligible
primary beneficiaries that have participated in an ABSS project during the past 12 months compared to the
previous 12-month period. Over the combined ABSS wards (see the far right-hand bars) this percentage has
increased and this is also the case for each of the individual wards.

Reach within the Kursaal, Victoria, Shoeburyness, Westborough and West Shoebury all equal or exceed the
average reach across the entire ABSS wards and reach in Milton and Westborough is below the overall average.

The difference in reach between the wards with the highest (Shoeburyness) and lowest (Westborough) reach is
22.9 percentage points.

Chart 8: Percentage Coverage of Eligible Beneficiaries by Ward
Comparison to previous 12-month period
70
64.2% 62.8%
60
53.9%
50.4%
50 48.7% 48.4% 47.3% 48.5%
45.9% 46.2% 44.6%
42.2%
39.6% 39.9%
- 40
€
]
=
&
30
20
10
0
Kursaal Milton Shoeburyness Victoria West Shoebury Westborough Total
Ward
01-May-2021 to 30-Apr-2022 01-May-2022 to 30-Apr-2023

Section 6 - Delivery by Deprivation Level

The two charts below are partial extracts from the Programme Activity Dashboard and show a comparison of
percentage delivery to all eligible beneficiaries for the current and previous 12-month delivery periods, by
deprivation deciles. The top chart shows the most recent 12-month period and displays a higher level of reach in
the 21-30% (the third decile, yellow bar) most deprived areas. The percentages for the top three deciles have
increased from the previous 12 month period, emphasizing the focus on delivery within the more deprived areas.

39
11



Appendix One — ABSS Partnership Board Programme Activity Summary

Chart 9: Percentage Coverage of Eligible Beneficiaries by Ward and Deprivation Level

01-May-2022 to 30-Apr-2023

49.9%
47.9% |

ABSS (0-10%) ABSS (11-20%) ABSS (21-30%) ABSS (30%+)
Ward and Deprivation Level

60

51.3%
50

45.1%

40

30

20

Percentage of eligible beneficiaries

Chart 9: Percentage Coverage of Eligible Beneficiaries by Ward and Deprivation Level

01-May-2021 to 30-Apr-2022
60

50 48.6% 48.9%
46.4%

40

30

20

Percentage of eligible beneficiaries

44.7%

ABSS (0-10%) ABSS (11-20%) ABSS (21-30%) ABSS (30%+)
Ward and Deprivation Level

Section 7 - Participation in Multiple Projects

This chart shows the percentage of beneficiaries that have been involved in multiple projects over the course of
the programme. For example, 42.2% of all beneficiaries have been involved in more than one project, which
demonstrates a good linkeage between projects and retention of beneficiaries.

40
12



Appendix One — ABSS Partnership Board Programme Activity Summary

Chart 11: Count of Number of Projects Involvements

From the start of the Programme to period ending 30-Apr-2023

2345%] 9.6% 4.2% 2.2% 1.1%

Number of Projects

]
0 20 40 60

Section 8 - Current School Year of Primary Beneficiaries

This final chart shows the current school year of all current and past primary beneficiaries. This is helpful when
considering that a number of outcome measures reported to the National Lottery Community Fund are age-
related. For example, the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile (EYFSP) and one of the National School
Measurement Programme (NCMP) measures are taken during the reception year. The ability of A Better Start to
improve these population-level outcomes is dependent on a significant proportion of those children being reached
by the ABSS Programme.

For further details of outcome measures please click the following link to view the full dashboard:
https://sbcdata.shinyapps.io/ABSS_COF_Tool/ (https://sbcdata.shinyapps.io/ABSS_COF_Tool/).

Chart 12: Current School Year of all Primary Beneficiaries
From the start of the programme to period ending 30-Apr-2023
3500
3000 2965
2500
2000
<
E
o
v}
1500
1000
630
535 607
500 403
nz
43 14 2
0
Not school age Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7
School Year

13


https://sbcdata.shinyapps.io/ABSS_COF_Tool/

Appendix Two- Project Names and Workstreams

s e | ok | Cglvery | Dotvery
Stream
ID054 | 121 Breastfeeding D&N | D&N | InDelivery MSETt'UOSStp“a'
ID052 | Group Breastfeeding D&N D&N In Delivery YMCA
IDO53 | 3 -4 Month Contact D&N D&N In Delivery SCC
ID025 | HENRY Healthy Families D&N D&N Closed HENRY
ID087 | Southend Supports Breastfeeding D&N D&N Mobilisation SCC & EYA
ID088 | Infant Feeding Supervisor Lead D&N D&N In Delivery SCC
ID089 | Maternal Healthy Weight D&N D&N Paused TBD
ID095 [ UNICEF Accreditation D&N D&N Closed
ID097 | Public Health Midwife D&N D&N In Delivery :oigitill\gzlzst
ID110 | FOOD Club D&N D&N In Delivery Family Action
IDO50 | Family Nurse Partnership S&E S&E In Delivery EPUT
ID049 | Perinatal Mental Health S&E S&E In Delivery EPUT
ID061 | Preparation for Parenthood S&E S&E Closed HENRY
ID083 | Volunteer Home Visiting Service S&E S&E Closed Home Start
ID107 | Families Growing Together S&E S&E In Delivery Trustlinks
ID104 | IDVA S&E S&E In Delivery Safe Steps
ID020 | Let's Talk C&L C&L In Delivery EPUT
ID082 | WellComm Screening C&L C&L In Delivery EYA
ID091 | Talking Transitions C&L C&L In Delivery EYA
ID109 | Sensory Story Time C&L C&L In Delivery CthTn?nd
ID101 | Story Sacks C&L CR In Delivery SAVS
ID102 | Umbilical Chords C&L CR In Delivery YMCA
ID046 | Engagement CR CR In Delivery SAVS
ID064 | Engagement Fund CR CR In Delivery SAVS
ID084 | CID Fund (Process and applications) CR CR In Delivery N/A
ID086 | Coproduction Champion CR CR In Delivery SAVSSC’CEYA’
ID036 | Work Skills CR CR In Delivery SCC
ID103 | Engagement Fund COVID-19 CR CR Closed SAVS

44




ID115 | Hamlet Court Road in Harmony CR CR In delivery
Bromfield
ID116 | Festival of Conversation CR SC In Delivery Events &
various partners
ID059 | FSW SCN SE S&E | InDelivery | E'A EﬁitbAng"a
ID056 | YourFamily DD S&E In Delivery EYA/ABSS
IDog2 | ABSS Parent, Family and DD CR In Delivery ABSS
Community Hub
ID081 | Welcome to the UK sc sC In Delivery We'COSE to the
ID099 | Data Input - ESTART SC SC In Delivery SCC
IDO80 | First and Foremost SC SC Closed EYA
IDO79 The D_artmgton Service Design (0-19 SC SC Closed Dartington
mapping)
IDO78 | SCC Data Analysis SC SC In Delivery SCC
ID048 | Joint Paediatric Clinic SC SC Paused TBD
ID090 | Programme Evaluation Partnership SC SC In Delivery UoE
ID106 | RSM Summative Evaluation SC SC In Delivery RSM
ID098 Information Governance Specialist sc sc In Delivery Data Protection
Consultant People
ID117 | AARI SC SC Closed Equinox
ID108 | Digital Strategy (Inform) SC SC In Delivery SCC & ABSS
Service
D114 Centre Place SC D&N Design

43

15




This page is intentionally left blank



Southend Health & Wellbeing Board | Agenda

Item No.
Report of Director Strategic Partnerships

To 8
Health & Wellbeing Board

On
Draft NHS Joint Forward Plan for Mid and South Essex

Report prepared by:
Jeff Banks, Director of Strategic Partnerships

Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System

For information For discussion Approval required | X
only

DRAFT NHS JOINT FORWARD PLAN FOR MID AND SOUTH ESSEX

Part 1 (Public Agenda Item)

1.1

1.2

2.1

Purpose of Report

The Health and Care Act 2022 (“The Act”) establishes Integrated Care Boards
(ICBs) as the statutory body responsible for NHS services in each locality, and
Integrated Care Partnerships which draw together wider partners concerned with
improving health and wellbeing outcomes for residents. Each ICB, along with its
partner NHS Trusts/Foundation Trusts must prepare a five-year Joint Forward
Plan (JFP), working with local Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBSs) to ensure
that the joint local health and wellbeing strategy and relevant joint strategic needs
assessments are reflected in the JFP. The purpose of this report is:

e For the board to receive the draft JFP for Mid and South Essex.

e For the board to consider the extent to which the JFP aligns with
Southend’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

e To provide a statement of opinion on the JFP.

The JFP is included as Appendix One

Recommendations

The Southend HWB acknowledges receipt of the draft JFP produced by Mid and
South Essex ICB and confirms the JFP appropriately takes into account and
aligns with the strategies and priorities of the Southend Health and Wellbeing
Board.

Report Title Draft NHS Joint Forward Plan for Mid and Page 1 of 6 Report Number
South Essex

45



3  Background

3.1 The 2022 Act established 42 Integrated Care Systems (ICSs), which are
partnerships of organisations that come together to plan and deliver joined up
health and care services, and to improve the lives of people who live and work in
their area.

3.2 Each ICS is made up of two main committees:

e Integrated Care Board (ICB): A statutory NHS organisation responsible for
developing a plan for meeting the health needs of the population, managing the
NHS budget, and arranging for the provision of health services in the Integrated
Care System area. The establishment of ICBs resulted in Clinical
Commissioning Groups being closed.

e Integrated Care Partnership (ICP): A statutory committee jointly formed
between the NHS ICB and all upper-tier local authorities that fall within the ICSs
area (councils with responsibility for children’s and adult social care and public
health). The ICP will bring together a broad alliance of partners concerned with
improving the care, health, and wellbeing of the population, with membership
determined locally. The ICP is responsible for producing an Integrated Care
Strategy on how to meet the health and wellbeing needs of the population in the
Integrated Care System area.

3.3 The ICS servicing the population of Southend is Mid and South Essex ICS.

3.4 The Act requires each ICB to prepare a JFP and national Guidance on the
development of JFPs, which NHS England shared with ICBs on 24t December
2022, establishes JFPs must be reviewed and updated or confirmed annually
before the start of each financial year. The draft JFP for Mid and South Essex
covers the key areas identified in the Guidance and other relevant local priorities.

3.5 The Guidance states that, as part of the process of developing JFPs, ICBs must
come to the HWB(s) which are within the geographic area the JFP covers for
discussion and approval. The guidance states engagement with HWBs should be
as follows:

“ICBs and their partner trusts have a duty to prepare a first JFP before
the start of the financial year 2023/23 — i.e. by 1 April. For this first year,
however, NHS England is to specify that the date for publishing and
sharing the final plan with NHS England, their integrated care
partnerships (ICPs) and Health and Well-being Boards (HWBSs), is 30
June 2023. We therefore expect that the process for consulting on a draft
(or drafts) of the plan, should be commenced with a view to producing a
version by 31 March, but recognise that consultation on further iterations
may continue after that date, prior to the plan being finalised in time for

publication and sharing by 30 June”’.
[...]

Report Title Draft NHS Joint Forward Plan for Mid and Page 2 of 6 Report Number
South Essex

46



4.1

4.2

“ICBs and their partner trusts must send a draft of the JFP to each
relevant HWB when initially developing it or undertaking significant
revisions or updates. They must consult those HWBs on whether the
draft takes proper account of each JLHWS [Joint Local Health and
Wellbeing Strategy] published by the HWB that relates to any part of the
period to which the JFP relates. A HWB must respond with its opinion
and may also send that opinion to us, telling the ICB and its partner
trusts it has done so (unless it informed them in advance that it was
planning to do so)”

[..]

“The JFP must include a statement of the final opinion of each HWB
consulted.”

(NHS England, Guidance on developing the joint forward plan
23 December 2022)

Approach to developing the JFP

The JFP has been developed taking the Integrated Care Strategy for Mid and
South Essex ICS, also approved by this Board on 6th March 2023, as its starting
point. In this regard, they key priorities will be familiar to the HWB.

There has been a shared desire to ensure that, alongside the varied NHS
commitments, the JFP is able to pinpoint the most impactful issues that NHS
partners should work together on. The draft JFP is therefore presented as a 3-
part document:

e Part 1 — provides some background to the current challenges the NHS is
facing in Mid and South Essex, and identifies a number of areas where, as
NHS partners, we will work together to make an impactful change. Detailed
plans will be developed to ensure that we deliver on these commitments,
together.

e Part 2 — provides the underpinning aspects of our approach, describing our
work on population health improvement, health inequalities and prevention,
and also describes our approach to local delivery — through our Alliances.

e Part 3 — contains a number of appendices which describe our approach to
delivering on NHS Long Term Plan commitments and other statutory duties
placed upon the NHS. These commitments are delivered by various
partners across our system, working in provider organisations and the ICB —
each appendix describes the governance arrangements for ensuring
delivery, including oversight and assurance arrangements through our
relevant system governance mechanisms.

4.3 The operational approaches identified in Part 3 will of course develop over time,

taking into account existing and future local and national NHS priorities and
system pressures. Members are asked to place particular focus on Part 1 and
Part 2, to ensure there is clear understanding of how we proposed to prioritise
our work and approaches to partnership working across the wider system.

Report Title Draft NHS Joint Forward Plan for Mid and Page 3 of 6 Report Number
South Essex

47



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Engagement with partners and residents

The Integrated Care Strategy outlines a system-wide ambition to move from
occasional engagement initiatives to a model of continued engagement with
partners and residents, building relationships and trust, and ensuring there are
regular opportunities throughout the year where residents can meet with health
and social care services and influence the work directly.

In May 2023, the ICB commenced an annual programme of ‘Spring
Conversations’ to engage with partners and residents directly on the priorities
included the JFP. Over a series of ten workshops, and in two online sessions,
over 140 local residents, system leaders and staff working across health and
social care, and representatives of voluntary and community sector
organisations, came together to look at specific lines of enquiry directly relating to
this JFP.

In addition to the open access ‘Spring Conversations’, a series of sessions with
residents who come from more marginalised groups who are less often heard,
often referred to as ‘Inclusion Health Groups’ were also held. These targeted
workshops and drop-in sessions engaged 460 residents, including members of
the traveller community, parenting groups, older peoples’ groups, young people
(via Essex Council for Voluntary Youth Service), carers support groups and with
groups supporting people with Learning Disabilities and Autism.

Each session was co-hosted by a member of the Integrated Care Partnership, or
a local community leader, and was based on the principles of ‘appreciative
enquiry’ - a strengths-based, positive approach, opening up conversations about
what is working well, and how participants can support and contribute to the
change they wish to see. In addition to specific the lines of enquiry relating to the
JFP, participants explored the part they can play across four domains: as
individuals and in our families; in the neighbourhood where we live; the
organisations we work or volunteer in; and as leaders. Engagement activities
took place in community hubs, village halls, and in local pubs and at a comedy
club.

In addition, the ‘Essex is United — Your Questions Answered’ Facebook group
and the associated private Facebook Messenger group, was used to ask a series
of questions of residents. These engagements collectively reached over 35,000
residents, with 218 specific comments or questions, each of which was
responded to directly by the group admins. A total of 732 social media group
‘admins’ were contacted for support, represent a wide range of communities of
interest, need or geography.

Running alongside the engagement work, was a more detailed online
questionnaire, which was completed by individuals wanting to respond in a more
detailed way to the sections included with the JFP.

The outcome of this engagement work has significantly influenced the shape of
this JFP and will continue to influence how we deliver on the priorities we have
identified together. A summary of these conversations will be summarised in the

Report Title Draft NHS Joint Forward Plan for Mid and Page 4 of 6 Report Number
South Essex

48



3.1

3.2

41

5.1

6.1

7.1

developing ‘Insight Bank’, an open access, searchable database of insights about
the experiences gathered across the partnership, both from those delivering and
receiving health and care services.

Governance

The Integrated Care Board approved the draft JFP at its meeting on 18" May
2023. Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust approved the draft at its meeting
on 25" May 2023. Remaining provider Boards are being asked to approve the
plan over the course of June. There will be ongoing opportunities for partners to
receive feedback and influence the delivery of the JFP, through the commitment
to review and update or confirm the JFP annually before the start of each
financial year.

Whilst the draft JFP is being presented at a relatively advanced stage of
development, near to the deadline for submission (30" June 2023), the ICB
determined that it must work through its internal governance process at the
appropriate pace (ensuring proper review by the ICB and NHS provider boards,
etc.). Also, the ICB wanted to ensure all three HWBs in Mid and South Essex had
equal opportunity to be informed of and influence the JFP. With two of the three
HWBSs not sitting at key milestones in the development of the JFPs (due to local
elections) the ICB sought advice, and it was agreed it could wait and bring
forward the draft JFP when all three HWBs were sitting and therefore able to
consider them concurrently.

Options

Members are asked to ‘consider’ and ‘provide a statement of final opinion’ on the
JFP only. The ICB would welcome comments or observations on how the Board
and its partners can work better together to achieve shared outcomes or
objectives.

Financial implications

There are no financial implications arising from this item.

Legal implications

There are no further legal implications arising from the consideration of the JFP.

Equality and Diversity implications

The Public Sector Equality Duty applies to the Council when it makes decisions.
The duty requires us to have regard to the need to:

(a)  Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
behaviour prohibited by the Act. In summary, the Act makes discrimination
etc. on the grounds of a protected characteristic unlawful

(b)  Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

Report Title Draft NHS Joint Forward Plan for Mid and Page 5 of 6 Report Number
South Essex

49



7.2

7.3

(c) Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not including tackling prejudice and promoting
understanding.

The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy
and maternity, marriage and civil partnership, race, religion or belief, gender, and
sexual orientation. The Act states that ‘marriage and civil partnership’ is not a
relevant protected characteristic for (b) or (c) although it is relevant for (a).

An Equality Impact Assessment has not been undertaken by SCC for this work,
as it falls within the responsibility of other statutory partners.

List of appendices
e Appendix One: Draft NHS Joint Forward Plan for Mid and South Essex.
List of Background papers
Members may wish to consider the NHSE’s Guidance on developing the
joint forward plan Version 1.0, published 23 December 2022, which is available at

this link https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/B1940-
quidance-on-developing-the-joint-forward-plan-december-2022.pdf

Report Title Draft NHS Joint Forward Plan for Mid and Page 6 of 6 Report Number
South Essex

50


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/B1940-guidance-on-developing-the-joint-forward-plan-december-2022.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/B1940-guidance-on-developing-the-joint-forward-plan-december-2022.pdf

«1I» Mid and South Essex m

\d
»1 I5 Integrated Care
g .7'4 Y

{37 System

Mid and South Essex

NHS Mid and South Essex
Joint Forward Plan
2023-2028

DRAFT FINAL




TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I1” System Mid and South Essex

Table of Contents

Foreword from OUF CRQIFK ..........oooeemeeeeeeeeeeeeeeccseessss s s sassnnssmssssssssssssssssssenssnnnnnnnnnnns 3
ADBOUL thiS DOCUMENT .........ceeeeeeeeeccieeees s s eee e e e s s ssss s s s s s s s s nnnnnnnnnmnssssssssssssas 4
Part 1: The Collective Ambition of NHS Partners...........eeeuueeeeeeeevevviieeenssnnnnnnennnns 5
Part 2 — Improving population health and reducing health inequalities ............ 21
Part 3 — Delivery PIans..............eeeeeeeeiceeeeesesissssssssssnnnnmnsssssssssssssssssssssnsnnnnnnnnnns 39
AppendiX 1 — LOCAl DEIIVEIY .............eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneneeenssssssssssssssssnsssnnsnnnnnnssssssssssns 40
Appendix 2 — Improving Population Health ......................ovvemmmmmemeemmrreeesreecceans 70
APPENAIX 3 = WOIKFOICE ...ttt eeetettseese e s enmssss s s ennmssssssesnmnssssssnnnnnssssnnnns 87
Appendix 4 — INFraStruCtUre.................eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesreeecesess s s s s e e s s snnnnnnnnsssssssesnns 98
APPENAiX § = FINQNCE............cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenecee s s e enmssss s s s nnnmssssnennnmmsssnnnnnnmmnnnas 106
Appendix 6 — Digital, Data and Technology ...........ceeeueeemmmmeeeeecreennemrecsrennnnnsas 113
Appendix 7 — Improving Operational Performance..............cccceemmeeeeeeurucceeeeennn. 130
Appendix 8 — Supporting System Development................cccoemeeeeeeeeeeeeercceeeeeennn 198

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 2



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I1” System Mid and South Essex

Foreword from our Chair

I’'m delighted to present this, our first Joint Forward Plan, as the Mid and South
Essex Integrated Care System. This plan outlines the joint ambitions of NHS
partners in Mid and South Essex, which both respond to and support the joint health
and wellbeing strategies of our three upper tier local authority partners (Essex
County Council, Southend City Council and Thurrock Council), and the integrated
care strategy that we have jointly developed, under the auspices of the Integrated
Care Partnership.

As is the case for many newly established Integrated Care System, we face a
number of challenges. The Covid pandemic has exacerbated health inequalities in
our population, our primary care services are under extreme pressure, demand on
our mental health, urgent and emergency services are significant, we have long
waits for planned treatments and we are not meeting nationally set standards in
relation to cancer care. Collectively, our providers are carrying significant vacancies
and we over-rely on bank and agency staff to fill rotas — as a result the quality of care
we offer can sometimes suffer. We have a significant underlying structural deficit,
and we are not meeting our planned financial position.

Within these many challenges, we are also a system that has high ambitions to
improve the health and wellbeing of the population that we serve. We have delivered
a number of impressive and long-lasting improvements and have had many
successes. This plan will look to continue to build on those positives. It incorporates
detailed operational and financial plans for the first year, 2023/24, in line with NHS
England guidance, and outlines the ambitions and plans of NHS partners over the
coming 5 years in key areas.

We are committed to continuing to work together to do all that we can to improve
outcomes for our local population.

Professor Michael Thorne CBE
Chair
NHS Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Board

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 3



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I1” System Mid and South Essex

About this Document

This document is the first Joint Forward Plan for NHS partners since the inception of
the statutory Integrated Care System in Mid and South Essex.

The production of this plan has followed guidance issued by NHS England and the
detailed operational planning and financial framework issued to NHS organisations
for 2023/24.

We have split the Joint Forward Plan into three distinct parts:

This first section (part 1) provides an overview of our collective view of the NHS
system over the next 5 years. This describes how the NHS will take forward the
Integrated Care Strategy, taking into account the Joint Local Health and Wellbeing
Strategies of our upper tier local authorities, along with the strategic ambitions of
NHS and wider partners. Part 1 can be considered the executive summary for the
Joint Forward Plan.

Part 2 of this plan describes the underpinning approach we will take to deliver on our
collective ambition to improve population health and reduce health inequalities.

We will seek feedback from partners on this first part as to how well they consider
the plan reflects the current challenges and ambitions of partner organisations and
strategies.

Part 3 of the plan is a series of appendices which describe how we will meet the
statutory requirements placed upon the NHS — offering an overview and a high-level
delivery plan for each Long-Term Plan commitment and statutory function for the
NHS. This section of the plan has been produced by subject matter experts, working
across NHS partners, to reflect on delivery of the NHS Long Term Plan.

The NHS operational planning guidance for 2023/24 has set out clear expectations
for delivery and our collective submissions to NHS England aggregate our shared
ambitions and commitments for 2023/24 — this is year 1 of the Joint Forward Plan.

We will share the appendices in Part 3 with partners, who may wish to review some
or all of the sections. However, through the usual course of our work, it is our
expectation that residents, patients, and partners, will be fully involved in defining
and supporting delivery of these priorities.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 4



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I1” System Mid and South Essex

Part 1: The Collective
Ambition of NHS Partners

Upping our game: in it together for long healthy lives and the best
of care, clinical outcomes and careers.

Introduction

At the time of inception of our Integrated Care System, all partners agreed that our
main objective should be to ‘up our game’. Consequently, NHS partners have agreed
that, in this Part 1 document, we should set out our collective ambitions to both
address the significant challenges we face and set a strategic ambition for the NHS
we want our residents to experience.

NHS partners agree that ‘warm words’ will not deliver this ambition — our leaders and
organisations are committed to working together and with local authority partners in
a way not seen previously, with concrete agreements and actions, to deliver for our
population. We realise that improvement across the board means opening up our
individual organisations so that they can benefit from our collective ideas and
experience while respecting our statutory independence.

We want people to live longer, healthy lives, to be able to access the best of care
and to experience the best clinical outcomes, and for us to be exceptionally able to
attract good people to work with us, recognising we offer meaningful careers. We
are clear that delivering this ambition must start now and reflect our challenging
starting position.

We are committed to delivery of the Integrated Care Strategy, recently co-developed
with partners through our Integrated Care Partnership. The Integrated Care Strategy
draws heavily upon the joint health and wellbeing strategies of our upper tier local
authorities, and so we expect that our plans will contribute to the delivery of those
strategies through our Primary Care Networks and neighbourhoods, the Alliances
and (where appropriate) across the Mid & South Essex system.

Central to our Integrated Care Strategy is our desire to see residents united with
health and social care services around the single ‘Common Endeavour’ of
reducing inequalities together.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forwward Plan 2023 5



Mid and South Essex
'7 Integrated Care

¥ System Mid and South Essex

:

Integrated Care Partnership

System Pﬁﬂrm
e

The shape of our Partnership Workforce Recruitment Ways of Working

Retention and Development
Broad & inclusive
membership

Engagement with
residents & partners

Equal value of all in
the partnership

System, places,
neighbourhoods

Wider

Determinants System

Pressures

Space & time for
relationship building

Sovereighnty of
each organisation
Common

Babies, Endevour
Childran Reducing Adult

EREL I (nequalities Care
People Together

CORE20
PLUSS

Joint werking
Responsibility

Digital, Early
Data and Intervention

Shared Records and Preservation

Use of resources

Refined services
& pathways

Acting Together

Fig 1: The Mid and South Essex ICS Integrated Care Strategy, plan on
a page, March 2023.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 6



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Our Vision

A health and care partnership working for a better quality of life in a
thriving mid and south Essex, with every resident making informed
choices in a strengthened health and care system.

As NHS partners in the Integrated Care Partnership, the Common Endeavour
expresses our collective desire to work to eliminate avoidable health and care
inequalities by creating a broad and equal partnership of individuals, organisations,
and agencies, focussing on prevention, early intervention and providing high-quality,
joined-up health and social care services, when and where people need them.

Our Integrated Care Strategy (Integrated Care Strateqgy link) states that this cannot
be achieved by statutory partners alone — and we are committed to ensuring
voluntary, community, faith and social enterprise organisations, residents, and others
are invited to join us in our Common Endeavour. Together we will significantly
increase focus on individual and community engagement, wider determinants, early
intervention, and prevention.

The Scale of the Challenge
We must be honest about the challenges faced by the NHS locally.

e Demand for complex care across all services is rising as our population ages;
we often duplicate service offerings or fail to deliver the joined-up,
personalised care.

e We are not well resourced in terms of workforce — with particular shortfalls in
primary care, and significant nurse, support worker, allied health professionals
and in some clinical specialities, medicine vacancy rates. Both recruiting and
retaining staff has been problematic in recent years.

e We are challenged operationally — struggling to maintain standards in some
areas whilst escalation capacity usually reserved for winter is often required
year-round. Length of stay in our services has increased significantly.

e We have a substantial historical structural deficit and we have failed to deliver
our financial improvement plans. We have posted a system financial deficit for
2022/23, driven largely by a failure to deliver efficiencies and an over-reliance
on bank and agency staffing — underpinned by rising demand in certain areas
of care, more complex treatment regimes in some specialities and a failure to
prevent chronic disease exacerbation. A key consequence of our deficit is that
we have been limited in the investment we have been able to make in
transforming health and care. We do not wish to cede control over our
operations that is a likely consequence of not resolving our deficit. We wish to
retain our autonomy within the agreed NHS framework.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 7


https://www.midandsouthessex.ics.nhs.uk/about/mse-integrated-care-strategy-2023-33/%20%20describes

TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e Our patients have not received the highest quality care in some cases — we
have quality and safety challenges across many services.

e We are failing to meet many of the statutory requirements set out in the NHS
Constitution.

e Constrained capital is now creating pressures and limiting our ability to
transform due to irretrievable equipment/infrastructure breakdown.

In order to turn this set of circumstances around, we need not only to do things
differently, but to do different things. As NHS partners, we are making a set of
commitments in this joint forward plan that we must take forward together.

Commitments

Over the course of this Joint Forward Plan, NHS partners are committed to the
following actions (further detail can be found below and, in the appendices,):

e A focus on reducing health inequalities experienced throughout our
population. We will focus our work on delivering against the Core20+5
frameworks for adults and children at neighbourhood, alliance and system
level, using a population health improvement approach.

e The delivery of local, personalised, coordinated services, delivered
through Integrated Neighbourhood Teams, managed through our four
Alliances.

e Making significant progress on reducing avoidable mortality in the following
areas:
o Cancer
o Cardiovascular disease
o Respiratory conditions

e Increasing our work, in partnership, on the following preventative activities:
o Tobacco cessation
o Healthy weight
o Physical activity

e Continuing our work to amplify clinical and professional leadership in our
system — using our Stewardship programme and leadership development
opportunities to develop a future view of services that enable the highest
professional standards, and a multi-professional approach.

¢ Increasing the amount we invest ‘up-stream’ in evidence-based
interventions and preventative activities that take place closer to the
resident — underpinned by a commitment to understanding the impact of our
work on health inequalities and ensuring we have explored the prevention
aspect of all investments.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 8



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

e Using population health management to support us in setting ambitious
targets for prevention investment annually. Our ability to do so will require a
concomitant reduction in crisis/acute sector spend and a commitment to use
available transformational funding differently, evaluating and embedding
embed what works.

e Developing a clear demand and capacity model for the system that is used to
underpin integrated operational decision-making that is organisationally
agnostic and focussed on how best to meet the needs of the population.

e Investing strategically in our Voluntary and Community, Faith and Social
Enterprise to support wellbeing, prevention and early intervention,

e Continuing to evolve our relationship with communities — involving them in
designing service offers and being open with them about the limitations and
challenges we face.

e Placing an emphasis on equality, diversity and inclusion — for our
workforce and our patients.

e Learning from and building upon existing and future innovative practice.

e Considering social value in our approach, linking to our Anchor Charter.

Ground Rules

A number of ‘ground rules’ have been agreed, either through national directives
applied to all Integrated Care Systems, or through local agreement. These are
summarised below:

e As a system in deficit, a ‘triple lock’ lock is applied to any new investment
across revenue and capital monies. This means that investments above a
certain value or those which are unbudgeted will be scrutinised by NHS
England as well as by the Integrated Care Board and provider Boards.

e Resources are allocated in line with national directions where they apply.
e Growth funding will flow to providers where growth in activity is demonstrated.

e A joint commitment to deliver against a trajectory for vacancy reduction (and
concomitant reduction in bank and agency which will be stratified by
speciality) along with targeted actions on recruitment, retention, adoption and
spread of new roles and securing a sustainable future pipeline of staff.

e A programme to rationalise estate and backlog maintenance bills is agreed
and delivered.

e Demand and capacity are clearly understood and underpins decisions on
investment, delivery and operational performance.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForR¥ard Plan 2023 9



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e Access to elective care will be based on clinical prioritisation, health
inequalities, and a commitment to reducing the longest waiting times within
core levels of activity agreed across NHS and independent providers.

e The Integrated Care Board will reduce its running costs from £22m to £17.2m
by 15t April 2025.

e Collective prioritisation and deployment of transformation funds (subject to the
triple lock described above) will be targeted towards those areas that support
the reduction of health inequalities, focus on prevention and generate a
system return on investment that is impactful for our population.

e The primary care ‘working together’ framework is implemented to incentivise
proactive care.

e Evidence based efficiency programmes will be delivered, underpinned by
equality and health inequality impact assessments for all programmes.

Our Key Strategic Ambitions

We have established a Chief Executive Forum spanning the Integrated Care Board,
Mid & South Essex Foundation Trust, Essex Partnership University Trust, North-East
London Foundation Trust and Provide Community Interest Company. The
commitments outlined above have thus been agreed and recommended by the
partner organisation’s respective Chief Executive Officers before being adopted by
the Integrated Care Board and provider Boards.

Over and above the commitments in the 2023/24 operational plan, and the delivery
plans outlined in the appendices of this Joint Forward Plan, the Chief Executive
Officers / Boards have committed to:

Improving Quality
Access, Experience and Outcomes

Why is this important
Our residents describe difficulties in accessing healthcare services.

Our regulators have placed enforcement and improvement actions on some of our
providers.

Our clinical and professional leaders have a pivotal role in ensuring quality and we
must support them to deliver the best quality services they can.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 10



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Use continuous improvement approaches within an Ongoing
overall quality management framework for all aspects
of the system.

Deliver and sustain the ‘must’ and ‘should do’ actions, | March 2024
as identified by the Care Quality Commission Mid and
South Essex Foundation Trust and Essex Partnership
University Trust, to improve quality of services for our
population.

Make required improvements to Maternity, Referral to | September 2023
Treatment and Cancer performance so that
Undertakings are removed (Mid and South Essex
Foundation Trust)

Improve in patient experience of Primary Care through | 2025 onwards
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams process evidenced
by an improvement in National patient satisfaction
Survey outcomes by 15% (to 80%) by 2025 and 25%
(to 90%) by 2027 from current values of median
satisfaction scores of 65%.

Health Inequalities

Our Common Endeavour — the NHS must play its part in reducing health inequalities

Why is this important

We know that existing health inequalities have been exacerbated by Covid, our
integrated care strategy, adopted by all partners, has reducing health inequality as
the unifying ‘common endeavour’.

We must listen to the experience of individuals and communities regarding their
experiences, and work with them to help us design support, together.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Working together with partners on the wider March 2024
determinants of health, raising awareness of the
important role that local authorities, Voluntary and
Community, Faith and Social Enterprise and
communities play in prevention and early intervention
and supporting new partnership approaches.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fo¥ard Plan 2023 11



T Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Deliver our agreed plans in relation to Core20+5 March 2024
frameworks for adults and children with defined
programmes for the most deprived populations, our
plus groups (at local and system level) and the
prescribed clinical areas.

Further development of the Anchor Charter, and September 2023
through the Integrated Care Partnership Outcomes
Framework, demonstrate impact for our local
population.

Use experience-based co-design, learning from September 2023
innovation, coproduction and data to understand
frequent users of our services (health and care) —
developing mechanisms to gather insights, through
lived experience, to better understand and implement
support needs

Financial Sustainability

A collective commitment to live within our means.

Why is this important

As a system, we ended the 2022/23 financial year with a deficit of £46.4m. We
worked collectively to deliver in-year financial improvement and we will continue to
develop our plans as a system to deliver financial stability.

We are subject to increased regulatory financial scrutiny from our NHS England
National and Regional offices because of our position.

We must balance the need for financial sustainability with the need to innovate and
invest in areas that require improvement and can demonstrate benefit for patients.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Commit to delivering improvements in productivity by April 2023 and ongoing
understanding our system cost base and developing
our clinical stewardship approach to support collective
value-based decision-making.

Deliver the action required to remove costs and April 2023 and ongoing
increase efficiencies as a system, using benchmarking
and local intelligence, acknowledging that efforts in one
space may create benefit in another but as a system
the ultimate benefit is to our residents.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 12



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

NHS

Mid and South Essex

What we will do When we will do it by

Agree and deliver a programme of corporate function
consolidation across co-terminus partners, to offer best
value to our population.

April 2023 and ongoing

Agree and deliver against trajectory for vacancy
reduction (and concomitant reduction in bank and
agency which will be stratified by speciality) through a
dedicated programme of system-wide recruitment,
retention and new role development.

April 2023 and ongoing

Accelerate our joined-up approach to Estates, as part
of a system-wide Infrastructure Strategy, which will
support efficient use of resources across the system.

April 2023 and ongoing

Consider opportunities presented through delegation of
specialised commissioning including the exploration of
more affordable care models, to offer best value to our
population.

April 2023 and ongoing

Reduce the Integrated Care Boards running costs from
£22m to £17.2m by April ‘25

1 April 2025

Operational Delivery

A commitment to improving our operational planning and delivery functions

Why is this important

Competing organisational needs and priorities, and differing levels of capacity and
capability can distort operational delivery that is focussed on offering the best care to

our patients.

Through benchmarking, we know that we can make improvements in productivity

and access to services.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Initial demand and capacity model including whole
system data (beds) developed to enable
organisationally agnostic decision-making.

April 2023 (initial)

Further enable demand and capacity modelling to
support decisions on future community capacity (virtual
and bedded) and operational / clinical interfaces.

May 2023

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fo¥ard Plan 2023

13



4
v

<
»

v
4
v LS

{37 System

4

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Consider, with partners, longer-term capacity
requirements for care settings, to include health and
social care settings.

July 2023

Identify a rolling programme of productivity
improvements, including future service delivery models,
aligned with tools such as Getting It Right First Time,

Model Hospital.

April 2023 onwards

Supporting our Workforce

Recruit and retain the best staff, give local people opportunities to work across

health and care services.

Why is this important

Current pipelines for professional staff across health and social care will not meet

demand trajectories. We must commit to new roles and ways of working now, in

order to see a difference by the end of this Joint Forward Plan period.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

enduring vacancies based upon the metrics of provider
performance and the known opportunity within our
undergraduate pipeline.

Develop a system-wide approach to workforce planning | March 2023
that is closely aligned to finance and activity planning.
Through the planning round quantify the volume of March 2023

Agree the volume of enduring vacancies that will be
replaced with new roles in each organisation to include
Training Nurse Associates, Advanced Clinical
Practitioners, Physician Associate, enhanced
Healthcare Support Workers roles and apprenticeships.

April 2023 onwards

‘one workforce’ initiative which champions the
recruitment, on boarding and education of new entrants
to health and care. In addition, the academy will provide
educational and Continued Professional Development
opportunities, career coaching and mentorship to

Stratify our workforce hotspots by speciality and June 2023
undertake focused intervention on recruitment,

retention, transformation and staff wellbeing.

Launch our Healthcare Support Worker academy as a | June 2023

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023

14



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

support, value and retain Healthcare Support Worker
and map out career pathways into apprenticeship
pathways across a range of professional groups
including nursing, Advanced Health Practitioners and
medicine.

Let staff lead
Growing our stewards for the future

Widespread development of quality improvement and leadership skills

Why is this important

We know that we must enhance the capability and capacity of our clinical and
professional staff to lead and engage with transformation activities across the
Integrated Care System.

Not only will this ensure that services are forward focused, and use the range of
skills available to us, but it can also contribute to better satisfaction at work and
enhance retention.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Delivery of agreed clinical stewardship training and April 2023 and ongoing
development modules to enable formation of
stewardship groups for all agreed care areas.

Launch hosting arrangements to enable testing and September 2023
implementation of stewardship of resources at the
level of a whole care area level — with stroke care as
the first pilot. Stewards and host organisation to work
together on care area.

Create the environment to support integrated, multi- Ongoing
organisational, multi-disciplinary working; Removing
silo working and enabling person-focussed, asset-
based thinking in the delivery of services.

Population health improvement
Focus on prevention, early intervention and targeted approaches.
Providing more personalised care that addresses existing health inequalities.

Measure what matters to our residents.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forsvard Plan 2023 15



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Why is this important

Traditionally the NHS has focused on treatment and curative activities. While we
have, more recently concentrated on early identification and intervention, we
recognise that we must play a full part, with our public health teams and wider
partners, on prevention. Our Population Health Improvement Board will support both
the Integrated Care Board and the Integrated Care Partnership to realise these
ambitions.

Our Integrated Care Strategy outlined commitments, encapsulated in a series of “I”
and “We” statements, which we fully adopt.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Over the course of this Joint Forward Plan, we commit | March 2028
to shifting resources to evidence-based upstream and
preventative activities (described in detail in the
appendices) using population health management
information and benchmarking to determine the

ambition.

Full implementation of the personalised care March 2024
framework.

Refresh the Integrated Care Strategy Outcomes May 2023

Framework and set medium and long-term ambitions
for specific work programmes.

Develop baseline and measures for the ‘I’ and ‘We’ April 2023 onwards
statements from the Integrated Care Strategy and
report these via the Integrated Care Partnership.

Digital, Data and Technology
Gearing up our system to become more digitally enabled

Supporting our residents to use digital tools

Why is this important

We have historically struggled to join up our digital offer. We are making great
progress in this area and recognise that we must involve patients and professionals
in our future plans.

We have a poor data/business intelligence infrastructure and recognise the need to
enable staff with these specialist skills to work together to join up our approach and
ensure best data quality.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 16



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

We will look to exploit opportunities to ensure health and care data is shared
amongst professionals to enable improved decision-making and care provision for
our residents.

We will look to empower residents to have better control and access to their own
records.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Procure and install a single Electronic Patient Record | March 2025
across our main providers.

Implement the Shared Care Record which is June 2024
accessible to health and care partners.

Continue to build our strategic data platform (Athena) | Rolling programme
to enable sharing of data to enhance population health
improvement, planning and operational delivery.

Work to create a virtual data/business intelligence March 2024
team to enable resilience, learning and improve data
quality and literacy.

Implement an integrated digital patient interface for March 2024
our residents.

Through our local authority partners, increase the use | Rolling programme
of digital social care records.

Improve our core infrastructure and access to services | Rolling programme
across partner organisations...

Create a digital capability approach to support our Rolling programme
professional workforce.

Drive efficiencies and improved workflow through Rolling programme
Robot Process Automation.

Mobilising and Supporting Communities
The assets in our communities and supporting them to flourish
Why is this important

People/residents have told us, through the development of the integrated care
strategy, that they want to be involved, informed and supported to take responsibility
for their own health and wellbeing and that of their loved ones. In return they want us

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fo¥ard Plan 2023 17



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

to be open and honest about the challenges we face, and enable them access to
personalised, integrated services, close to where they live.

We recognise and appreciate that as NHS partners we need to improve our
interaction with individuals and communities, building trust in our services and
enabling people to self-care, support one another.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Develop a model/blueprint for Integrated September 2023
Neighbourhood Teams categorising the service offer,
staff model and interaction with our Voluntary and
Community, Faith and Social Enterprise against
population need.

Working with partners, develop an asset-based September 2023
community development approach.

Fully establish our Community and Voluntary Sector June 2023
Assembly aligned to system and place through our
Alliances.

Establish a partnership-based Co-Production and June 2023
Engagement Steering Group to ensure effective
planning, accountability and inclusion.

Establish an influencer network to ensure we can June 2023
diversify our approach to community building and

engagement.

Develop and implement an engagement impact September 2023

framework to ensure efficacy and inclusion in our
engagement approaches.

Deliver an ongoing series of community conversations, | June 2023 onwards
workshops, seminars, and engagement activities,
which draw together a much wider set of contributors
into the work of our Integrated Care System.

Grow our Community Campaign approach, develop a | June 2023
Human Library and Lived Experience network, which
will ensure a better approach to immersive practice as
a system.

Develop a paired learning Leadership Programme with | December 2023
and for the Voluntary and Community, Faith and Social
Enterprise and our workforce.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 18



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

Improving our System Oversight Framework rating

Why is this important

Providers are subject to a range of interventions (from national and regional and the
Care Quality Commission) — there is a risk this will impact provider, and potentially
Integrated Care Board, System Oversight Framework ratings.

We are agreed as NHS partners that we would wish to remain within current System
Oversight Framework ratings and be enabled to deliver our improvement plans.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Work with our regulators to ensure effective oversight | March 2023 and ongoing
and assurance of our collective activities.

Research and Innovation

Bringing benefits for residents, staff and the local economy.

Why is this important

Research and Innovation are integral parts of the NHS constitution and key enablers
in driving improvements in clinical care.

We have an established track record of innovation — Mid and South Essex
Foundation Trust host national innovation schemes, and we have an Integrated Care
System innovation fellowship programme. There are opportunities to build on this.

Research active organisations are beneficial for residents and staff alike — and have
important benefits for the economy. We have the scale and scope to generate
opportunities and maximise our research activity.

We should link these activities to a wider commercial strategy for the system.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

Develop a system-wide research and innovation October 2023
strategy that supports a culture of research and sets
our ambition for research infrastructure, income and
participation.

Develop a commercial strategy for the system that Autumn 2023
enables us to build our approach to working with

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fors¥ard Plan 2023 19



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

NHS

Mid and South Essex

industry partners, universities, University College
London Partners (as our Academic Health Science
Network partner) and research organisations.

Further developing our system

Why is this important

We are committed to on-going development of our integrated care system.

How will we do it

What we will do When we will do it by

The Community Collaborative will operate under a
single contract (commencing in shadow form for
2023/24).

April 2023

The Community Collaborative will be part of the NHS
England accelerator collaborative programme.

April 2023 — March 2024

Our mental health provider continues to operate as
part of the specialist provider mental health
collaborative.

April 2023 and ongoing

commissioning functions as defined by NHS England.

We are exploring a mental health collaborative September 2023
approach across Mid and South Essex.

The Integrated Care Board will assume delegated April 2023
pharmacy, optometry and dentistry commissioning

responsibilities.

Play a full part in delegation of specialist April 2024

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023

20



T Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Part 2 — Improving
population health and
reducing health
inequalities

This is our first Joint Forward Plan. We have taken the approach of splitting our plan
into our high level, collective ambitions (see Part 1) and in this Part 2 document, we
have outlined the key enablers to deliver the NHS’ contribution to the common
endeavour outlined in our Integrated Care Strategy — to reduce health inequalities,
together.

In preparing this Joint Forward Plan, we have had regard for the regulatory and
statutory requirements, particularly the 2023/34 planning guidance, and the four key
aims established for Integrated Care Systems:

e Improving outcomes in population health and health care.
e Tackling inequalities in outcomes, experience, and access.
e Enhancing productivity and value for money.

e Supporting broader social and economic development.

We have also had regard for the ‘Triple Aim’ established for NHS bodies that plan
and commission services, requiring them to consider the effects of decisions on:

e The health and wellbeing of the people of England (including inequalities in
that health and wellbeing).

e The quality of services provided or arranged by both themselves and other
relevant bodies (including inequalities in benefits from those services).

e The sustainable and efficient use of resources by both themselves and other
relevant bodies

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥ard Plan 2023 21



T Mid and South Essex
»1 I Integrated Care m

'A
‘hv'A

{37 System Mid and South Essex

Integrated Care

Although this is a plan for NHS organisations, we work closely with wider partners
across the integrated care system.

Our partnership comprises the following partners:

Thre(_a_top tier local Over 149 GP practices, Three community and
authorities and seven operating from over 200 mental health service
district, borough and i i i . :

Istri ug sites, forming 27 Primary providers working as a

city councils Care Networks . )
community collaborative

Nine voluntary and One hospital trust with A range of other
community sector main sites in Southend, partners, including Essex
associations Basildon and Chelmsford Police, Fire and our three

local universities

One ambulance trust Three Healthwatch
organisations

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 22



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Our priority is to integrate services at every level:

Neighbourhoods - based around our primary care networks, we are working to
develop integrated neighbourhood teams as the footprint for people to access
support and care locally, be that through their own networks and communities,
through contact with community and voluntary sector services, or statutory health
and care services.

Alliances - where statutory and non-statutory partners are coming together in
geographical areas to support asset-based approaches. Our four alliances are
progressing in building relationships and partnerships locally and further detail can
be found at Appendix 1.

System — working together through our integrated care partnership, comprising
partners including our upper tier local authorities, our district, borough and city
Councils, community and voluntary sector organisations, universities and NHS
partners.

The Importance of Local Delivery

The golden thread to our approach is to work with our local communities. Our
Alliances have made positive developments to link with residents and the Voluntary
and Community, Faith and Social Enterprise locally. Alliances take a lead role in
delivering and coordinating work on health inequalities and prevention, using data to
make evidence-based interventions, with a clear focus on the wider determinants of
health. From an NHS perspective, a key deliverable is to make improvements in
primary care and ensure local health services meet the needs of the local population.

Appendix 1 describes our local approach.

Stewardship

Stewardship is our vehicle for achieving the triple aim in Mid and South Essex:
improving the health and wellbeing of our population, improving the quality of our
services, and using our resources efficiently and sustainably, whilst addressing
existing inequalities within each of these.

The programme is based upon the work of Nobel Prize winner Elinor Ostrom, who
studied the sustainable, equitable management of shared resources by the resource
users. It applies her ground-breaking work to our health and care settings.

Stewardship in Mid and South Essex: bringing ‘resource-users’ (frontline and
back-office staff and residents) together within care areas to act as stewards —
delivering the greatest value for residents from our pooled resources.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForiWard Plan 2023 23



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Over the past two years we have developed significant, unique capacity via our
cohort 1 stewardship groups (Ageing Well, Cancer, Cardiac care, Respiratory,
Stroke and Urgent and Emergency Care). These groups have now begun to provide
important leadership within their care areas, resulting in both tangible and intangible
changes and improvements.

Selected highlights:

Cancer: With active support and encouragement from the Cancer Stewards, a new
day zero Patient Tracker List approach was launched in November 2022. At that
point there were around 1,000 patients waiting 62 days for a diagnosis after a
General Practitioner referral. This has subsequently been reduced to 595 and is
expected to be under 100 by March 2023. The day zero Patient Tracker List is a real
game changer. The action-oriented strategy ensures patients who don’t have cancer
are appropriately and speedily informed and taken off cancer pathways, meaning
those with cancer are quickly and appropriately directed to the correct service. The
team’s next focus is on prostate cancer pathways.

Ageing Well: Through the guidance and efforts of the Ageing Well Stewards, the
Mid and South Essex electronic frailty care coordination system register was
designed, built and launched in April 2022. It now has more than 8,000 people with
frailty and dementia added. This resource enables prioritisation and increased
visibility of residents with frailty and complex needs for more seamless, proactive
and effective care coordination between providers. The team have also championed
the Frailty Consultant hotline, which now takes over 350 calls / month, and is
associated with admission avoidance rates at 80%.

Challenges and areas for development

Role: Different groups have engaged in different mixes of strategic and operational
work, influenced by group membership and care area needs. Awareness of
stewardship and the groups is not currently widespread across the system at all
levels.

Relationships: Tensions have occurred over relationships with existing
transformational capacity, or where such capacity is lacking.

Resources: Whilst stewardship teams have been developed at a care area level,
care area budgets remain unclear and accountability for resource management
remains distributed by organisation. This has restricted stewards’ opportunities,
leading to a focus on service improvement within existing siloed budgets, rather than
being able to meaningfully steward and help flex resources across settings for
greater population benefit within their care area.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 24



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Opportunities:

e Stewardship positioned as a key enabler to achieve the triple aim, with
hosting of whole care areas necessary to unlock further potential.

e System-wide communication of the vision of stewardship for whole system
transformation rather than incremental improvement.

e Empowerment of stewardship groups to influence long term plans.

Through one of our own clinicians and National Clinical Lead for Innovation,
Professor Tony Young, we continue to support in partnership Anglia Ruskin
University deliver the world’s largest and most successful workforce development
programme focussing on clinical innovation. The NHS Clinical Entrepreneurship
programme is now entering its 7th cohort with many of those successfully applying
working within Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust, and equally we have seen
innovation adopted into our Trust because of connections made through NHS
Clinical Entrepreneurship Programme.

Mid and South Essex innovation works closely with our local Academic Health
Science Network University College London Partners, HealthTech Enterprise, Health
Education England, and Accelerated Access Collaborative, local universities, as part
of partnership working. Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System has achieved
great successes with partners including Ford Motor Group for the Essex Covid
Vax/Respiratory Van and British Heart Foundation for the BP@Home solutions.

One example of this that we have heard from local development strategies and
health and wellbeing plans, “Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust is a lead
steering partner with Essex County Council and Basildon District Council to consider
the feasibility of a Health and Social Care Innovation Incubator in the Basildon area.
Citizens with innovative ideas would be supported to develop and grow, building on
existing relationships with our Universities, Enterprise Hubs, and local Industry
partners to address the wider determinants of health through grass-roots innovation”.

Further information on Stewardship can be found at Appendix 2.

Improving Population Health

At the heart of our work is a desire to improve population health. We know that we
can only do this by working in partnership with our local authority colleagues, with
public health teams, professionals and residents themselves. To help guide our
efforts and maintain accountability, we have established a Mid and South Essex
Population Health Improvement Board. This brings together our partners to align
our work on:

e Population Health Management
¢ Inequalities

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forivard Plan 2023 25



At Mid and South Essex m
vi [ Integrated Care
r< -
{37 System Mid and South Essex
e Prevention and early intervention
e Personalised care
e Anchor institutions
I Population Health Improvement : Improving Health & Wellbeing of the Population.

Needs Assessments Overall population health [ Priorities (TBC)
- JSNAs

Interventions

- Outcome S—— Populationintervention Triangle
framework :;:atcct)v;::?gertldency . Programme Alliances
- HIdata packs n 4 K- -8 ....'
- Local insights 3 Canc-er o
=1 Cardiovascular
I<}| disease
EQIA/HIA/HEAT [2 Mental Health
- New & existing 8 Maternity i
services 71| Respiratory Communities
=2 Children & Young Strategy
Population & People
Community Creating opportunity

engagement/co - Stewardship
production insight p d P econdary ertiary programmes
Prevention Prevention Prevention
(lifestyle/risk |”|(early (Condition

Data capture &
knowledge sharing

Moving upstream

Enablers

Financial framework
- Proportionate universalism

Intelligence Infrastructure Intervention
- Blcapacity |- Leadership - Evidence
- HI - Governance based
dashboard |[. |G - Workforce

(differential investment)
- Investment in primary care
areas of deprivation
- Targeted health
inequalities funding

- Target - Programme - Care
setting & Management integration
trajectories | - Integrated

data &

platform

*Above diagram of health improvement governance arrangements across MSE.

The Population Health Improvement Board has a dual line of reporting — to both the
Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Partnership, to bring together the work around
wider determinants of health; and to the Integrated Care Board, to drive
improvements around specific healthcare priorities. The Population Health
Improvement Board’s programme has a broad remit which is summarised below.

To deliver our ambition the Population Heath Improvement Board will ensure that the
needs of our population and existing health inequalities are understood and areas for
intervention prioritised with an emphasis on moving prevention work upstream.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 26



4

3 Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Reducing Health Inequalities — the
Core20Plus5 Frameworks

Reducing health inequalities reflects both a core statutory duty that we share as NHS
organisations, and also the central ‘common endeavour’ from our integrated care
strategy (Integrated Care Strateqgy link).

Within the NHS, we have prioritised our work around the Core20+5 framework for
adults and children. This enables us to:

Concentrate efforts on the 20% most deprived communities within our ICS,
as identified by the national Index of Multiple Deprivation.

Identify and work with ‘plus groups’— communities that may experience
poorer access to good health outcomes as a result of their characteristics —
this includes, but is not limited to, black and minority ethnic residents, carers,
people with living with a learning disability or some neurodiverse residents,
people at risk of homelessness, veterans, gypsy, Roma and traveller groups,
refugees, asylum seekers and migrants. We have identified these groups at
both system and Alliance level and targeted our engagement resources
towards working with communities directly to understand their experiences
and see how best we can support their health and care needs. Focus on a
small number of clinical conditions —

Adults [ Children and Young People

Maternity Asthma
Severe Mental lliness Diabetes
Chronic respiratory disease Epilepsy
Early cancer diagnosis Oral Health
Hypertension case finding and lipid Mental health

optimal management

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Foriard Plan 2023 27


https://www.midandsouthessex.ics.nhs.uk/publications/integrated-care-strategy/

TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

We recognise the need to embed a health inequalities approach to all of our work so
that we think about this as a first principle in all that we do. We must therefore:

e Improve data collection and reporting to ensure improved completeness of
recording regarding ethnicity, inclusion groups and other plus group status
such carers to enable us to support these residents better.

e Continually review the restoration and delivery of services to ensure that at
risk groups are not further disadvantaged.

e Mitigate digital exclusion, through adoption of our agreed digital exclusion
principles, to support residents in accessing digital services through skills
development.

e Embed the comprehensive use of Health Inequalities Impact Assessments
with identified actions delivered.

The Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Strategy common endeavour of
Reducing inequalities requires us to work together to create a broad and equal
partnership of individuals, organisations and agencies, focussed on prevention and
early intervention, to provide high-quality, joined-up health and care services, when
and where people need them.

Reducing inequalities is a complex picture with no single action or single
organisation able to have impact alone, it requires a sustained organised
collaborative focus. The adapted Labonte model summarises the complex system
that causes inequalities to thrive. It encapsulates the different factors that impact our
health, where they stem from (the wider determinants of health), how they interact,
multiply, reinforce and act both in sequence and simultaneously.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 28



T Mid and South Essex
.1 I3 Integrated Care m
< r<

{37 System Mid and South Essex

Physiological impacts
= High blood pressure
= High cholesterol
= Anxiety/depression

Health behaviours
Smoking
Diet
Alcohaol

Wider determinants of health Psycho-social factors
Income and debt Isolation
Employment / quality of work Social support
Education and skills Social networks
Houszing Self-esteem and self-worth
Matural and built environmemnt Ferceived level of control
Access to goods [ services Meaning/purpose of life
Power and discrimination

Our approach builds on the adapted Labonte model and reflects that interventions
must focus on ‘treating’ the environment and place and not just people, as acting on
only one factor is likely to provide a partial and incomplete response to the situation.

Through the Population Health Improvement Board, we will:

e Deliver a series of deep dives bringing together partners to take a holistic view
of need and provision for specific Plus groups.

e Improve the identification and data recording for Plus groups to take a data
driven approach to identify current gaps and inequalities.

e Collaborate with partners to map community assets

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥ard Plan 2023 29



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Case Studies

There are already examples of good practice within the system which we learn
and build upon including:

e ‘Southend the Southend Integrated care for Homeless’ programme link

e ‘Understanding Inequality project’, run in partnership by Mid and South
Essex NHS Foundation Trust and Healthwatch Essex involving people
with learning disabilities to improve to access and experiences of hospital
services (Understanding Inequality Project
link)https://www.understanding-inequalities.ac.uk/

Building on the success of the COVID vaccination and testing sessions
arranged during the pandemic, a programme of health outreach sessions
is underway for Gypsies, Roma, Travellers and Showmen who are in
Thurrock. This has involved partners such as Thurrock Council, Essex
Partnership University Trust, North-East London Foundation Trust,
Inclusion Visions, one local GP practice and Thurrock CVS. It is known
that there are many people living on the sites with a range of health

conditions, including: people who fell under the definition of Clinically
Extremely Vulnerable during the COVID-19 pandemic; older persons with
mobility issues; individuals registered with Long Term Conditions; and a
likely greater number whose health conditions are not registered

Mid and South Essex Anchor programme supporting people living in
some of the most deprived areas of Southend to secure quality work at
Southend Hospital or in another local health or care organisations (MSE
Anchor programme link)

‘Core20plus Connectors programme’ focusing on Chronic Obstructive
Pulmonary Disease and working within the six most deprived wards in
Southend. (Southend Core20plus Connectors Programme link)

Improving Health and Digital Literacy for those in most deprived wards in
Thurrock by working with library teams who already support volunteers to
deliver digital skills training to residents. (Improving Health and Digital
Literacy in Thurrock link)

Utilising the ‘Outreach bus’ 'to visit deprived areas in Canvey to increase
pertension case finding, cancer screening and vaccination uptake,
ealth and wellbeing advice and onward reterral thus increasing contac
with appropriate services and alleviating loneliness and increasing
wellbeing.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 30


https://www.westcentralpcn.nhs.uk/local-support-advice/southend-integrated-healthcare-for-homeless-initiative/
https://www.understanding-inequalities.ac.uk/
https://www.understanding-inequalities.ac.uk/
https://www.understanding-inequalities.ac.uk/
https://www.mse.nhs.uk/anchor-programme
https://www.mse.nhs.uk/anchor-programme
https://democracy.southend.gov.uk/documents/s52722/Presentation%20slides%20for%20Chief%20Office%20Healthwatch.pdf
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/digital-and-customer-experience-strategy/theme-1-digital-thurrock
https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/digital-and-customer-experience-strategy/theme-1-digital-thurrock

TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e The Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System has been successful
in becoming one of seven Integrated Care System Core20PLUS
accelerator sites and a Core20PLUS Connectors site.

e Through our community engagement programme, we will listen, engage
and co-produce future interventions.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fo¥ard Plan 2023 31



3 Mid and South Essex
! Integrated Care m
{37 System Mid and South Essex

Case Study — Children’s Oral Health

This group is overseen by the Children and Young People Growing Well Board and
has representation from key partner organisations across the Integrated Care
System.

The Child Oral Health Inequalities Steering Group has sent out key objectives to
drive collaborative action to toward reducing Children and Young People oral health
inequalities. The identified principles of these actions will be:

e Identify areas for improvement in reducing oral health inequalities across
Mid and South Essex

Inform and influence wider system Children and Young People policies
and programs which would improve child oral health

Identify opportunities to implement oral health prevention strategies into
current Children and Young People workstreams

Mapping of current child oral health prevention activities across Mid and
South Essex and identify gaps for improvement

Use a data informed approach to drive preventative activities in those
areas of highest need

Inform the wider system on sustainable action to reduce oral health
inequalities

Using the Core20PLUS5 we have identified our priority PLUS groups as Special
Educational Needs and Disability, Looked After Children, Deprivation, Refugees,
Asylum Seekers and Migrants; to deliver targeted preventative actions. In addition to
preventative actions, we are working with commissioners to increase access to
dental services. This has included identification of dentists prioritising access for
Looked After Children.

Waiting list analysis has been undertaken for those children under 10 currently on
elective general anaesthetic waiting lists within Mid and South Essex Foundation
Trust. Complete analysis will be extended to included waiting list data from
Community Dental Services. Trends identified will inform an action plan to mitigate
disparities identified.

Implementation of a supervised toothbrushing program in partnership with
Community Dental Services is being rolled out to 20 pilot sites in areas of deprivation
within Southend and Basildon. It is expected that on evaluation this will be scaled up
to further sites across Mid and South Essex. Further planning is in progress to

adopt positive oral health bhaviours.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 32



T Mid and South Essex

v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex
Case Study:

The approach undertaken by Mid and South Essex Foundation NHS Trust to review
and deliver action plans that begin to address inequalities seen in their waiting list
when viewed by ethnicity, age, area of deprivation is being adopted more widely by
community services. This will become a rolling programme of work.

Health Inequalities Funding

As part of our commitment to health inequalities, the Health Inequalities Funding is
committed recurrently to deliver improved outcomes for the population of Mid and
South Essex. In 2022/23 the NHS invested £3.9m to support innovative partnership
solutions around the Core20plus5 priorities that were identified as meeting local
needs by our four Alliances. The range of projects that were supported include:

Basildon and Brentwood Alliance

Child oral health

Transition from primary to
secondary schools in deprived
areas

Physical activity schemes
supporting Core20 and specific
plus groups

Social prescriber for children
and families in areas of high
deprivation

Young people employment
opportunities from most
deprived areas

Supporting those affected by
dementia

Mid Essex Alliance

Young Carer support and
their family members

Pilot Chronic Obstructive
Pulmonary Disease patient
education

Outreach within traveller
communities and Severe
Mental lliness health checks

Extending transport services
for those unable to attend
clinic appointments

Men’s Mental health

Outreach clinics in warm
spaces

Sensory inequalities
ambassador

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fol¥ard Plan 2023 33



4

3 Mid and South Essex

v1 [ Integrated Care
{37 System

NHS

Mid and South Essex

South East Essex Alliance

Thurrock Alliance

Cardiovascular disease case
finding and alleviating system
flow pressures

Loneliness and improving
access to service

Suicide prevention

Veterans' mental health and
access to services

Family and childhood mental
health and resilience

Focus on mental health through
the green agenda

Dental access for deprived and
the young

Obesity transformation

Lifestyle risk management

through motivational
interviewing

Workplace Health Champions to
provide smoking cessation

Gypsy, Roma, Traveller and
Showman communities
improving access to health
services

Thurrock’s homeless
communities improving access
to health services

Health and digital literacy

Enhancing safeguarding, health
and mental wellbeing for
vulnerable young people and
young parents

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023

34



v

41 » Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

The Integrated Care System has commissioned the University of Essex as an
Evaluation partner to provide a framework and evaluation tools to assess outcomes
from these investments. The Framework with the tools will be available Quarter 1
2023/24 and we are expecting evaluation of the projects to be completed by the end
March 2024. A lesson learnt exercise will inform the future approach to the
deployment of the funding to ensure that it supports addressing those with the
greatest need.

Health Inequalities research

We will work with our university partners to ensure that we are developing our Health
Inequalities approach based on the latest research evidence. There are two specific
multi-disciplinary and multi-stakeholder partnership projects that are forthcoming in
2023/24:

e ‘Innovate’ a project to improve Mental health and wellbeing by mobilising
community assets to tackle health inequalities

e Building a community of practice to identify barriers and priorities and
solutions to the right of access to healthcare for Travelling Communities.

A focus on Prevention

The NHS Long Term Plan has a strong focus on the treatment and prevention of
illness by supporting patients to adopt improved healthy behaviours. We are taking
forward the specific commitments set out in the NHS Long Term Plan whilst, through
the work of the Integrated Care System Stewardship groups, ensuring a focus on
prevention across broader NHS activities.

We continue to work in collaboration with our local authority partners and their
funded services to deliver joined up and seamless approaches to prevention.

We will adopt a framework for the clinical priority area that considers the upstream
pathway interventions to reduce risky lifestyle behaviours and the contribution that
the wider determinants of health have on preventing ill health.

The work of Population Health Improvement Board recognises that the frameworks
under development as part of the community strategy and stewardship programmes
will feed into the Alliance-based approach.

Our Initial Prevention Priorities

In 2023/24 we are focusing on a prevention work programme, through interim
financial support from NHS England. This has enabled focus on three areas which
are proven to be most impactful to prevent a variety of conditions and ill health.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fovard Plan 2023 35



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Cardiovascular Disease

Cardiovascular disease is one of the leading causes of premature death.
Hypertension is the biggest risk factor for cardiovascular disease and is the second
top risk factor for all premature death and disability in Mid and South Essex. Through
the establishment of the Cardiology Programme Board there will be a focus on
delivering the following prevention activities in relation to cardiovascular disease:

e BP@home - continue with the successful roll out of the national pilot of
recruiting over 59,000 residents to test out how residents can improve their
health outcomes through the self-monitoring, by expanding the scheme
working alongside our community pharmacists and through integration into
relevant clinical pathways such as Renal. The ambition is to have over 75,000
residents monitoring their blood pressure by end of March 2024 with
community schemes in place in areas where health inequalities are most
prevalent.

e Kardia AliveCor — maximise the use of these mobile heart monitors that
allows individuals to detect, monitor and manage heart arrhythmias with
automatic analysis, located in General Practitioner surgeries, community
centres and on our outreach bus. We are anticipating that the National
Institute for Health and Care Excellence will publish guidance during 2023/24,
following completion of the Digital Technology Assessment Criteria, that
supports the use of Kardia AliveCor mobile device for detecting atrial
fibrillation. We will therefore look to further adopt this technology as part of an
integrated prevention approach during 2024/25.

e Innovation for Health Inequalities Programme - expand the mobile unit
(outreach bus) to a targeted core20PIlus population, to include broader
cardiovascular disease risk assessment and management (including arterial
fibrillation, blood pressure, cholesterol, smoking) by developing trusted
communication to reduce inequality of healthcare provision to this group. This
programme will commence in Quarter 1 2023/24 with an outcome assessment
completed by the end of the 2023/24 financial year.

e Community Pharmacy Hypertension Case finding — increase identification
and diagnosis of hypertension by Community Pharmacy to improve outcomes
and reach people who may not attend general practice, by doubling the
number of individuals that have a blood pressure check at their Community
Pharmacy by 2024/25.

e University College London Partners Proactive care framework — roll out
the adoption of the framework following the Primary Care Network pilot based
on risk stratification and prioritisation of atrial fibrillation, blood pressure,
cholesterol and type 2 diabetes to optimise treatment early in those with
greatest need. During Quarter 1 2023/24 we will review the outcomes from

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 36



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Phase 1 pilot, phase 2 roll out will commence Quarter 2 with the scheme
being available to all Primary Care Networks by the end of 2023/24.

e Financial framework — implementation of a primary care transformation
support scheme to support a holistic approach to implementation of a
cardiovascular disease prevention scheme in 2023/24.

Healthy Weight

In 2020/21 nearly two thirds of adults in Mid and South Essex were overweight or
obese and are at increased risk of heart and circulatory diseases like heart attacks,
strokes and vascular dementia.

Together with our local authority partners, we are working with an industry partner to
transform and integrate Tier 2 and Tier 3 weight management services. We aim
over the next two years to:

e Commission a smoother, more personalised patient experience of weight
management services, accessible to an increased proportion of the eligible
population, with reduced hurdles and barriers to accessing support and
treatment

e Deliver a clearer, more outcomes-focused evaluation framework, to
understand impact on individual, population and system outcomes, including
impact on inequalities.

Adopt shared accountability across the health and care system for weight
management outcomes

We will continue to promote and ensure that the Digital weight management
service is offered to those adults living with obesity who also have a diagnosis of
diabetes, hypertension or both. Alongside encouraging the uptake of the Enhanced
service specification for weight management by primary care.

Tobacco Dependency

Treating tobacco dependence is specifically identified as a key service that can

improve the prevention of avoidable illness. The NHS long term plan commits to
providing NHS-funded tobacco treatment to all patients admitted to hospital and
pregnant women by 2023/24.

We have already commenced recruitment of Healthy Hospital Managers and
Smoking Cessation Support works to support the new smoke-free pregnancy
pathway. In 2023/24 additional workforce will be recruited to enable all those
admitted to our hospitals or specialist mental health services will be offered NHS
funded tobacco treatment services. Along with developing further integration with
Community Pharmacy providers as part of the delivery of the Community
Pharmacy Advanced Service Specification - NHS Smoking Cessation Service.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fo¥ard Plan 2023 37



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Innovative partnerships with industry

We will continue to explore industry partnerships, focused on providing care for

patients with type Il diabetes within Mid and South Essex, enabling a financial model
which will immediately allow type 2 diabetes patients to access the proven outcomes
of Diabetes Digital Media’s Healths low carb diet diabetes management programme.

Future areas of focus

We will look to undertake focused work to support improved pathways and service
models in:

e Antimicrobial resistance - support implementation and delivery of the NHS
plan’s five-year action plan (March 24)

e Alcohol — explore the learnings from those Integrated Care Systems with
Specialist Alcohol Care Teams and work in partnership with our local
authorities to improve access and outcomes (April-Sept 24)

e Making Every Contact Count — building on the lessons learnt from the Covid
vaccination programme and the subsequent use of the mobile unit to outreach
into seldom heard communities we will expand the approach across the four
Alliance areas (23/24)

e Children and Young People — within the Growing Well Board agenda there
is a significant focus upon prevention programmes of work, we will look to
ensure that an all age and family holistic approach can be taken to preventing
ill health (23/24)

Enabling Improvements in Population
Health

Our clinical and professional teams work across the system to transform and
improve health services every day. There are a number of critical enabling activities
that support their work:

e Population Health Management — see Appendix 2

e Workforce and Clinical Leadership — see Appendix 3
o Estates — see Appendix 4

e Finance — see Appendix 5

e Digital and data — see Appendix 6

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 38



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Improving Operational Performance

Our teams work incredibly hard to deliver safe and effective care, every day. We
know, however, that many of our services are not currently meeting the requirements
of the NHS Constitution, and we experience challenges in delivering high quality
care consistently.

Our plans to improve services can be found at Appendix 7.

Supporting System Development

Our statutory arrangements under the Health and Care Act 2022 are new and
developing. Appendix 8 of this plan describes our governance arrangements and
the steps we are taking on new duties such as the Integrated Care Strategy Green
Plan, duties in relation to Violence and Aggression against Women and Girls.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fo¥ard Plan 2023 39



41 » Mid and South Essex
.1 I3 Integrated Care m
< r<

{17 System Mid and South Essex

Part 3 — Delivery Plans

In a series of appendices, this part of the Joint Forward Plan provides our plans to
deliver on NHS Long Term Plan commitments and statutory duties placed on the
NHS.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 40



ol Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Appendix 1 — Local
Delivery

Within this section you will find long term plans relating to our Alliances, Primary
Care and the development of Integrated Neighbourhood Teams:

e Basildon and Brentwood Alliance

e Thurrock Alliance

e South-East Essex Alliance

e Mid Essex Alliance

e Primary care and Integrated Neighbourhood Teams
e Primary Care Digital Access

e Developing our Community Services

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fof¥ard Plan 2023 41



4 v

4
'L

B

4

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Basildon and Brentwood Alliance

What have our residents told us?

Our partners from Healthwatch and Achieve, Thrive, Flourish have provided valuable
insights into the views of our residents. There is currently an Asset Mapping exercise
being undertaken which will provide further insight and it is imperative that we use
the information gathered and ensure there is increased engagement going forward.

Current Conditions

Population size and demographics

Basildon and Brentwood have a General Practitoner registered population of
279,000 and a very mixed demography of very affluent areas alongside some of the
most deprived wards in the country. There are areas of high-density housing as well
as low density rural communities. It is anticipated that by 2037 the overall population
will have grown by 18% with those aged over 65 growing by 61%.

Health Inequalities

Across the Basildon and Brentwood area there are 48,217 people living in the 20%
most deprived areas in England, which amounts to 17% of our total population, the
highest across Mid and South Essex. Life expectancy for males and females is
higher than the national average in Brentwood but lower in Basildon. Additionally, in
Basildon there is a 10-year difference in life expectancy between the least and most
deprived areas.

Using the Core20Plus5 framework has helped to understand our local challenges
and aligned to our Live Well strategy will help to address these health inequalities.

Local population health data indicates that cancer, circulatory disease, and
respiratory disease prevention should be our areas of focus.

Smoking prevalence among people with a long-term mental health condition is
relatively high amongst comparators and increasing in both Basildon and Brentwood.

Physical activity amongst children and young people is relatively high but low for
adults in Basildon.

The suicide rate and emergency hospital admissions for intentional self-harm has
been increasing in Basildon and Brentwood overall with relative rates in Brentwood
the highest in Essex.

Obesity in children in Basildon is relatively high and continues to increase, whilst
levels of obesity in adults across both Basildon and Brentwood are high and
increasing.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 42



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Workforce:
The average number of patients per General Practitioner is high in the area.
There are high numbers of vacancies across all sectors of health and social care.

Whilst additional staff have been recruited through the Additional Roles
Reimbursement Scheme, recruitment and retention is an ongoing issue.

Similarly, recruitment and retention issues exist in the care sector.

As an Alliance there is a great opportunity to work together, promote our assets such
as jointly appointed posts, training and development and make this an area where
staff want to come and work.

Estate:

Many of our surgeries are now struggling to accommodate additional staff because
of lack of space.

Our current estate across health and care is generally old and does not support our
ambition to integrate health and care.

As an Alliance we are investigating the potential to share space and progress
innovative solutions to overcome current constraints as well as pursuing
opportunities for new builds.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Over the next 5 years the Basildon and Brentwood Alliance will lead on a significant
transformation journey, underpinned by an ethos of partnership working and cultural
change. We will focus on proactive care and prevention so that our residents live
longer healthier lives.

Our Ambition

Basildon and Brentwood Alliance have recently been re-established with a wide
range of partner organisations committed to working together to tackle health
inequalities and the wider determinants of health. To achieve this, partners have
signed up to a Live Well strategy that comprises of 6 domains (Start Well, Feel Well,
Be Well, Stay Well, Age Well and Die Well) that cover the entire life course of our
residents. This will be the key strategy over the next 5 years with a distributed
leadership model supporting domain leads from all partner organisations.

The development of Integrated Neighbourhood Teams will be the foundation of our
work, and these will enable health, social care, and voluntary sector organisations to
work collaboratively at local level using an asset-based approach to deliver the
strategy.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fo¥ard Plan 2023 43



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

We will be outcomes driven and prioritise our combined efforts by using reliable
population data, shared across all sectors as well as the local intelligence of our
workforce and residents. We will develop, shared training and development, joint
posts across sectors and will also share estate to improve efficiency and further
cement relationships and a collaborative culture with partners. Existing funding
mechanisms such as the Better Care Fund will be used effectively and strategically
in areas where there is the greatest level of inequality, and we will build upon this to
develop additional areas of pooled resource.

The Alliance will build upon the legacy of the 2012 London Olympics, funding
through Sport England local delivery pilot via Active Essex and the subsequent Find
Your Active Basildon and Brentwood, initiatives to give our residents and workforce
multiple opportunities to increase the amount of physical activity they undertake.
Sport is a non-judgemental medium and that has enabled communities to think
differently about their wellbeing and embedded a culture change within the local
system leadership that supports the wider Alliance ambitions. All our General
Practitioner practices will be Active Practices and all our residents will be able to
access an activity that suits their ability, preference and circumstances.

Delivery priorities:

e Stabilising and developing Primary Care

e Developing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams
e Supporting urgent and episodic care

e Prevention

e Communication with residents.

Ensuring Delivery:

Senior Responsible Owner: Pam Green
Clinical Lead: Dr Boye Tayo

The Alliance Committee was re-established in 2022 and is Chaired by the Alliance
Director. The delivery priorities listed were agreed through this committee, and sub
committees are in place or being developed to support delivery. These include
Alliance Executive, Clinical and Professional, Health Inequalities, Voluntary Sector,
Operations and Resilience, Domains, and Integrated Teams. Membership is broad
and committees will be led by the most appropriate organisations. Each subgroup
will feed back into the Alliance Committee to ensure delivery.

The Committee has approved an Asset Mapping commission that will focus the
Alliance on available resource as well as highlight gaps that will need to be
addressed if we are to make positive change

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 44



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Embed the Live Well Strategy and six domains across the
Alliance

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for
implementation of
objectives

Quarter four 2023/24

Six Integrated Neighbourhood Teams established

First half of 2024/25

Reduction in Health Inequalities Quarter four 2023/24
Maximise resources to increase sustainability of primary Quarter three 2023/24
care
Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fof®ard Plan 2023 45



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Thurrock Alliance

What have our residents told us?

Residents have told us that access to General Practitioner services in Thurrock is
‘patchy’, and in some instances very difficult. Travel around the borough is not easy,
especially for older and disabled residents which makes getting to appointments a
challenge.

Current conditions:

Within the borough of Thurrock there are 27 General Practitioner practices
comprising 4 Primary Care Networks. The population of Thurrock (2021 Census) is
178,000. Key facts:

e Thurrock is the second most under-doctored area in England

e 40% of children at year 6 are overweight in Thurrock (this is the highest in
East of England)

e 21,271 Thurrock residents are in the core 20 Plus 5 categories (11%)

e Overweight or obesity in adults sits at 70% (this is the highest in East of
England)

e The deaths of 2,522 Thurrock residents were directly attributable to
socioeconomic inequality Between 2003 and 2018

As well as demographic and health inequality challenges, there are some key
problems which are limiting quality improvement efforts:

Workforce

Nursing vacancies in two of our key local providers — Mid and South Essex
Foundation Trust and Essex Partnership University Trust — stand at 12 — 13%, and
retention of Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme roles in primary care is
becoming an increasing challenge due to a lack of career progression opportunities.

Data quality and lack of effective business intelligence

This prevents us driving quality improvement and targeting resources in the most
effective way.

Estates

The general state of the estate in Thurrock is poor, with a large number of primary
care sites in need of significant modernisation/upgrade.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 46



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Health, social care, and voluntary sector will be organised so operational delivery will
happen collaboratively at neighbourhood level. Connected, integrated
neighbourhood models will be the mechanism for ensuring support is coordinated,
anticipatory, and personalised to the needs of the individual. Using the Human
Learning System model of personalisation and change management.

Our ambitions:

By 2025, the Thurrock Alliance aims to have fully delivered the implementation plan
from the Better Care Together Thurrock Strategy https://www.thurrock.gov.uk/health-
and-well-being-strategy/case-for-further-change-2022-2026 for all residents in the
borough.

The Better Care Fund, and any other delegated finances, will be used strategically to
ensure resources are targeted to those areas where they can be most impactful in
addressing health inequalities. The Thurrock Better Care Fund will be reviewed
during the latter part of the 2023/24 financial year, working with Thurrock Council
and the Local Government Association, delivering an agreed focus of expenditure to
tackle the common areas of the Mid and South Essex integrated care strategy, the
Thurrock Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy and the Better Care Together
Thurrock Implementation plan.

Our work will be underpinned by reliable and timely data, competently triangulated
with local intelligence from our residents and workforce. Key priorities will be
identified through targeted discovery phases focused on enquiry questions, for
example, how does poor housing impact on the respiratory health of residents in our
Core20 wards?

The Alliance is currently developing its five-year strategy, with a 2023/24 action plan
to drive and monitor progress.
Delivery Priorities

A focus on health inequalities delivered through neighbourhood models. The
opportunities to respond to these challenges must focus on the Fuller Stocktake
framework of addressing:

¢ Urgent and episodic care
e Complex care
e Prevention

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fof¥ard Plan 2023 47


https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.thurrock.gov.uk%2Fhealth-and-well-being-strategy%2Fcase-for-further-change-2022-2026&data=05%7C01%7Csharon.judge%40nhs.net%7Caa23fab00e1d4fee913308db5de04285%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C1%7C638206990034075181%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2BK0wWYNnXmpkly6WAv8ZPBUxVnmKAUDtk59H4GU7nbg%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.thurrock.gov.uk%2Fhealth-and-well-being-strategy%2Fcase-for-further-change-2022-2026&data=05%7C01%7Csharon.judge%40nhs.net%7Caa23fab00e1d4fee913308db5de04285%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C1%7C638206990034075181%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2BK0wWYNnXmpkly6WAv8ZPBUxVnmKAUDtk59H4GU7nbg%3D&reserved=0

TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Developing Primary Care

The Alliance is driving forward the Primary Care Network Accelerator Programme to
support the development of Clinical Strategies and the creation of Multi-Morbidity
Hubs across the borough.

The General Practitioner Fellowship Scheme has been established to support
development within the body of doctors in the borough.

Clinical Leads have been recruited to support the Alliance Clinical Director in
delivering targeted support to primary care for specific condition management.

Supporting Urgent and Episodic Care

We are working with local providers on a number of initiatives which will address
increased demand over the winter months, whilst embedding sustainable
improvements, including

e Targeting improvements in vaccination uptake for both Covid and Flu

e Targeted prevention to reduce falls is being explored with the falls provider
(North-East London Foundation Trust)

e Understanding the needs of High Intensity Users and developing alternative
support mechanisms

e Social Prescribing Review to begin in Quarter 4 (2022/23) to develop learning
networks

e Continuance of the Acute Respiratory Hub to June 2023 to reduce Emergency
Department attendances

Developing relationships between Primary and Secondary
Care

Deep dives to gather intelligence are underway with practices with higher
Emergency Department attendances to strengthen relationships between primary
and secondary care. Open dialogue between clinicians across both settings to
explore alternative solutions to support their population out of hospital.

In future, where appropriate and in line with the local population’s digital literacy,
there will be a suite of digital offers to support people to manage their own health
and wellbeing. We will adopt system-wide technology, and work with our residents to
test and implement in ways that meet their needs. This has already begun in relation
to weight management.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Aleksandra Mecan
Clinical Lead: Dr Manjeet Sharma

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 48



< Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m

»

“I1> System Mid and South Essex

The Thurrock Alliance has spent much of 2022 on a development journey, with the
explicit aim to build a clear purpose and a sense of trust. The governance structure
is now signed off, but in the interim significant amounts of work have been done to
deliver the Better Care Together Thurrock Implementation plan. Alliance team
members are now identified to lead or contribute to local working groups that report
to the Thurrock Integrated Care Alliance Board, which is directly linked to Thurrock
Health and Well Being Board and the Integrated Care Board Board.

Local Governance architecture in Thurrock

Through the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and the Better Care Together
Thurrock Executive/Thurrock Integrated Care Board, the Alliance achieves a degree
of public and political scrutiny, and we are committed to building a strong and
meaningful rapport with our residents. Through the use of the Human Learning
System (personalisation) model, we are working with residents and partner
organisations to deliver a radical change to service provision. This will become the
basis of all work with residents as we move forward.

Our residents and voluntary sector are valuable assets and as an Alliance we are
committed to meeting them where they are — in their neighbourhoods. This outreach
approach aims to deepen our understanding of the lived experience of people in
Thurrock.

The below shows the System governance structure.

System

. | MSE Integrated
MSE ICB ll Care Partnership

Thurrock Health
and Wellbeing Thurrock Cabinet
Board

Thurrock Integrated Thurrock Council
Care Alliance (TICA) Directors’ Board

Place

Batt
IMC Programme Brighter Futures T eh erTiare -
Board Baard ogether Thurroc
Executive
‘ :

Population Health Integrated Care & Commissioning Residential / ini
PCN Z Clinical &
Imc Stronger Together . Managementand MH Resources & Intermediate N
4 Transformation il X Professional
Executive [Chapter4) (Chapter 5} Inequalities Transformation Performance Care 4
{Chapter &) {Chapters7 & &) {Chapter 10} {Chapter 9 Sl
Individual Community
IMC Project M Referenceand M Communities of i PCN & Locality
Boards Investment R Practice Boardsx 4 .
Boardsx 4

Locality

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forf®ard Plan 2023 49



4
v

<
»

v
4
v LS

{37 System

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care

4

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation
of objectives

programme

Fuller stocktake supporting and developing From quarter one to quarter
primary care four 2023/24
Standardising access to primary care across From quarter one to quarter
borough for all residents four 2023/24
Increase covid vaccinations rates and flu From quarter one to quarter
immunisation four 2023/24
Increase targeted prevention to reduce falls From quarter one to quarter
increasing effectiveness of strength and balance four 2023/24

Assess and identify alternatives for high intensity

From quarter one to quarter

Human Learning System experiment (this work will
continue throughout 2023/24)

users four 2023/24
Provide alternatives for frequent General From quarter one to quarter
Practitioner attenders, this is the subject of an four 2023/24

Create social prescribing learning networks and

From quarter one to quarter

which test assumptions. The approach is refined
based on engagement with residents (these
activities will continue throughout the year)

new social prescriber opportunities four 2023/24
Ongoing resident engagement across borough From quarter one to quarter
based on the Human Learning System approach two 2023/24

Supporting General Practitioner fellowship
enhanced service increasing numbers of specialist
General Practitioners

From quarter one to quarter
four 2023/24. Achieve four of
12 by Quarter four.

Deliver carers matrix across Thurrock with

From quarter one to quarter

supported (target improvement rates for Serious
Mental lliness/Learning Disability cumulative
totals)

targeted actions throughout the year four 2023/24
Build on Serious Mental lliness/Learning Disability | From quarter one to quarter
health checks ensuring residents equitably four 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023

50



Mid and South Essex
', Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

South-East Essex Alliance

What have our residents told us?

At recent conversations with residents at the Healthwatch community assembly we
heard that residents are frustrated with the pace of change and that they would like
to feel improvements. There was appreciation for the comprehensive, unbiased, and
inclusive community and resident engagement we led in Shoebury to identify the
preferred site for the new Health and Wellbeing Hub.

From May 2023, we will be strengthening relationships through neighbourhood-level
conversations. Initially, these will be led by the Alliance team, but we will be
supporting them to become self-governing in 18-24 months. Insights from these
conversations will inform further iterations of the Alliance Plan, and we will
collectively develop improvement projects with residents.

Co-production of solutions in our neighbourhoods

We will ensure the voice of residents is heard by spending time with local people to listen to their valued

experiences. Creating a feedback loop that is neighbourhood based.

= Aregular meeting held in each
neighbourhood which will create a space to
listen and work in collaboration.

MNeighbourh
ocod
Meetings

«  Community conversations “experts by

experience voice”. prepared for Working in
the Alliance collaboration
. . to inform, with partners
« Co-produced solutions, story-telling and feedback and
inviting feedback and opportunities to update
collaborate

« Utilising data and insights to strengthen the

Outcomes

SIOW through local Alliance data

expertise, co- and patient

. i i produce and Eexperience
Ensuring work is fed back through the identify

neighbourhood meetings and the Alliance. solutions
www._midandsouthessex.ics.nhs.uk

Current Conditions

Across South-East Essex there are 58,818 people living in the 20% most deprived
areas in England, which amounts to 15% of our total population. With this level of
deprivation, in combination with an ageing population, we are experiencing greater
numbers of people presenting with complex long-term needs, poor mental health,
leading to a population with poorer disability-free life expectancy.

In order to understand our local challenges, the South East Essex Alliance adopts
the CORE20plus5 framework. Local population health data analysis suggests that
cardiovascular disease, cancer, and respiratory prevention are key focus areas. In
addition, our local community engagement work, has shown there are low levels of

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 51



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

awareness of self-care tools and pharmacies which can provide an alternative to GP
or hospital services.

As well as demographic and health inequality challenges, there are some key
problems which are limiting quality improvement efforts:

Workforce:

Nursing vacancies in two of our key local providers — Mid and South Essex
Foundation Trust and Essex Partnership University Trust — stand at 12 — 13%, and
retention of Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme roles in primary care is
becoming an increasing challenge due to a lack of career progression opportunities.

Data quality and lack of effective business intelligence:

This prevents us driving quality improvement and targeting resources in the most
effective way.

Estate:

We currently do not have the right size or type of space both within the hospital or to
support the development of our primary care aligned teams or other primary and
community services. In addition, significant areas of South East Essex are at serious
risk of flooding due to climate change.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

By 2028, the South East Essex Alliance aims to have fully aligned its committee and
partnership members, and member organisations, in the common endeavour of
tackling health inequalities across the entire life course of our residents, pre-birth to
death.

Our Ambitions

Health, social care, and voluntary sector will be organised so operational delivery will
happen collaboratively at neighbourhood level. Connected, integrated
neighbourhood models — such as Primary Care Network-aligned community teams —
will be the mechanism for ensuring support is coordinated, anticipatory, and
personalised to the needs of the individual.

The Better Care Fund, and any other delegated finances, will be used strategically to
ensure resources are targeted across South East Essex to those areas where they
can be most impactful in addressing health inequalities.

Our work will be underpinned by reliable and timely data, competently triangulated
with local intelligence from our residents and workforce. Key priorities will be
identified through targeted discovery phases focused on enquiry questions, for

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023 52



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

example, how does poor housing impact on the respiratory health of residents in our
Core20 wards.

The Alliance is currently developing its five-year strategy, with a 2023/24 action plan
to drive and monitor progress. As the South East Essex Alliance spans two Local
Authorities, we have a particular challenge to blend existing health and wellbeing
frameworks into consistent and meaningful strategic architecture within which the
Alliance can operate successfully. It is a testament to our Alliance members that we
already have initiatives in place that span these boundaries and deliver benefit to our
collective population.

Delivery Priorities

A focus on health inequalities delivered through neighbourhood models. The
opportunities to respond to these challenges must focus on the Fuller Stocktake
framework of addressing:

e Urgent and episodic care
e Complex care
e Prevention

Developing Primary Care

The mechanism for delivery is through neighbourhood models. Primary care is
already beginning to work in an integrated way with community health, mental

health, social care, and the voluntary sector. We are working with all partners to
develop Primary Care Network clinical strategies to further embed integrated ways of
working. The Primary Care Network Aligned Community Team model lends itself to
supporting any cohort of a Primary Care Network population which presents with
complex needs where multi-agency support can be coordinated to effectively safety-
net the individual to stay safely in their home.

Supporting Urgent and Episodic Care

We are working with local providers on a number of initiatives which will address
increased demand over the winter months, whilst embedding sustainable
improvements, including

e Targeted media campaigns to reduce Walk-ins to Accident and Emergency in
20-34-year-olds

e Improving vaccination uptake

e Targeted prevention to reduce falls

e Understanding the needs of High Intensity Users and developing alternative
support mechanisms

e Developing robust training to optimise deployment of volunteers in the
emergency department

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 53



4
v

<
»

v
4
v LS

{37 System

4

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care

NHS

Mid and South Essex

e Social Prescribing in our local Urgent Treatment centre

e Deep dives to gather intelligence are underway with practices with higher
Emergency Department attendances to strengthen relationships between
primary and secondary care. Open dialogue between clinicians across both
settings to explore alternative solutions to support their population out of

hospital.

e Exchanges - Clinicians from primary care and the acute shadowing each
other to deepen understanding of respective knowledge and pressures.

In future, where appropriate and in line with the local population’s digital literacy,
there will be a suite of digital offers to support people to manage their own health
and wellbeing. We will adopt system-wide technology, and work with our residents to
test and implement in ways that meet their needs.

Developing relationships between Primary and Secondary
Care

led by community partners Southend Association of
Voluntary Services

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives

Establish eight Primary Care Network-Aligned First half of 2024/25
Community Team models in South-East Essex

Apply evaluation framework based on the triple value Quarter four 2023/24

ethos and apply to at least two workstreams

Develop a South-East Essex communication network - | Quarter one 2023/24

Moving mental health First Response provision into the
neighbourhood delivery model - phased
implementation with delivery in one Primary Care
Network, but scoped for all

Quarter three 2023/24

Develop a change model for addressing fairness, Quarter four 2023/24
respect, equality, dignity and autonomy (FrEDA)

adoption - place-based adoption of the system-wide

anticipatory and personalisation approach

Develop a coordinated approach to tackling obesity in | First half of 2024/25

South East Essex, taking an asset-based approach

Implement integrated primary care paediatric asthma
nurses, with the asthma team aligned to all 8 South
East-Essex Primary Care Networks

Quarter three 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023

54



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Mid Essex Alliance

What have our residents told us?

Listening to our residents is at the heart of all we do within the mid Essex alliance.
We have worked with Healthwatch Essex to engage residents across a wide range
of geographies, demographic characteristics and seldom heard communities.
Healthwatch have helped us hear from communities such as veterans, those with
sensory impairment, lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, intersex, queer/questioning,
asexual as well as other minority communities.

The overwhelming message from our communities is to ‘Build on what’s strong, not
what’s wrong’ and this has become something of a mantra for the mid Essex
Alliance. It drives our approach to Asset Based Community Development or Asset
Based Community Development.

Our populations have informed a number of our key priorities. In terms of our NHS,
we know that access to services, especially primary care, is at the forefront of

resident concerns. Likewise, diagnosis rates of dementia and support to those with
autism spectrum disorder and learning disabilities are also of concern to our public.

Wider afield, our public tell us they are concerned over the well-being of children and
young people, more so since the pandemic. Childhood obesity rates, the mental
health of children and young people and managing childhood iliness all feature
prominently in conversations with our public.

Finally, tackling the high suicide rates amongst our population is a significant priority
for us. Many of our communities have been sadly impacted by suicide so it remains
a common theme we hear

Current Conditions

Population size and demographics:

Today’s population size of nearly 403,000 people in mid Essex is projected to
increase to almost 418,000 by 2030, and almost 440,000 by 2043. Within this, the
over 70 age group will see the largest increase — 14% by 2030 and 40% over the
next twenty years. With female and male life expectancy in mid Essex higher
compared to the England average, this large increase in population size and ageing
demographic will see an increase in demand for health and care services. This will
be further compounded by an increase in the complexity of care required, a high
prevalence of ill health and lifestyle factors that negatively impact on overall health
and wellbeing.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 55



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Health inequalities:

There are 5,236 people in mid Essex live in the lowest deprivation decile — 1% of the
total population. Within this, there are clear challenges, e.g., high smoking rates in
the most deprived areas of Braintree and Maldon, and poorer uptake of flu
vaccinations.

By more broadly applying the national CORE20PLUSS framework to support
understanding and management of health inequalities, data indicates that the
greatest impact in mid Essex could be achieved by focusing on cardiovascular
disease, cancer and respiratory prevention.

Workforce:

Whilst there has been very good progress in recruitment to roles within primary care,
it should be noted that we now have 35 (25 Full Time Equivalents) fewer General
Practitioner Partners working in Mid Essex than in 2015. The loss of General
Practitioner Partners has mainly been offset by a rise in salaried General
Practitioners and more General Practitioner trainees entering the system. However,
around one third of General Practitioners, nursing and administrative staff in primary
care are over 55 years, a figure that is above the national average, presenting a risk
for a surge in retirement from those staff groups.

Furthermore, a fragmented approach to employment across health and social care
increases artificial competition, reduces flexibility and limits opportunities for career
progression, impacting on recruitment and retention.

Data and Information:

Limitations around data sharing provides a challenge to meaningful integration of
partners to deliver care differently. Poor data quality inhibits ability to inform decision
making and understand impact.

Geography and Estate:

Mid Essex has large areas of rurality, making efficient service delivery and access to
care more challenging. Clinical estate is limited and, in order to manage immediate
demands, may not be prioritised for the development of integrated neighbourhood
teams. Even though a more flexible approach that considers alternative settings for
care and the use of technology may alleviate some pressures, there is a need for a
comprehensive, all-partner plan for ensuring the right type of estate to deliver agreed
priorities.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Over the next five years, the Mid Essex Alliance will further strengthen and develop
its partnership approach to jointly understand and address wider determinants of

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023 56



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

health, enabling a shift in focus from reactive care to proactive and preventative early
intervention.

Our ambitions

There will be an emphasis on enabling the wider community to maximise local
knowledge through active participation in the design and delivery of sustainable
health and wellbeing interventions. Health inequalities will be better understood, and
services will be developed to effectively address inequity, supporting the most
disadvantaged in our communities to improve their quality of life. Integrated
neighbourhood teams (consisting of health, social care and voluntary sector
partners) will provide a bespoke, flexible vehicle for delivery, removing artificial
divides between organisations and instilling a united ‘one team’ approach that
considers each individual and their unique needs.

Delivery Priorities

Health Inequalities:

Utilise data and ‘soft intelligence’ to work with partners to shape priorities and design
interventions that will see a reduction in health inequalities. Jointly design an
outcomes-based framework that will articulate a common vision and ensure efforts
are focused on the most in need.

Asset Based Community Development:

Embedding Asset Based Community Development will be the standard approach
across the Alliance, building on assets that are found in the community and
mobilising individuals, associations, and institutions to come together to realise and
develop their strengths, ensuring widespread community awareness of all assets
and building support networks from the ground up.

Develop primary care and build Integrated Neighbourhood Teams:

Implement recommendations from the Fuller report to effectively deliver
urgent/episodic and complex care, and support prevention. Enable development of
Primary Care Networks as the preferred primary care delivery model, supporting
sustainability and providing the basis for integration with community health, mental
health, social care and the voluntary sector as a cohesive, fully functioning integrated
team that designs and delivers local population health management through
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.

Support Integrated Care System and national priorities:

Utilise local knowledge and networks to support delivery of broader priorities such as
cancer screening, referral to treatment times and winter resilience.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 57



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Dan Doherty
Clinical Lead: Dr. Matthew Sweeting

The Alliance membership currently meets as a formally recognised group, Chaired
by the Integrated Care Board Alliance Director. Membership extends beyond
traditional boundaries of health and social care, including wider system partners. To
date, key achievements through this partnership include successful distribution of
funding to support health inequalities schemes, and a collaborative approach to
producing a single outcomes framework with shared deliverables and accountability.
The Alliance also participated in the Place Development Programme in 2022,
lessons from which will inform further thinking around the Alliance approach, Alliance
development and governance arrangements.

Early in 2023, members will consider ongoing governance options. This is likely to
include the introduction of additional sub-groups, each focussing on defined Alliance
priorities that drive forward the overall strategic vision. Two further sub-groups —
finance and data/Business Intelligence — will hold responsibility as enabling
functions. Membership of all groups will be broad but determined by the area of
focus, with ‘leadership’ of each group assigned to the most appropriate partner
organisation, reflecting the equitable nature of an integrated care system approach.
Careful consideration will be given as to how the ‘citizen voice’ will be meaningfully
included across all tiers of governance.

The aforementioned Alliance Outcomes Framework will shape Alliance priorities and
governance structures, and, through ongoing reporting of progress, will provide a key
indicator of delivery towards the long-term vision. This will be complemented by an
appropriate level of programme management oversight.

District Health and Wellbeing Boards feed into the Alliance, ensuring a two-way
communication channel that values local insight and influence.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Review Alliance governance arrangements and Quarter two 2023/24
establish model able to provide strategic
direction/oversight as well as operational delivery
Agree approach to ensuring ‘citizen voice’ is heard | From quarter one to quarter

and able to contribute to Alliance priorities and two 2023/24

plans

Partners design a joint outcomes-based From quarter one to quarter
framework, building on population health data, two 2023/24

Alliance priorities and emphasising collective
responsibility for delivery

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fn 2023 58



T Mid and South Essex
» Integrated Care m
7 System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Plan objectives

Timespan for implementation

Establish mechanism for reporting against agreed
outcomes and commence monitoring

of objectives
Quarter two 2023/24

Promote Asset Based Community Development
training across partners, identifying local
‘champions’ to ensure wider buy-in and cultural
change

From quarter two to quarter
three 2023/24

Develop Integrated Neighbourhood Teams: project
governance established. Alliance partners jointly
determine geographical footprint, model, strategy
and timeline for roll out.

Quarter two 2023/24

Pilot Integrated Neighbourhood Teams commence

From quarter two to quarter
four 2023/24

Evaluation of pilot Integrated Neighbourhood Team
sites

From quarter four 2023/24 to
first half of 2024/25

Wider roll out of additional Integrated
Neighbourhood Team sites

From quarter four 2023/24 to
first half of 2024/25

Local networks and knowledge deployed to support
delivery of Integrated Care System and national
priorities (e.g., screening uptake, Learning
Disability health checks and dementia diagnosis),
with clear support plan developed

From quarter one 2023/24 to
2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023

59




TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Transforming Primary Care

What have our residents told us?

Patients value primary care services and primary care delivers in excess of 80% of
all patient interactions with the NHS.

Patient experience of primary care services has fallen following the Covid pandemic.
Mid and South Essex has amongst the lowest overall satisfaction with primary care
services in our region and nationally.

Current Conditions
Primary Care is currently experiencing significant challenges on a number of fronts.

Workforce - Nationally and locally, there is a reducing number of General
Practitioners working within primary care. This issue is further compounded by
existing low levels of General Practitioners compared to peer systems. We have an
ageing profile of General Practitioners and practice nurses within Mid and South
Essex.

Demand — Demand upon primary care services has increased over recent years and
whilst overall capacity has increased, demand often outstrips available capacity.
Unmet demand in other parts of the system e.g., acute long-term follow-ups have an
inevitable impact on primary care as patients seek alternative clinical input. The
result is that satisfaction with primary care access has fallen.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

In line with the Fuller Stocktake, we seek to enable a primary care model of
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.

Our Ambitions

To align the collective workforce and assets around the needs of our local
populations to provide:

e A system wide approach to Urgent and Episodic Care to improve same day
care for patients and ensure sustainability for practices

e An integrated neighbourhood team approach to Complex Care Management
which is more psychosocial in its approach to supporting holistic health and
wellbeing

e Interventions to improve Preventative Care on a primary and secondary
prevention basis using analytics and population health approaches.

e prevention basis using analytics and population health approaches.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 60



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Priorities

Strategically, Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Board will implement a
transformation programme that will, over 3-5 years, enable Integrated
Neighbourhood Teams across our system to deliver Urgent and Episodic Care,
Complex Care and Preventative Care.

This will be delivered through bottom-up transformation led by our Alliances,
supported by system enablers.

There are two national specific requirements within the national planning guidance
for 2023/24;

e Continue on the trajectory to deliver 50 million more appointments in general
practice by the end of March 2024

e Continue to recruit 26,000 Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme roles by
the end of March 2024

e In addition, there is a requirement to “Make it easier for people to contact a
General Practitioner practice, including by supporting general practice to
ensure that everyone who needs an appointment with their General
Practitioner practice gets one within two weeks and those who contact their
practice urgently are assessed the same or next day according to clinical
need”

We are anticipating further guidance (due March 23) from NHS England that sets out
requirements from Integrated Care Boards in regard to the Recovery of Access to
Primary Care Services.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Dr Anna Davey
Clinical Lead: Dr Anna Davey

Primary Care reports through to the Integrated Care Board via the Primary Care
Commissioning Committee (a formal subgroup of the Integrated Care Board). This
meets on a monthly basis and receives regular reports on Quality, Workforce,
Finance, Estates, and Digital. In addition, the Primary Care Commissioning
Committee makes decisions on key contractual matters and where required the
operational implementation of primary care transformation.

To support the delivery of our Integrated Neighbourhood Team Vision, we will
establish a new Oversight Group and refocus our existing Development and Delivery
Group. A standard set of Integrated Neighbourhood Team principles and a delivery
framework will be co-developed alongside the Alliances. This will provide the
standardised vision and expectations. More locally Alliances will work alongside their

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 61



ol Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

forming Integrated Neighbourhood Team colleagues to localise the delivery from the
bottom up to ensure initial priorities are formed around their neighbourhood needs.

The programme is likely to require additional transformation resource in order to
deliver within the expected timeframe.

Delivery Plan
Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation
of objectives
Agreeing Vision for Integrated Neighbourhood Teams | Quarter one 2023/24
Implementing Phase One of our Integrated Quarter one 2023/24

Neighbourhood Team Working Together Scheme
Primary Care Networks mobilising priorities within their | From quarter one to quarter
Clinical Models e.g., Primary Care Network Aligned four 2023/24

Community Team approach

Development of Model for Urgent and Episodic Care From quarter one to quarter
two 2023/24

Development of Road Map for long term Integrated From quarter two to quarter

Neighbourhood Teams three 2023/24

Review and align our strategic and operational From quarter one to quarter

approach to estates, data and workforce to underpin two 2023/24

implementation of our Integrated Neighbourhood

Teams

Design and deliver engagement programme with From quarter three 2023/24 to

providers to prepare for delivery of 2024/25 national first half of 2024/25
contract changes

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 62



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Digital Access to Primary Care

What have our residents told us?

Residents tell us that access to primary care is challenging in part driven by
increased demand and in part by the traditional model for accessing primary care
services which centres on calling practices first thing in the morning.

Current Conditions

Different digital services are offered to and by General Practitioner practices and
other avenues of care are not socialised or properly developed.

Pathways are not efficient as information is not shared across care settings often
resulting in additional contacts with primary care clinicians to enable completion of
tasks.

The full capabilities of the existing technology are not fully exploited, and many
applications and systems have been deployed to primary care with little business
change, implementation or training. The use of technology varies by service and is
often dependant on costs or clinical perception.

Nationally, the new General Practitioner contract settlement (23/24) and the as yet to
be published Access plan place significant onus on improving the use of digital
technologies to improve the user and workforce experience.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

NHS Long Term Plan:

e By 2023/24 every patient in England will be able to access a digital first
primary care offer Section 1.43. Digital technology will provide convenient
ways for patients to access advice and care.

e Digital NHS ‘front door ‘including advice, symptom checking, telephone and
video consultations. Supporting remote monitoring of conditions. Online
resources to support Mental Health and recovery.

Fuller Stocktake:

e Demand and Capacity

e Improve the telephone journey,

e Improve the online journey

e Enhance triage and care navigation
e Better manage practice workload

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 63



T Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Our Ambitions

To provide a digital environment that delivers the flexibility demanded by a modern
multi agency service. The formation of Locality services will see a range of clinical
services offered by many different providers from the same location.

The digital environment should be an enabler to optimise the quality of care
provided. There should be a consistent access model across modes of entry to
ensure the right care at the right time at the right place.

Delivery Priorities

We will look to deliver improvements in access and drive efficiencies working with
our Integrated Care System partners and wider regional organisations, focusing on a
number of key areas:

e Providing applications and digital services to support the following:

o Expanding the role of community pharmacy and making patient records
available to be both read and written to.

o Making it easier for patients to contact their practice to make an
appointment and access other services via Telephone, Web, App and
other routes

o Cutting bureaucracy and unnecessary workload within a practice such as
delivering the on-line registration of new patients

o Building Capacity where most needed by the use of business intelligence

Ensuring Delivery

Integrated Care System Senior Responsible Owner:  William Guy

Integrated Care System Programme Lead: Alex Hemming

Chief Clinical Information Officer: Dr Taz Syed

Delivery Plan
Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives

NHS App integration with People Know Best Quarter two 2023/24
Prospective record access for all patients by Quarter three 2023/24
31/10/23

Successful implementation of access improvement | Quarter four 2023/24
plans by 31/03/24

General Practitioner Online registrations in all Quarter four 2023/24
practices

General Practitioner practice website procurement | Quarter four 2023/24
and rollout

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 64



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation

of objectives

in the use of digital tools to interact with primary
care

Development of Primary Care Network System1 Quarter four 2023/24
hubs and their interaction with integrated

neighbourhood teams

Digital champion programme to support residents | Quarter four 2023/24

Digitisation of all Lloyd George records in primary
care

First half of 2024/25

All practices to be on cloud-based telephony
system by end of 2025 (Note: this deadline may be

brought forward)

Second half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023

65



TR Mid and South Essex
® Integrated Care m

4
'L 4

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Developing our Community Services

What have our residents told us?

Residents/Patients have been engaged in the redesign of Community services and
the following themes have been consistent:

e Community services should be delivered locally as possible

e Teams should work together to offer seamless provision without the need for
people to tell story multiple times.

e To be supported in their own home where possible

e Consistent service offer removing any postcode lottery

Current Challenges

Community services act as the glue between primary and acute care, so pressure
experienced in either sector has an effect on community services. In recent times
there have been 3 significant challenges for Community services to contend with

e COVID-19 - With staff having to work in very different ways or being
redeployed from their usual services (and those temporarily suspended) and
directed to support the response to the pandemic. This has taken a toll on
staff but has also created increased waiting times to access community
services.

e Urgent and Emergency Care - Community services play a significant part in
providing urgent and emergency care with a focus on admission avoidance
and ensuring people receive high quality urgent care at home where clinically
safe and appropriate. Community services are also instrumental in supporting
discharge. Urgent and emergency care in Mid and South Essex has been
under incredible sustained pressure which has directed capacity and focus
away from preventative and routine work with the subsequent impact on
service provision.

e Workforce - As alluded to in the sections above the workforce toll due to the
Covid-19 pandemic and the sustained pressure from urgent and emergency
care cannot be underestimated.

What is the requirement from the NHS?
National NHS planning objectives 2023/24

e Consistently meet or exceed the 70% 2-hour urgent community response
standard

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 66



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e Reduce unnecessary General Practitioner appointments and improve patient
experience by streamlining direct access and setting up local pathways for
direct referrals

Our Ambitions

To deliver best in class community health and care services to the residents of Mid
and South Essex

Community health teams play a vital role in supporting people with complex health
and care needs to live independently in their own home for as long as possible.
Many services involve partnership working across health and social care teams,
made up of a wide variety of professionals including General Practitioners,
community nurses, allied health professionals, district nurses, mental health nurses,
therapists and social care workers

in line with the NHS Long Term Plan our ambitions are to:

¢ shift more care from hospital to the community

e Dbring together different professionals to coordinate care

e help more people to live independently at home for longer

e develop more rapid community response teams to prevent unnecessary
hospital spells and speed up discharges home

e upgrade NHS staff support to people living in care homes

e improve the recognition of carers and support they receive

e make further progress on care for people with dementia

e give more people more say about the care they receive and where they
receive it, particularly towards the end of their lives

Delivery Priorities

We will build on the established Mid and South Essex Community Collaborative as
the main delivery vehicle to drive the improvements in community service provision.
We have aligned the delivery priorities for Community services with the vision to
integrate, innovate and improve

Integrate

¢ Work alongside Alliance and primary care colleagues to embed integrated
neighbourhood teams

e Work with system partners, residents and patients to design, produce and
implement integrated intermediate care services that optimise independence

e Standardise delivery of community services where it makes sense to do so.
Service areas include:
o Adult Speech and Language Services

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 67



TR Mid and South Essex
1 Integrated Care m

1 3 4

“{3” System Mid and South Essex
o Diabetes
o Children and Young People (Autism Spectrum Disorder)
o Virtual Wards (Respiratory and Frailty) and Community Beds
o Urgent Care Response Team
o Stroke
o Wheelchairs

Innovate

e Introduce and optimise technologies and innovations to drive efficiency and
productivity and release clinical time to be patient facing — introduce dictation
software, route planning and optimise the use of Whzan and raiser chairs in
care settings and virtual wards including remote monitoring

Improve
e Optimise efficiency and effectiveness of Virtual wards

e Ensure compliance with zero 65 week waits for community services by March
2024

e Introduce self-referral to falls response services, musculoskeletal services,
audiology-including hearing aid provision, weight management services,
community podiatry, and wheelchair and community equipment services.

e Continue to improve the offer and identification for carers through 6 monthly
coordination of place and system carers maturity matrix

As part of forming the architecture for the future we will recontract the community
collaborative to create the conditions for improving, integrating and innovating
community services, together

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Gerdalize du Toit
Clinical Lead: Dr Sarah Zaidi

The Community Transformation and Improvement Board will oversee the
transformation, recovery, and performance of the community workstreams and is a
subcommittee of the System Oversight and Assurance Committee.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 68



T Mid and South Essex
I I, Integrated Care m
{37 System Mid and South Essex

CTIB oversight and

. assurance via the
SOAC informed by the programme

Community
Transformation and Ieads{SRQ of
community

Improvement Board programme including
transformation

Community
Transformation |’
and 3
Improvement
Board (CTIB)

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Programme Delivery for
System Community
programmes — providing
update, assurance, risks
and escalation to the CTIB

Respiratory
Programme

CVD Programme

Stroke Programme

D2A Programme

Palliative and EOL

Diabetes
Programme

Babies, Children
and Young People

Community Beds

Community
Elective

Community
MNursing Review

'
1]
-
1]

Timespan for implementation

of objectives

480 virtual hospital beds in place by Dec 23 Quarter three 2023/24
Reduce long waits to less than 65wks Quarter four 2023/24
Reduce long waits to less than 52wks Second half of 2024/25
Design and implement new integrated intermediate | Quarter three 2023/24
service

Standardise delivery of community Services Quarter four 2023/24

Support the design, deployment, and delivery of
Integrated Neighbourhood teams

From quarter one 2023/24 to

the first half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWward Plan 2023

69



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Introduce and optimise technologies and Quarter four 2023/24
innovations to release clinical time
Reach mature on all eight domains of the Carers 2025/2028
Maturity matrix
Establish longer term commissioning From quarter three to quarter
arrangements for the Community collaborative four 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023 70



T Mid and South Essex
.1 I3 Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Appendix 2 — Improving
Population Health

Within this section you will find long term plans relating to:

e Population Health Improvement Board
e Personalised Care

e Population Health Management

e Stewardship

e Innovation

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWward Plan 2023 71



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Population Health Improvement Board

What have our residents told us?

From extensive engagement with residents across the system and more locally
through our Alliances, we hear that residents feel that things need to change. All
understand that improving the health and care of people in Mid and South Essex
requires a re-balancing of our activities towards prevention, early intervention and
anticipatory care.

Current conditions

Reducing inequalities is a complex picture with no single action or single
organisation able to achieve this in isolation. Reducing inequalities requires a
sustained, organised, collaborative focus. The adapted Labonte model summarises
the complex system that causes inequalities to thrive. It encapsulates the different
factors that impact our health, where they stem from (the wider determinants of
health), how they interact, multiply, reinforce and act both in sequence and
simultaneously.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Our Integrated Care Strategy has a shared common endeavour of reducing
inequalities which reflects our desire to work together to eliminate avoidable health
and care inequalities by creating a broad and equal partnership of individuals,
organisations and agencies, focussing on prevention and early intervention and
providing high-quality, joined-up health and care services, when and where people
need them.

Our ambitions

Our ambition is to eliminate avoidable health and care inequalities by focusing on
prevention, early intervention and providing high-quality, joined-up health and social
care services, when and where people need them.

We have established a Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Strategy Population
Health Improvement Board to drive an integrated approach to inequalities
improvement. This board brings together the programmes of work across the
Integrated Care System on Health Inequalities, Population Health Management,
Prevention, Personalised Care and the Anchor Programme and the work of the
Children and Young People’s Growing Well Board.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023 72



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Priorities

We have adopted the national NHS ‘Core20PLUS5’ framework to prioritise work on
reducing health inequalities, focusing on:

e Most deprived 20% of the national population

e Plus groups those that experience poorer health outcomes. We have thus far
identified Black and Minority Ethnic groups, Carers, People with Learning
Disabilities, people experiencing Homelessness, Gypsy, Roma and Traveller
and Showmen communities, veterans.

e Five clinical areas of focus:

Adults focus

Maternity

People with Serious Mental lliness

Early Cancer diagnosis

Chronic Respiratory Disease

Cardiovascular disease with focus on Hypertension

Children and young people focus

Asthma
Diabetes
Epilepsy

Oral Health
Mental Health

e The delivery priorities are to ensure equitable access by:

e Embedding system wide adoption of Health Inequalities Impact Assessments
utilising a digital tool, together with system development approach of co-
designing of services with residents, engaging with those from vulnerable
groups.

e Improved data collection and reporting to ensure improved completeness of
recording regarding ethnicity, inclusion groups and other groups such as
carers

e Continually reviewing the restoration and delivery of services to ensure that at
risk groups are not further disadvantaged. A rolling programme will address
inequalities seen in waiting lists when viewed by ethnicity, age, area of
deprivation.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 73



<

PR
.
A

~
Yo

\d

v
4

4
<

b

» Mid and South Essex
IS Integrated Care m

¥ System Mid and South Essex

e Working with system partners to mitigate digital exclusion, through adoption of
our agreed digital exclusion principles, to support residents in accessing
digital services through skills development.

e Development of a financial framework that adopts principle of proportionate
universalism to deliver at scale services that are proportionate to the needs of
our population

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Jo Cripps

Health & Wellbeing MSE Integratefj Care MSE Integrated Care Board
Boards Partnership

CYP Growing Well
Alliances Board

including

Districts & = PHM Comms
PCNs: - Healthd!nequalitlies
« Basildon Funding pane

and Segmentation QA
Brentwood

Mid Essex

Population Health Improvement Board

Health Inequalities PHM Steering Personalisation Prevention Anchor
Delivery Group Group Steering Group Groups Programme
Frailty End of

Assessment

South East
e Thurrock

Weight

Intelligence
Community Management

services

Data & Intelligence Stewardship groups Comms and engagement

Clinical Leads: Dr Sophia Morris (Health inequalities), Luke Tandy (Population
Health Management), Dr Anita Pereira (Personalised Care) and Dr Peter Scolding
(Prevention)

The Population Health Improvement Board will develop an outcomes framework
linked to the integrated care strategy that will track whether we are making a
difference. The key outcomes will include:

e improving healthy life expectancy

e narrowing the gap between the most and least deprived areas

e reducing the proportion of our population that are obese and the number that
smoke

e increasing healthy lifestyle behaviours such as physical activity

e diagnosing cancers at an earlier stage

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023 74



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e equitable access to services measured across waiting lists, health checks,
screening and vaccination uptake

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Deliver Population Health Improvement Board and Quarter two 2023/24
Health inequalities dashboard to monitor outcomes
and impact that reflects Integrated Care Partnership
Strategy
Health inequalities funding for 2023/24 prioritised and | Quarter three 2023/24
implementation commenced
Evaluate the outcomes from 2022/23 Health Quarter three 2023/24
Inequalities Funding
Financial strategy development to support Population First half of 2024/25
Health Improvement Board priorities around health
inequalities and prevention investment including
confirming partner contributions
Organisational development support to embedding Quarter four 2023/24
equality mindset including development and delivery of
Integrated Care Strategy Wide Health Inequalities
Impact Assessment Digital Tool and Equality Delivery
System

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forwward Plan 2023 75



4 v

4
'L

B

4

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Personalised Care

What have residents told us?

Shared Decision making is a key component of the comprehensive model of
personalised care and brings together residents and clinicians in equal partnership to
make decisions. Many of our residents want to be involved in shared decision-
making conversations to have more choice and control over their care.

As part of a co-production empowerment campaign a baseline survey of over 600
residents concluded that:

e 70% of people understand what is meant by Shared Decision Making
e 80% of residents stated they want to participate and would find handy prompt
questions useful

Current Conditions

Working with the National Institute of Health Research, a behavioural science
research study has been conducted, that tells us the prevalence, enablers, and
challenges for practitioners to adopt Shared Decision Making in routine practice. The
study reveals that:

e > 40% of professionals incorporate Shared Decision Making in over 75% of
their conversations with people

o 45% of professionals are confident in holding Shared Decision-Making
conversations

e 40% of professionals stated that time is a constraint to undertaking good
Shared Decision-Making conversations and to do more in practice

e 75% of professionals agreed that focussed training in Shared Decision-
Making skills will help improve conversations.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The NHS Long Term Plan commits to making Personalised Care business as usual
reaching 2.5 million people by March 2024.

The comprehensive model for personalised care comprises of six components that
provides a framework of evidence-based principles, tools and resources for whole
population, universal and targeted interventions.

The model provides the conditions for relationships between residents and
professionals to respond to population health management intelligence of the rising
complexity of needs and wider determinants of health by starting with a collaborative
Shared Decision-Making process to address disparities in outcomes, access, and
experience.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023 76



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Our Ambitions

The ambition is to reduce the prevalence of health inequalities by adopting a culture
of personalised care, focusing on those at greatest risk of poor health identified
within the Core20Plus5 Framework for Mid and South Essex.

Delivery Priorities

Leadership

e Develop clinical and peer leaders, champions and sponsors in personalised
care implementation and innovation in delivery.

Culture Development

e Build upon good practice and foster a continuous learning culture through a
‘community of practice’ and by offering innovative training programmes such
as Immersive Simulation training embedding health coaching skills across the
system.

e Empower people to exercise choice and control meaningfully for them, their
families, and communities by producing tools, resources, and policy to
encourage innovation in delivery through shared decision making and
supported self-management, personalised care and support planning, and
personal health budgets as solutions to reflect diversity.

Supporting Strategy

e Continuously improve our working relationships with voluntary sector wider
system partners such as pharmacies to identify, implement and project further
proactive personalised care.

e Produce qualitative evidence of the impact personalised care has on
improving outcomes, access, and experience aligned with the priorities of the
Integrated Care System Strategy.

e Work collaboratively with to generate capacity for non-medical interventions
through personalised care models.

Quality Improvement

e Support implementation of Personalised Care and Support Planning practices
for managing e.g., frailty and End of Life care.

e Scope the potential for digitisation of Personal Health Budgets tools and
resources to support development and enable growth in the legal right to have
cohorts such as Personal Health Budgets in Section 117 aftercare pathways.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 77



41 » Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care

{37 System

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Emma Timpson,

Associate Director, Health Inequalities and Prevention
Clinical Lead: Clinical Leads for Health Inequalities and Personalised Care

Reducing health inequalities is at the heart of the Integrated Care System strategy.
Personalised care is a key strand of work overseen by the Population Health

Improvement Board.

To co-ordinate the programme we have established a system wide Personalised
Care Steering Group accountable to the Population Health Improvement Board.

Working in partnership through the Personalised Care Steering Group, we will
design a local appropriate outcomes approach including national requirements.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Timespan for implementation

3,630 Personal Health Budgets in Place

of objectives
Quarter one, two and four
2023/24

24,534 Personalised Care and Support Plans in Place

Quarter one, two and four
2023/24

10 professionals per month trained in coaching skills

From quarter one to four
2023/24

300 Professionals trained in Personalised care skills
for managing frailty by virtual reality

From quarter one to four
2023/24

Develop connectivity between Personalised Care
Steering Group and Community Assembly, strategic
co-production to develop clinical championship and
peer leadership for personalised care.

Quarter one, two and four
2023/24

Continue to deliver Adopting Coaching Skills Approach
Course

From quarter one to quarter
two 2023/24

Establish and Launch Coaching Supervision
Framework

Quarter two 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023

78




TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Population Health Management

What have our residents told us?

The NHS Long Term Plan defines a mature as Integrated Care System as one with
Population Health Management capabilities which support the design of new
integrated care models for different patient groups, with strong Primary Care
Networks and integrated teams and clear plans to deliver the service changes set
out in the Long-Term Plan; improving patient experience, outcomes and addressing
health inequalities.

What is the current state of play/local challenges?

Progress has been made recently in the underpinning infrastructure for Population
Health Management and the sharing of insights for example through Population
Health Management Health Inequalities Data Packs. Ongoing challenges include:

1. Ensuring system-wide access to Population Health Management integrated
dataset and segmentation model

2. Culture change, including confidence to engage with data-based insight and
to build interventions through co-production

3. Enhancing system-wide understanding of Population Health Management and
building the skills to maximise its potential

What is the requirement from NHS?

Facilitate alignment of Population Health Management approaches across the
system and with financial mechanisms

What is the ambition?

By 2028, multiple cohorts of residents/patients will be identified annually for focused
projects that design, implement and evaluate (and scale where appropriate)
evidence-based interventions (with a focus on early intervention and prevention) to
have the greatest impact on population health from the available resources.

These interventions will contribute towards the Integrated Care System Core
Outcomes

e Improving outcomes in population health and healthcare systems
e Tackling inequalities in outcomes, experience, and access
e Enhancing productivity and value for money

It is also envisaged that more work will be done across system partners, including
NHS and Local Authorities as well as providers, residents, and the Voluntary Sector

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 79



v

41 » Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

to begin to make change in those wider determinants of health including (but not
limited to):

e The built environment (e.g., housing, planning)

¢ Reducing risks (e.g., tackling obesity through whole system approaches)

e Support for residents in the lowest socioeconomic groups (e.g., reducing or
mitigating the impacts of poverty and fuel poverty)

e Giving children the best chance at success in life (e.g., education, healthy
diet, exercise)

Working together on these wider determinants would contribute towards the
Integrated Care System Core Outcome of supporting broader social and economic
development.

What are the delivery priorities?
Population Health Management specific priorities include:

e Supporting Alliances, Primary Care Networks and Stewardship programmes
to deliver their outcomes, embedding a Population Health Management
approach.

e Using the segmentation model to identify cohorts of individuals who are
progressing too quickly or undetected towards ill health and co-designing
interventions which will address that.

e Delivering on the system priority of early intervention and prevention

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Jo Broadbent,
Director of Public Health, Thurrock Council
Clinical Lead: Luke Tandy, PROVIDE

How will we ensure delivery?

The Population Health Management steering group is a sub-group of and is
overseen by the Population Health Improvement Board. It is very closely linked in
terms of content and priorities to the Health Inequalities Delivery Group,
Personalisation of Care Delivery Group, and Prevention Delivery Group.

The Population Health Management steering group also has subgroups including:

1. The segmentation model quality assurance sub-group
2. Communications sub-group
3. Various project delivery groups

Population Health Management also has a very close relationship and dependency
on Business Intelligence including the infrastructure they provide for access to data,
and Council Public Health teams.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 80



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Population Health Management Governance in place
for all Population Health Management related projects

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation of

objectives
Quarter one 2023/24

Expand Population Health Management support to all
areas including prevention, inequalities, personalised
care, stewardship

Second half of 2024/25

Slowing progression to ill health through segmentation
model

2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023

81




TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Stewardship

What have our residents told us?

Mid and South Essex residents have engaged positively with the model of
community mobilisation via social media piloted with our Ageing Well stewardship
group. They will also play a significant and increasing role in working with our
stewardship groups to and identify and elucidate strategic priorities as part of their
annual reporting.

Current conditions

The current systems, incentives and culture are not conducive to delivering value for
the population in an optimal way. Health and care resources are therefore not always
directed to where they are needed most. There is a general trend towards increasing
levels of clinical intervention, particularly in the acute sector; whilst this may
represent a better outcome or experience for an individual, at a population level this
trend poses a challenge.

An opportunity cost exists, relating to the missed opportunity for investing
progressively further in activity which would deliver higher value to our residents,
including both up-stream and downstream care. Stewardship is therefore our radical
approach to redressing this, and ensuring that care pathways are viewed holistically,
with resources targeted towards those activities that represent high value to our
citizens, including addressing the wider determinants of health, and away from those
that represent low value.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The Integrated Care System needs to work collaboratively to use allocated
resources to optimally, and equitably, improve the health and wellbeing of the 1.2
million people we serve.

Our Ambitions

We will adopt a culture of stewardship. This means using common resources wisely
for population segments for the good of all in that care area - not for the good of our
own organisation or team.

We will equip and support resource users (notably clinicians, patients and residents)
with the skills and wherewithal to make decisions about how resources should best
be used, giving them responsibility for doing so and enabling clear accountability.

This programme therefore defines both how we make decisions about particular care
areas, but also aims to shift the culture within the whole integrated care system
accordingly.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 82



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Priorities

e Stewardship groups formed for 25 care areas by 2025

e Personal development programme rolled out for each cohort

e Mechanisms for shifting resources (e.g., Hosting) implemented

e Stewardship Business Intelligence dashboards developed and implemented

e Organisational development for Integrated Care System to embed culture of
stewardship across organisations

Our duty to seek advice

Our system Clinical and Multi-Professional Congress, chaired by the Integrated Care
Board Medical Director, brings together frontline staff from community, primary,
secondary, social, and urgent and emergency care, mental and public health,
pharmacy, and patient engagement sectors.

They provide support to the Integrated Care Board board where requested in
developing and delivering clinical and care strategy, effective use of resources,
innovation and horizon scanning, enabling and engaging clinical and care
leadership, changing clinical and care mindsets and supporting assurance and
statutory adherence.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Dr Ronan Fenton
Clinical Lead: Dr Peter Scolding

How will we ensure delivery

e The programme is overseen by the Stewardship Programme Board

e Assurance of the Stewardship Programme will take place the Integrated Care
Board System Oversight and Assurance Committee.

e From 2023 we will also publish an annual report based on both care areas
and population segments, demonstrating progress against our aims and
comparing our performance with others.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation of

objectives
25 stewardship groups functioning by 2025 Second half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 83



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Innovation

What have our residents told us?

We continue to work with service users and those within our communities to
understand barriers to uptake of innovation, inequality and how we can address
areas of exclusion, through effective partnership and strengthening of local networks,
assets, and relationships. As a system of Anchor organisations, we need also to
consider ways to build social value and address social determinants of health in
doing this as we have heard the value of local assets and the power of innovation in
doing this.

Current conditions

Innovation has been subject to the same challenges seen across the NHS and social
care, resulting in lack of capacity within organisations to implement new innovations.

The Integrated Care System landscape is new and fertile, and whilst formal
structures are established, Mid and South Essex innovation has continued to work in
collaboration and partnership.

In 2019, a collaboration between Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust and the
Innovation Unit saw the development of Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust's 5
Stage Model to Create an Innovation Culture. The stages are:

e Developing a vision and strategy
e Developing a case for change

e Establishing key priorities

¢ Run a staged selection process
e Build an innovation function.

We continue to have a joint programme and jointly chaired Innovation Advisory
Group.

Developments such as digital care models and ongoing Outpatient transformation
present additional opportunities for innovation but also the need to be mindful of
pace required to deliver recovery trajectories.

System digital maturity, appetite and strategy needs to be considered for innovation
choices and readiness.

Through one of our own clinicians and National Clinical Lead for Innovation,
Professor Tony Young, we continue to support in partnership Anglia Ruskin
University deliver the world’s largest and most successful workforce development
programme focussing on clinical innovation. The NHS Clinical Entrepreneurship

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pran 2023 84



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

programme is now entering its 7th cohort with many of those successfully applying
working within Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust, and equally we have seen
innovation adopted into our Trust because of connections made through NHS
Clinical Entrepreneurship programme. Further to this, Mid and South Essex
Foundation Trust hosts the NHS Clinical Entrepreneurship programme InSites
Programme which is seeing Clinical Entrepreneurship Programme innovation being
scaled across a network of NHS Provider Trusts. This programme is actively
demonstrating the benefits of a learning culture framework approach to streamlining
NHS innovation adoption. MSE innovation works closely with our local AHSN
(University College London Partners), HealthTech Enterprise, Health Education
England, and Accelerated Access Collaborative, local universities, as part of
partnership working. Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System has achieved
great successes with partners including Ford Motor Group for the Essex Covid
Vax/Respiratory Van and British Heart Foundation for the BP@Home solutions.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The NHS Long Term Plan commitments include accelerating uptake of selected
innovative medical devices, diagnostics, and digital products to patients faster,
through existing MedTech Funding Mandate policies, or similar programmes.

In line with the 2023/4 Planning Guidance, the innovation programme will continue to
progress use of machine learning, Artificial Intelligence, and new ways of organising
and providing care for example, using innovations such as Deep Medical that
increase efficiency in our outpatient recovery programme around driving down
avoidable appointment Did Not Attends; and ‘C the Signs’, supporting with earlier
cancer diagnosis opportunities.

Our Ambitions

The Mid and South Essex Innovation programme has been operating at a system
level, since 2019. The programme aims to build a culture of innovation to help deliver
our Common Endeavour of reducing inequalities together. Over the next five years
Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System will build on its already nationally
recognised pedigree as an innovative system by seeing increasing numbers of
residents, students, staff and partner organisations being involved in innovating for
the benefit of our patients, residents and staff. This will be done by:

¢ Increasing adoption of innovation, developing Anchor innovation and
innovations that support these goals in practice,

e Increased participation of student, staff, and residents/carers in formal
innovation development activity, positively increasing home-grown innovation.

e Inward investment to Mid and South Essex through grants and awards,
including self-sufficiency to pump-prime innovation investment

e Evolution of innovation policies; including Intellectual Property

e Using innovation as an enabler to address health inequalities

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 85



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

¢ Enhancing innovation culture and readiness, cross-system

e Collaborating with industry to boost partnership working

e Use collaborative innovations to improve working practices and person-centre
outcomes

Delivery Priorities

The themes for Mid and South Essex Innovation Fellows continue to be aligned to
the key national, regional, and local objectives e.g., workforce, reducing health
inequalities (in line with CORE20PLUS5 Adults), Children and Young People’s
Mental Health (in line with CORE20PLUSS5 Children and Young People) and Covid-
19 recovery. This intentional alignment will continue for the next five years linking
local innovation with planning guidance and Long-Term Plan goals, while supporting
our common endeavour in Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System.

Mid and South Essex innovation delivery priorities include

e Increased adoption of innovations in line with Integrated Care System
objectives year on year from 2022/23 baseline.

e Develop Anchor Innovation - social value incubator

e Develop innovations that progress Anchor goals in practice

e Students and staff members participating in formal innovation development
activity

¢ Increase in industry partnerships or innovation

e Inward investment to Mid and South Essex through grants and awards

e Agree Intellectual Property Policy across Integrated Care System

e Progress innovation as an enabler of addressing health inequalities

e Use collaborative innovations to improve working practices and person-centre
outcomes

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Charlotte Williams
Clinical Lead: Professor Tony Young

Mid and South Essex innovation is monitored through a monthly Mid and South
Essex Foundation Trust Innovation Working Group and a quarterly system-wide
Innovation Advisory Group.

The mapping of each provider organisation’s focus areas is underway to ensure a
joined up collaborative approach.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 86



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m

“43 System Mid and South Essex
Delivery Plan
Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation
of objectives
Develop Anchor Innovation - social value incubator From quarter one 2023/24 to
first half of 2024/25
Students and staff members participating in formal From quarter one to 2025/28

innovation development activity

1. Monitored via use of MediShout Ql

2. ldentifying new staff innovations each month via

the working and advisory group

Increased adoption of innovations in line with From quarter one to quarter
Integrated Care System objectives year on year from two 2023/24
2022/23 baseline.
Increasing of Mid and South Essex Innovation Fellows | Quarter three 2023/24
year on year

Inward investment to Mid and South Essex through From quarter one to 2025/28
grants and awards
Increase in industry partnerships or innovation From quarter one to 2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 87



T Mid and South Essex
.1 I3 Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Appendix 3 - Workforce

Within this section you will find long term plans relating to:

e Workforce
e Clinical Care and Professional Leadership
¢ Nursing and Quality

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 88



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Workforce

What have our residents told us?

The Mid and South Essex system continues to reset activity following substantial
winter pressures overlaid by Covid and elective recovery. The system has high
vacancy levels across core services and an unsustainable dependency on bank and
agency staffing. There is a requirement for the consistent review workforce data
quality and reporting to ensure that there is robust oversight of workforce trends.

Current Conditions

e Complexity of the system geography including proximity to London and
providers delivering across multiple Integrated Care System’s

e High levels of vacancy impacting staff morale, retention, absence, and
turnover

e High dependency on temporary staffing with usage increasing (6.6% of pay
bill)

e Workforce data anomalies

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The aim is to implement robust, integrated workforce planning, reduce temporary
staffing usage and adopt and embrace new roles and ways of working.

What is the ambition

To meet the needs of our local communities there is a requirement to increase focus
on recruitment and retention of staff, with particular emphasis on registered nurses,
medical staff and support to clinical roles.

Delivery Priorities

Our new people strategy sets out the following priorities designed to address these
areas of concern across our Integrated Care System workforce:

e Recruit at scale and across the system via a centralised programme. ‘One
workforce’ approach, streamlining the recruitment process to enhance
applicant experience.

e Use branding of Mid and South Essex as the recruiter for the system for
health and care — ‘great place to work, develop and live’.

e Agree percentage of current vacancies to support joint recruitment initiatives
to substantially grow assistant/associate roles which will form our workforce
pipeline leading to a suite of apprenticeship roles.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 89



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

e Active, consistent engagement with schools and colleges — influencing and
supporting younger ages e.g., from Cadets 12 years plus. Creating local
pipelines for future workforce supply

e Registrant roles involved in shaping future workforce models — adopting new
skill mix and use of digital/technology e.g., learning from Virtual Hospitals.

e Blended education and training to support the skill gaps of current and future
workforce utilising our Academy and local Health Information Exchanges

e Strategic workforce planning at Integrated Care System level linking with the
Framework 15 programme- embed new roles and workforce transformation in
this process.

e Implement flexible working initiatives to support retention and growth in all
areas and target workforce hotspots.

e People Board to form a workforce planning steering group to sequence the
activities in this refresh and start to build more granular workforce plans,
starting at system level and filtering down

Ensuring Delivery
Senior Responsible Owner: Chief People Officer

e Strategy and operational plans enacted via the People Board
e Workforce metrics monitored monthly at System Oversight and Assurance
Committee

Delivery Plan

For detailed delivery plans for 23/24 please see operational planning submission

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for

implementation of

objectives
Convene System workforce summit to agree operational | 7/6/2023
workstreams aligned to system workforce challenges and
opportunities.
Establish system workforce operational control 1/8/2023
workstream as an integral component of the system
System Project Management Office with oversight by
System Oversight and Assurance Committee.
Launch the Healthcare Support Worker academy and 1/6/2023- 1/4/2024
align it to the System Academy function recruiting,

onboarding & educating the prescribed volume of entry

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 90



<
Av”

h

4
'L

4

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care

{37 System

NHS

Mid and South Essex

level staff to fill Trainee Nurse Associates /Registered
Nurse Associate and Apprenticeship Targets

Recruit the prescribed number of new roles as per the
June 2023 workforce summit to include but not restricted
to Physician Associates, Advanced Care Practitioners,
Registered Nurse Associates and Anaesthetic
Associates

Recruit 85% Undergraduate output

1/6/23-1/4/2024

10/2023

Coordinate and co-produce a system workforce plan
Years 2-5 aligned to the national workforce plan and local
system priorities

4/2024 — 4/2028

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023

91



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Clinical and Care Professional Leadership

What have our residents told us?

There is variation across our alliance areas in care received and while work has
been undertaken to ensure consistency, it is Clinical and Care Professional
Leadership that will make a difference to our population.

Current Conditions

This workstream both supports and is challenged by our workforce issues and huge
demand and capacity mismatch.

However, the aim of this work is to assist with the recruitment and retention of clinical
and professional staff groups. The insights and actions of our Clinical and Care
Professional Leadership’s will address and improve the effectiveness of our efforts to
address our operational delivery pressures in all areas.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

e Improving outcomes in population health and healthcare — establish and
maintain a pipeline of trained and supported leaders to lead at System,
Alliance, and Place level.

e Tackling inequalities in outcomes, experience, and access — Support the work
of the System clinical Leads for Inequalities by the incorporation of managing
inequalities in all System and Alliance work.

e Enhancing productivity and value for money — by ensuring Clinical Care
Professional Leadership leaders are included in the design and decisions
within our system’s services.

e Helping the NHS support broader social and economic development —
through our partnership within and outside health and social care including
engagement in the education and private sectors.

Our Ambitions

To put clinical and multi-professional leadership at the heart of our system by
creating a distinctive and attractive offer to support the active participation of staff
within Mid and South Essex to lead as part of their day-to-day work.

e To fulfil the requirements and work within the 5 principles set out within the
white paper Building strong integrated care systems everywhere paper link.

e To reflect this commitment in our governance structure and leadership
arrangements.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 92


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/B0664-ics-clinical-and-care-professional-leadership.pdf

v

41 » Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e To strengthen and further develop our Clinical Care Professional Leadership
arrangements for current and future leaders.

e To ensure that Clinical Care Professional Leadership leaders are empowered
and accountable for the delivery of high-quality care and to exercise effective
clinical advocacy for individuals and groups who are the most unequal or
excluded in its communities.

e To develop and maintain a framework document that sets out the ambitions
and strategy of this programme of work.

Delivery Priorities

There are effective structures and communication mechanisms to connect Clinical
Care Professional Leaderships at each level of the system:

e A strategic framework and offer that identifies, recruits, and retains an
inclusive group of motivated clinical leaders
e Complete and refresh Clinical Care Professional Leadership framework

Clinical and Care Professional Leads working within Integrated Care System
governance to support collective accountability for whole-system delivery:

e System Clinical Leads supported re-appointed/refreshed
¢ Alliance Clinical Directors supported and re-appointed/refreshed
e Alliance Clinical Leads supported and re-appointed/refreshed

A culture of shared learning to collaborate and innovate with a wide range of
partners, including patients and local communities e.g., through engagement events,
surveys and annual check-ins

Clinical Care Professional Leaderships are given protected time, support, and
infrastructure to carry out their system leadership roles.

e Clinical Care Professional Leadership Council Monthly meetings

e Establish Clinical Care Professional Leadership Faculty and Special Interest
Groups

e Establish and Support Special Interest Groups

Clearly defined and visible support to develop the leadership skills to work effectively
across organisational and professional boundaries.

e Engage with Anglia Ruskin University / University of Essex on collaborative
apprenticeships and Health and Care Academy formation (Principle 2, 3, 4
and 5)

e University of Essex on collaborative apprenticeships

e Care at Home/Health and Care Academy formation at Anglia Ruskin
University

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fordard Plan 2023 93



»

» Mid and South Essex
IS Integrated Care m

¥ System Mid and South Essex

e Leading within Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System continues

Stewardship is an approach to health and care services that we are developing
across the Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System. It is about bringing
together teams of health and care staff and managers within a care area, to get the
best value from our shared health and care resources. Stewardship groups providing
health services within allocated resources; advising convening and supporting
across system services

e Establish and support 25 stewardship groups by 2025
e Recruit System Medical Director Team

e Recruit Two clinical fellows annually

e Clinical Transformation/Veterans Lead

e Two DSMDs

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Dr Andy Giriffiths
Clinical Lead: Sarah Crane

Integrated Care Board

Decision Making / Rerommendu tions

Clinical & Multi-

Professional Congress .
Finance & Investment

Committee

Oversight and Assurance

Committes (5]

(PCCC) Committee

Huddle

Place Delivery

Basildon & Brentwood

Alliance 5.F Essex Alliance

Primary Care Networks

Residents of Mid and South Essex

The above shows the System governance structure.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 94



by
v

\d

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care

4

{37 System

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation of

4 x alliance clinical directors recruited supported and
refreshed

objectives
Quarter one 2023/24 and first
half of 2024/25

22 system clinical leads recruited supported and
refreshed

Quarter one 2023/24 and first
half of 2024/25

Alliance clinical leads recruited supported and

Quarter two 2023/24, first half

developed and maintained

refreshed of 2024/25 and 2025/28
Clinical Care Professional leadership council Quarter one 2023/24, first half
developed and maintained of 2024/25 and 2025/28
Clinical Care Professional leadership engagement Quarter three 2023/24

events developed and delivered

Clinical Care Professional leadership faculty Quarter three 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023

95



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Nursing Quality and Safety

What have our residents told us?

Overwhelmingly through engagement with our residents, three key themes arise.
They want to:

o feel safe
o feel listened to
e be respected

Current conditions

Teams within Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System already perform an
outstanding job every day to deliver healthcare services. However, they are facing
multiple challenges which impacts on their ability to achieve the quality of service
they would like to provide including challenges in recruitment and retention, financial
pressures, relentless and growing pressure from infectious diseases as well as long-
term conditions, coupled with an ageing population.

Despite the processes in place for monitoring the safety of services, patients
sometimes suffer harm. Consequently, health and care teams need robust systems
and processes to ensure care provided is of high quality and safe. To support us to
achieve this aim, we have developed six key principles that underpin decisions
around quality.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The programme of transformation across mid and south Essex presents clear
opportunities for health and social care organisations, education, and police partners
to work together to address current quality and inequality challenges. We recognise
that each organisation has its own statutory duties in relation to ensuring the quality
and safety of services.

Our ambitions
Our approach does not seek to replace these duties, rather it aims to deliver:

e A streamlined and efficient approach to quality measurement and monitoring

¢ Opportunities to increase the voice of patients/residents

e A better understanding of health quality and wider system inequality variation
across integrated pathways, rather than looking at quality in silos

e The structure, process and guidance needed by teams to ensure regulatory
compliance

e Better use of data, including the effective triangulation of multiple sources of
data and quality surveillance to enable early warning and prevention

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 96



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e Agreement on the approach to defining, measuring and monitoring quality
under new contractual arrangements.

Clear quality and health inequality impact assessments are undertaken for all
change and transformation programmes.

Delivery Priorities

A shared commitment to quality:

e By end of 2023, we will have an agreed suite of documents that describe our
committees and information flows

e By 2024, we will collectively support services to improve by undertaking a
programme of peer reviews to assess the quality provided. Findings from the
reviews will feed the provider of care and our Quality Committee

e By 2025, there will be a series of learning events to educate us on what good
looks like and to drive innovation. The aim will be for Care Quality
Commission to rate our services as ‘good’ and ‘outstanding’ by 2028.

e Establish a system-wide quality improvement approach by end of 2027.

Population focussed:

e By 2024, we will develop a suite of quality measures that will help us to
identify those most at need of high-quality care, and to improve their ability to
access these services.

e We will have a good understanding of our most vulnerable neighbourhoods.

e The Local Maternity and Neonatal Strategic Board will continue to strive to
provide services that mothers and family’s desire and to ensure services are
safe by implementing the Single Maternity Plan which was published in March
2023.

e We will continue to embed and strengthen the delivery of Personalised Care
throughout our healthcare services.

e We will continue to work towards our ambition of delivering care closer to
home.

Coproduction with the people using the services:

e By 2025, we want to have established a culture where coproduction and
listening to people is part of the way we do things. We will learn from our
complaints and enhance skills through training and education to truly
coproduce care.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 97



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e By end of 2023 we will have appointed our Patient Safety Partners

Clear and transparent decision making:

e We will work collectively together to create a culture of transparency and trust
within the Integrated Care System.

e By 2027, our workforce will feel able to speak out about safety concerns
without fear and we will measure progress via our NHS Staff Survey.

Timely and transparent information sharing:
e By end of 2023, we will have a robust framework for safeguarding assurance

e By 2024 we will have developed a clinical quality dashboard to review our
performance

e By 2026, we will produce a collaborative system learning programme to
support sharing, training, innovation and effectiveness.

Subsidiarity:

e By end of 2023, we will have embedded processes to support our General
Practitioner practices, optometrists, community pharmacies and dental
surgeries to improve their safety.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Frances Bolger
Clinical Lead: Frances Bolger

The National Quality Board outlined two key requirements for quality oversight in an
Integrated Care System:

1. To ensure fundamental standards of quality are delivered thus managing
patient safety risks and addressing inequalities and variations in care.

2. To continually improve the quality of services, in a way that makes a real
difference to the people using them.

Our unitary board members have collective and corporate accountability for the
performance of our organisation and will be responsible for ensuring its functions are
discharged.

Providers of NHS services will continue to be individually accountable for:

e Quality, safety, use of resources and compliance with standards through the
provider licence (or equivalent conditions in the case of NHS trusts) and Care
Quality Commission registration requirements

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 98



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e Delivery of any services or functions commissioned from or delegated to
them, including by our NHS Integrated Care System body, under the terms of
an agreed contract and/or scheme of delegation.

e Participation in system working with other statutory partners

As an Integrated Care System, we will collectively oversee and improve the safety
and quality of services through the development of a system wide quality dashboard
which captures health inequalities, multi- organisation membership on the Integrated
Care Board Quality Committee and strengthening our patient voice.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Set up task and finish groups to develop outcome First half of 2024/25
metrics for dashboard and complete build of
dashboard by June 2024 to strengthen system
oversight and assurance for the delivery of safe care.

Strengthen to citizen feedback of services to drive
improvement and reduce variation of care across the
Integrated Care System.

To enhance the quality and safety of care by continued | Quarter four 2023/24
implementation of the Patient Safety Strategy and the
Patient Safety Incident Framework by end of
December 2023

Establish a revised safeguarding structure across the Quarter two 2023/24
Integrated Care System that provides safeguarding
expertise at a strategic, Place and provider level.

Develop a 2-year work programme, which will include
provisions of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 and other
statutory guidance.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fordard Plan 2023 99



\d

.1 I3 Integrated Care
{37 System

PRt Mid and South Essex

Appendix 4 —
Infrastructure

Within this section you will find long term plans relating to:

o Estates
o Capital Estates Planning
e Sustainability and Net Zero Climate Commitments

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023

NHS

Mid and South Essex

100



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Estates

What is the current state of play/local challenges

Like many systems Mid and South Essex faces challenges from aging Estate that
has not received the necessary investment to maintain its condition or appropriate
functionality, to keep up with the growing populations and the objective to deliver
services closer to people’s homes.

The Naylor review identified “NHS England has a small programme of capital grants
to build or expand primary care premises, but this will be inadequate to facilitate the
vision of the 5 Year Forward View”. No changes have been made to address this
issue as capital investment for the system is constrained by both the national limits
and direct award to the foundation trust.

This converts the risk for Primary Care into an issue that it cannot deliver against the
existing demands, let alone the growing one. This will start building a risk in relation
to maintenance and both building and patient safety.

What is the requirement from NHS

Recognition of investment best practice and benchmarking from other large complex
estates, where expenditure is not prescriptive between capital and revenue. The
Naylor report concluded that major investment is required to develop new models of
primary care. Analysis and evaluation of the different estate models to deliver the
new models of care is required, to best develop the case for new capital investment
in the estate.

Commitment to the new Government Property Standard and the requirement to
monitor and report on the performance across all aspects of the estate using the
metrics specified for use across government.

Along with the adoption of the Government Property Data Standard to improve data
quality, consistency, and interoperability throughout the public sector estate.
Adoption of this common approach to collecting, referencing and reporting all
property usages, including land and buildings will help drive Value for Money across
the One Public Estate.

What is the ambition

Create new models of care delivers the Long-Term Plan by leveraging best practice,
data, and targeted investment to offer our residents a range of services in an easily
accessible way, making the best use of one public estate and the opportunities to
consolidate resources.

We would then be able to make better, outcome focussed decisions about how to
optimise our infrastructure across the system. Enabling us to deliver estate

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 101



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

improvements within the financial challenges we face as we recognise the impact of
the built environment to improve the wellbeing and health outcomes of staff and
residents and address health inequalities within our system.

What are the delivery priorities

Embracing the opportunity to work together to identify and acquire appropriate
sources data, to build a collective understanding of our Estate, its condition and use
to help inform decision making on how to optimise the estate through a coherent
System Infrastructure Strategy.

Our Alliances are fundamental in bringing all voices together around the local needs
and requirements to ensure our physical estates supports us to deliver the services
when and where we need them to be.

We must prioritise appropriate planning across all areas of estate to ensure we
deliver value for money and efficient use of resources.

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Jen Kearton

How will we ensure delivery

The Systems property and digital function’s governance and strategy will promote
appropriate, proportionate, and consistent ways of managing and investing in its
infrastructure.

The governance and management framework will be documented, showing system
overview, structures, decision making processes, terms of reference job roles, and
defines remits and authority limits for decision-making. It will include systems for
agile responses or adjustments to change, incorporating improvement opportunities.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation
of objectives

Data and Management Information Quarter one 2023/24

Stocktake of all current Estate across the System Quarter one 2023/24

Evaluation of strategic themes and priorities Quarter two 2023/24

Building Capability and Capacity Quarter two 2023/24

Design a Target Operating Model Quarter two 2023/24

Recruit, train and retain a high performing team From quarter two to quarter
three 2023/24

Estate and Capital Planning and Decision Making From quarter one to 2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 102



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Capital Estates

What have we heard from residents/patients

We take on board patient feedback as part of the request process for projects. For
material programmes there is a project and steering group structure which includes
patient and carer stakeholders.

What is the current state of play/local challenges

The Integrated Care Board is in the second year of an agreed three-year capital
funding envelope.

The Integrated Care Board has an agreed allocation of £2m for 2023/24.

The two provider Trusts have an agreed envelope of £59.8m. In addition, the system
has access to further discretionary capital subject to the delivery of the agreed
financial position for 2022/23. This totals £4.5m and has been allocated £2.1m to Mid
and South Essex Foundation Trust and £1m to Essex Partnership University Trust
for safety schemes. The residual sum of £1.4m is being held by Essex Partnership
University Trust and will be managed via the Mid and South Essex System
Investment Group, for system priorities.

The Integrated Care Board continues to identify further external funding in respect of
the development of:

e Electronic Patient Record (£21m across both Trusts)

e Community Diagnostic Centres at Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust
(£21.7) and Development of a 23-hour surgical hub at Mid and South Essex
Foundation Trust (£9.9m).

e Funding for International Financial Reporting Standard 16 leases by both
Trusts (£10.6m).

What is the requirement from NHS

Mid and South Essex is committed to working together, to make best use of the
resources we have available.

Although the Integrated Care Board has submitted a capital expenditure plan in line
with funding, the system as a whole remains overcommitted in excess of £135m.
Where possible, the system is seeking additional funding through allocations, and
individual organisations are looking at potential estate disposals with a view to
increasing the level of capital investment to be made.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 103



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

What is the ambition

We want high quality, facilities and equipment to deliver digitally enabled services in
and efficient and effect way.

We hope to plan and prioritise all developments for the system to enable us to
deliver a pipeline of improvements within the financial challenges we face as we
recognise the ability of long-term investments to drive wellbeing of staff and
residents as well as efficiencies for our population.

What are delivery priorities

The plan includes spend of £36.2m on the procurement and development of a joint
Electronic Patient Record of which £27m is Department of Health Social Care
funded. The Business Case is going through Department of Health & Social Care
governance.

Backlog maintenance, ward refurbishments and equipment replacement make up
the maijority of the rest of the programme.

Organisations are holding minimal levels of contingency (£2.8m combined) to
address any in-year risks or bids.

Essex Partnership University Trust is holding a further £1.4m of discretionary capital
for the system which remains unallocated and is subject to an in-year prioritisation
and bidding process.

The allocation is a significant constraint to enabling us to deliver the breadth of
improvements required to improve quality as well as capacity and access.

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Trevor Smith, Essex Partnership University Trust

How will we ensure delivery

The system has operated a System Investment Group, chaired by Essex Partnership
University Trust since October 2021. This forum has been used to discuss and
recommend major investment cases to the Senior Financial Leaders Group, and
more recently the Finance Investment Committee, since the creation of the
Integrated Care Board.

The System Investment Group has also been the forum at which capital allocations
and plans are reviewed and agreed.

In addition, the capital teams work closely together on a less formal basis,and meet
weekly for the last two months of the year to ensure the maximum deployment of the
system capital allocation and manage within the Integrated Care Board envelope.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 104



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m
{17 System Mid and South Essex

The Integrated Care Board delivered the capital plan with a small overspend of £43k
in 2022/23.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation
of objectives

Capital Planning Quarter one 2023/24

National review of the Electronic Patient Record From quarter one to quarter

business case three 2023/24

Development of Essex Partnership University Trust, From quarter one to quarter

Mid and South Essex and Integrated Care Board three 2023/24

Estates Strategies

NHS Infrastructure Strategy From quarter two to quarter
three 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 105



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Sustainability

What have we heard from residents/patients

This is an area that has lots of public support and will require their co-operation as
we change the way services are delivered — for example through the virtual wards,
reduced car travel, changing inhaler type etc.

What is the current state of play/local challenges

Mid and South Essex has its Green Plan in place, which has a clear set of actions to
deliver on the 9 areas of focus included in the Greener NHS Programme. The
challenge is in managing competing expectations to enable sustainability to be taken
seriously and prioritised amongst a multitude of other priorities.

What is the requirement from NHS

The Greener NHS Programme has committed the NHS to being the first health
service, in the world, to be net carbon zero. This is by 2040 for scopes 1 and 2, and
2045, for scope 3.

What is the ambition

To embed sustainable thinking into all the different work programmes that Mid and
South Essex has. The ambition is to ensure existing work is effectively captured to
prevent duplication and ensure we embed sustainable practices and processes in all
we do.

What are delivery priorities

The Mid and South Essex Green Plan has a set of priorities to deliver on the 9 areas
of focus as set out by the Greener NHS Programme. These are designed to align
with existing work programmes, to prevent duplication, but also to provide a clear link
to the sustainability work so we can report on progress through the sustainability
governance channels.

The main focus for 2023-24, to ensure we align with the regional focus, will be on:

1. Reducing the reliance on fossil fuels and minimising energy consumption
2. Avoiding single-use items

3. Recycling items instead of disposing of them

4. Increasing the social value delivered by the Trust

This process will enable Mid and South Essex to reposition its delivery aims to they
are in line with regional priorities, enabling more flex in priorities. As a part of this

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 106



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

reshaping work, Mid and South Essex is also aligning the Trust and Integrated Care
System Green Plans to allow a more consistent and symbiotic approach.

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Jonathan Dunk
Clinical Lead: Ronan Fenton/Paula Wilkinson

How will we ensure delivery

The Integrated Care System has a Sustainability Board that is chaired by the
Executive Senior Responsible Owner lead. This Board feeds into wider Integrated
Care Board and Provider Boards.

There is an exec lead in place for the majority of the areas of focus, and quarterly
meetings take place with them and the Head of Sustainability to measure progress.
For areas of focus that are linked to numerous elements — such as Adaptation and
Sustainable Models of Care, Mid and South Essex is developing sophisticated
measurement tools and Key Performance Indicator’'s These conversations are taking
place with the Executive Lead, as a part of the wider governance development

processes.
Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation
of objectives

Governance processes redefined and embedded From quarter one to quarter
two 2023/24

Carbon footprint of the Trust baselined and clear Quarter two 2023/24

actions for reducing

Air pollution pilot completed and Trust has clear From quarter four 2023/24 to

actions for reducing air pollution in the supply chain at | first half of 2024/25

Southend

Project to highlight the importance of reusing materials, | From quarter three to quarter

and reducing energy to take place four 2023/24

Focused approach to increasing the social value From quarter four 2023/24 to

delivered by the Trust first half of 2024/25

Energy project with NHS England to have identified From quarter three to quarter

alternative energy options for the Trust four 2023/24

Alignment of priorities to existing work programmes — | From quarter one 2023/24 to

i.e., digital, workforce etc. first half of 2024/25

Funding opportunities identified to bring in From quarter two to quarter

organisations such as Jump, to raise awareness four 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 107



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Appendix 5 - Finance

Within this section you will find long term plans relating to:

e Finance
e Procurement and Supply Chain
e Specialist Commissioning

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023

108



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Finance

What is the current state of play/local challenges

Our system has faced increased and sustained operational challenges which have
frustrated our ability to address our underlying deficit position. We have a good
collective understanding of our cost drivers, and we are focusing our efforts to
specifically address areas where we know we need to do something differently so we
can continue to support everyone we need to.

What is the requirement from NHS

NHS organisations are required to operate within the resources they available to
them. As a system of NHS organisations, they have a duty to corporate together to
deliver breakeven and as part of the wider health and care system we are committed
to delivering sustainable services for our population.

What is the ambition

As a system we have the ambition to develop systems and resources to support
people to take proactive control of their health. Our aim is to ensure we make
evidence-based investments to ensure stable sustainable services and support
prevention of ill-health. We must ensure we only invest where there is no resource
improvement potential, ensuring we prioritise value for money and maximise our
system pound.

We must bring our system back to balance through productivity and cash releasing
efficiencies savings in the fastest most sustainable, following our clinical leads to
deliver change.

What are the delivery priorities

We continue to pursue our core principles. Working collectively as a system we
intend to drive up our reporting, costing and intelligence sharing so we can empower
our clinicians and stewards to drive evidence-based resource allocation.

We are working together to support the efficiency programme, benchmarking, and
monitoring to ensure we understand where we are making a difference. We must
continue to reduce waste and duplication wherever it manifests to ensure we deliver
the best for our residents.

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Jen Kearton

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Plan 2023 109



T Mid and South Essex
.1 I3 Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

How will we ensure delivery

We have an established System Finance Leadership Group and System Investment
Group which is supported by deputies across all our organisations in health and
social care.

Our Finance leads are embedded into our programme groups to ensure we bring
together our governance streams.

Delivery Plan
Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation
of objectives
Annual Planning 23/24 Quarter one 2023/24
Medium Term Financial Planning/Recovery and From quarter one to quarter
Efficiency and Capital two 2023/24
Continued development of costing and service line From quarter two to quarter
approach to resource management four 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 110



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Procurement

What have we heard from residents/patients

We have heard from our residents and patients, that they want high quality care that
is safe and effective. We know that our patients want care that is delivered and
enabled close to home. Procurement plays a key part in enabling clinical services to
deliver care to our patients safely and effectively, ensuring that we purchase high
quality products and services affordably, and deliver the best value for every pound
spent from the public purse.

What is the current state of play/local challenges

Mid and South Essex Procurement teams have been collaborating for over 2 years,
with the introduction NHS England’s 34 step plan which is supporting the alignment
of how we manage and govern procurement services across the Mid and South
Essex Integrated Care System.

There are a number of joint procurements now in place across the Integrated Care
System. There are challenges across teams with different systems, making data
comparison sometimes challenging.

Mid and South Essex are working collaboratively on the current supply chain issues
to ensure resilience on product shortages.

What is the requirement from NHS

Mid and South Essex is committed to working together, utilising the NHS England 34
step plan, to make best use of the resources we have available. We must make
efficient use of budgets to procure high quality products and services whilst
delivering cost efficiency programmes.

What is the ambition

A unified procurement service across the Integrated Care System, that enables
standardisation of products, whilst delivering economies of scale. We know that
helping clinicians to standardise products, leads to reductions in variations of care,
and better outcomes for our patients.

Mid and South Essex will be working collaboratively with our suppliers to ensure that
there is social value contribution including net zero in all tenders and contracts for
our system.

Mid and South Essex will also look at how it can better manage inventory to reduce
waste and increase Just In Time procurement opportunities.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forl®ard Plan 2023 111



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

What are delivery priorities

Mid and South Essex procurement teams will continue to build relationships and
collaboration across procurement teams in the Mid and South Essex. Sharing of
current practice, processes and data, to look for areas of opportunity for alignment.

Review of existing resources across the Mid and South Essex to look at how we best
utilise our expertise to deliver savings, but also at how we retain and develop our
staff.

The review of how we currently work will form the baseline of service understanding
that then will support us to design and develop our Integrated Care System strategy
for procurement, and to build a unified procurement function across Mid and South
Essex.

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Jonathan Dunk
Clinical Lead: To be confirmed

How will we ensure delivery

This forms part of the Mid and South Essex Corporate Services reconfiguration
group, which is overseeing opportunities for the alignment across Organisations.
Progress on the design of the future unified Mid and South Essex procurement
service will be reported and governed through this group.

The workstream Integrated Care System procurement group is already established,
and ongoing progress is monitored through the NHS England 34 steps plan.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives

Development of the Integrated Care System strategy From quarter two to quarter
for procurement three 2023/24

Review of existing resources across Mid and South From quarter one to quarter
Essex two 2023/24

Review of current systems and data across Mid and From quarter one to quarter
South Essex two 2023/24

Shared training and development plan across Quarter two 2023/24
Ongoing opportunities for collaboration across From quarter one to quarter
contracts two 2023/24

Development of an aligned process for managing From quarter two to quarter
social value and net zero commitments three 2023/24

Design and implementation of a unified procurement From quarter three 2023/24 to
service across Integrated Care System first half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 112



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Specialist Commissioning Services

Current Issues

Full delegation of specialised services will occur in April 2024. Therefore, 2023/24,
will be preparatory ‘shadow’ year, where NHS England will set up a statutory Joint
Commissioning Committee for Specialised Services, which will require Integrated
Care Board leadership, engagement and representation in the Committee. Through
2023/24, the statutory Joint Commissioning Committee will manage the full portfolio
of specialised services.

The ‘shadow’ year will enable Integrated Care Boards and NHS England regional
office to test the arrangements for full delegation in April 2024. This includes the
proposed hosting arrangements for the Specialised Commissioning team in
Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes Integrated Care Board.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

From April 2023, Integrated Care Boards entering Joint Working Agreements with
NHS England will become jointly responsible, with NHS England, for commissioning
the Joint Specialised Services and for any associated Joint Functions.

Our ambition

NHS England and Integrated Care Boards will form a statutory Joint Committees that
collaboratively make decisions on the planning and delivery of the Joint Specialised
Services, to improve health and care outcomes and reduce health inequalities. Joint
Committees are intended as a transition mechanism for Integrated Care Boards that
require additional support before they are ready to take on full delegated
commissioning responsibility

What are the delivery priorities

The 23/24 priorities for Integrated Care Boards are to:

1. Establish the Joint Committee and associated delegation framework and
agreement.
2. Implement a joint work programme reflecting the clinical and service

priorities for 23/24 and beyond and building on the prioritisation process
established in autumn 22.

3. Commence transformation of three priority pathways, these being
specialist cancer services, neonatal services and specialist mental health
services.

4. Develop the governance, capacity and capability associated with full

delegation using the Pre-Delegation Assessment Framework and safe

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint For\lkard Plan 2023 113



1 Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
{»7 System

NHS

Mid and South Essex

delegation checklist to create and embed the local management
arrangements required to deliver effective commissioning.

The deliverable and success criteria will be the transfer of full delegated

responsibilities on 1t April 2024.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Tiffany Hemming
Clinical: Not applicable until after Delegation

Delivery of the joint work programme will be overseen by the Joint Commissioning
Committee for Specialised Services, with regular updates submitted to the Board of

the Integrated Care Board.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Timespan for implementation of

objectives

Gender Identity Development Services

Implementation of Medical Thrombectomy First half of 2024/25
Cardiac Transformation Quarter four 2023/24
Knee Revisions Project Phase 2 Quarter three 2023/24
Mount Vernon Cancer Centre Review Quarter three 2023/24
Set up working group to devise interim planning and Quarter two 2023/24
prioritisation process for 2024/25 and beyond.

Children and Young People Professional Support Quarter four 2023/24

Full delegation of specialist commissioning
responsibilities to Integrated Care Boards

First half of 2024/25

East of England Region Mental Health Provider
Collaborative, Phase 2 Devolving of Services

2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023

114



T Mid and South Essex
.1 I3 Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Appendix 6 — Digital, Data
and Technology

Within this section you will find long term plans relating to:

e Patient Knows Best

e Shared Care Records

e Data Quality

e Electronic Patient Record

e Strategic Data Platform

e Digitising Social Care Records

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint For\kard Plan 2023 115



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Patient Knows Best

What have heard from our residents

“The ability to see my appointments and information online has saved me missed
appointments due to letters not turning up in the post. If | wanted to, | can share my
records with family to support my care needs.”

Current Conditions

The Digital Patient Interface is a collaborative approach being implemented with
support from the Integrated Care Board into two trusts to enable more effective use
of resources.

The NHS App, delivered by NHS Digital, is a simple and secure way to access a
range of NHS services on a smartphone or tablet and is available to all patients aged
13 and over who are registered with a General Practitioners practice in England.
This first of its kind national integration allows patients with a Patient Knows Best
personal health record to directly access their combined dataset from Patient Knows
Best within the NHS App interface.

Patient Knows Best is contracted for more than 12 million people to use the service
across the United Kingdom. The Patient Knows Best platform includes health
information generated from General Practitioners as well as hospitals, community
and mental health services and the patient’s own contributed data, for example from
monitoring devices or questionnaires.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The NHS Long Term Plan sets out the vision of empowering people through their
ability to access, manage and contribute to their health and care record through
digital tools. It calls out the need to create straightforward digital access to NHS
services, for both patients/residents and carers. It sets out a new service model for
the 21st century with out of hospital care boosted, dissolution of the historic barrier
between primary and secondary care, people empowered with more control over
their health and mainstreaming digitally enabled primary and out-patient care.

NHS Long Term Plan: In 2020/21, people will have access to their care plan and
communications from their care professionals via the NHS App.

By March 2024 Acute Hospitals will have Patient Engagement Portal supporting
outpatient management.

Our Ambitions

Our ambition is to put patients in charge of their health and care records enabling
them to manage their own information digitally.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 116



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Priorities

e Reduction in administrative burden: using pre-assessment questionnaires
saving care team time

e Reduction in Did not Attend and slot utilisation: greater visibility of
appointment information and easier access to information on changing
appointments will reduce Did not Attends.

e Deliver cost savings through Digital rather than paper communication:
reduction in the number of letters sent via post as patients with access to the
portal can opt out of paper communication. Information previously shared as
paper leaflets can also be shared via the portal.

e Improve patient experience: patients are empowered with control over their
own health record

e Supports improved outcomes: patients can track and monitor their own health
and be supported via digital guidance.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Barry Frostick
Clinical Lead: Sam Neville Clinical Nursing Information Officer

Project resources have been provided across the partner organisations and
governance is delivered by way of an Integrated Care System programme board.
The Digital Patient Interface Programme Board is a decision-making board made up
of each of the partners involved in the delivery of the digital patient interface.

Below delivery governance structure.

ICS DDaT Board
A
MSE FT Outpatient MSE FT Digital ICS Digital Working EPUT Digital Strategy EPUT Programme
Oversight Group Transformation Board Group Group Steering Group
- - [Y [y
Digital Patient Interface
Programme Board

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForlRard Plan 2023 117



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care

NHS

v System Mid and South Essex
Delivery Plan
Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation
of objectives
Implementation commences Quarter one 2023/24
Implementation complete with Mid and South Essex Quarter four 2023/24
Foundation Trust and Essex Partnership University
Trust
Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 118




TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Shared Care Record

What have we heard from our residents?

Our residents and clinical workforce are dealing with fragmented care records
resulting in decisions and actions being taken without always the full knowledge of
the care record to hand.

‘I am going through all sorts of tests again because the trust can’t access my
records, which | am really mad about. | wish it was all one system and | wouldn’t
have to go through all of this all over again.” (Female Patient)

Current Conditions

In 2019 a short-term tactical information sharing solution (Cerner Health Information
Exchange was put in place with the contract due to end in July 2024.

This solution was part of much wider regional programme under ‘My Care Record’
banner. Health Information Exchange was selected as an approach to create sharing
capabilities for some of our partners across the Integrated Care System. Whilst this
has provided some immediate benefits on viewing data it is recognized that the
current solution does not support the ambition set out in the NHS Long Term Plan
and therefore does not meet the full Integrated Care System Digital Strategy
priorities.

There will be a significant transformation programme required to maximise the
opportunities a shared care record will bring.

The programme is in an advanced procurement state — aiming to award contracts
Q1 23/24 and start planning and implementation immediately following.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

NHS Long Term Plan: By 2024, secondary care providers in England, including
acute, community and mental health care settings, will be fully digitised, including
clinical and operational processes across all settings, locations and departments.
Data will be captured, stored and transmitted electronically, supported by robust IT
infrastructure and cyber security, and Local Health and Care Records will cover the
whole country.

Our Ambitions

To procure and implement a System - wide Shared Care Record which meets the
diverse needs of end users and therefore can make a difference to improving
resident and patient care across different care settings within Mid and South Essex.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint For\k8rd Plan 2023 119



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

The Shared Care Record ambition has been set against the following success
factors:

e A shared care record which takes information from each of the in-scope
service providers

e Interoperability across systems, such that each team works primarily from
host/local single front-end, whilst still accessing the shared care record

e As near to real-time data to support crisis management and multiple same-
day interactions in the integrated care team for patients

¢ Move towards bi-directional integration to ensure that accurate, timely and
appropriate information is captured in each service providers system (avoiding
additional double-keying)

e Reporting and analytics capability aligning to data platform strategy to support
benefits tracking, identifying service usage patterns, prioritisation of spend
and commissioning planning

e Reporting and analytics capability aligning to data platform strategy to support
benefits tracking, identifying service usage patterns, prioritisation of spend
and commissioning planning

Delivery priorities

The Shared Care Record Programme has been keen to ensure that there is strong
representation from various professional groups (clinical, operational, technical,
procurement and finance) across all System partner organisations. The Programme
has striven to promote the ethos of co-production throughout the procurement
process to ensure that there is maximum buy-in from organisations in the
implementation phase.

We will work with our partners to create the technical supporting infrastructure and
functions to support new integrated ways of working.

Through our Business workstream we will work with front line teams to maximise the
benefits and positive impact of having integrated patient records and workflow
across our system.

We will partner with Integrated Care Systems who are already implementing Shared
Care Records to learn and accelerate our delivery.

Ensuring Delivery

Integrated Care System Senior Responsible Owner: Barry Frostick
Integrated Care System Clinical System Programme Director: Clare Steward
Chief Clinical Information Officer: Dr Taz Syed

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 120



T Mid and South Essex
1 3 Integrated Care m
{37 System Mid and South Essex

Below diagram of governance arrangements.

Digital Data & Technology {DOaT]
ard

SCR SLT meetin
Chair: Clarn

Meets M

stream meeting - Tech & integration Meeting
uth Halkett ; o ¢ dartram
Meets Monthly S Meets fortnightly

f
L o s I . 4 4
Task & Finish Task & Finish Task & Finish
Groups to meet gs | Graups to meet gs Groups ta meet as
* I

required { required reguired

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation of

objectives
Contract Award to Preferred supplier to provide Quarter one 2023/24
Shared Care Record

Implementation (Phasing to be confirmed as part of Second half of 2024/25
contract signature)

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 121



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Digital — Data Quality

Current Condition

Recurrent issues with data quality mean that, as a system, we struggle to make
operational and strategic decisions using a data-driven approach.

We need to adopt the Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust data quality framework
and vision, which is in line with our organisational strategy and the wider Integrated
Care System digital strategy. This outlines the importance of:

e Capturing and maintaining patient information accurately to support excellent
clinical care.

e Ensuring accurate corporate data to provide more efficient processing of
staffing, finance and corporate information.

e Greater integration between systems and providers.

e Fostering an organisational culture that is committed to high quality data

e A need to increase operational ownership for resolution of data quality issues
because of poor data entry by operational users.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

A need to provide accurate and reliable performance and management information
for services.

Better alignment and coaching from NHS England on the use of the Data Quality
Maturity Index.

Our ambitions

e To embed high quality data into the everyday working of staff throughout the
organisation, ensuring it is a central theme of a wider business management
approach reinforcing right data, first time, every time.

e To have a published Data Quality Maturity Index that is delivered to the
Integrated Care System board

e To create a consistent approach in managing data quality concerns which are
raised with clear operational ownership for resolution.

Deliver Priorities

e Recruitment of a Data Quality Lead to deliver on the Data Quality Framework

e Assessment of the current state of Data Quality across Integrated Care
System

¢ Rollout of the Data Quality Framework across the Integrated Care System.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 122



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m
{17 System Mid and South Essex

e Resolution of highlighted data quality issues including Referral To Treatment
and Discharge (No Criteria To Reside)

e Integration of Data Quality into operational governance for assurance and
agreement on resolution paths.

Ensuring Delivery

e All developments are run through a business intelligence governance board
and where appropriate we request clinical and business leads to own future
data quality, by each relevant system.

e Data quality items will feed through existing operational meetings and report
to the System Oversight and Assurance Committee.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation of

objectives
Recruitment of a Data Quality Lead Quarter two 2023/24

Assessment of the current state of Data Quality across | Quarter three 2023/24
Integrated Care System

Rollout of the Data Quality Framework Quarter four 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 123



4 v

4
'L

B

4

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Electronic Patient Record

What have our residents told us?

There are many areas across the Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System
where our residents have overlapping needs across acute, mental health and
community care — yet our systems are not setup to manage this effectively as
evidenced by:

Our Electronic Patient Record approach offers a solution to this by:

e Building an integrated health care solution infrastructure for the first time in the
United Kingdom.

e Providing clear data across shared pathways allowing a view of the whole
person when providing care — regardless of their point of access to the system
and regardless of their needs.

Current Conditions

Our system currently relies on an “unintegrated” digital health infrastructure with over
10 siloed clinical systems.

Lack of Electronic Patient Record integration prevents staff from having an overall
picture of the patient’s clinical journey and consistent access to viewing patient
records and notes. This leads to gaps in the patient’s clinical pathway and poses
risks.

Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust have 3 Electronic Patient Record’s and
Essex Partnership Trust have 7 Electronic Patient Record’s. In Mid and South Essex
Foundation Trust they have multiple patient indexes in use meaning a patient could
have three records if they are seen at more than one hospital site. Resolving this
level of fragmentation and complexity will underpin a number of resolutions for Data
Quality issues, unwarranted variation of clinical care and a reduction of integration
requirements.

There is no system in the UK market that currently delivers the functionality required
across all care settings. Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust and Essex
Partnership University Trust would be 'first movers' in this space. The collaboration is
strengthened by a clear vision and history of delivering complex programmes
together. Essex Partnership University Trust and Mid and South Essex Foundation
Trust are actively collaborating on various programmes of work to integrate digital
and data systems, e.g., the Shared Data Platform.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

All Integrated Care Systems and their NHS Trusts are aiming to have core digital
capabilities, including electronic health records, in place by April 2026.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 124



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

All providers, across acute, community and mental

health settings, will be expected to advance to a core level of digitisation by 2024.

Our Ambitions

The obijective of this programme is to procure and implement a new unified
Integrated Care System enterprise-wide electronic patient record system for mental
health, community, acute services with an integrated electronic prescribing and
medicines administration functionality.

The scope is for functionality provided by an Electronic Patient Record system to
support the clinical and administrative processes, improve the safety and delivery of
patient care, patient experience and outcomes.

It supports the NHS England national ambitions by entering Essex Partnership
University Trust and Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust into a partnership to
procure a unified Electronic Patient Record solution. Investment in a unified
Electronic Patient Record solution also supports the strategic, digital, and system
visions and priorities for both Trusts and enables the Trust and Integrated Care
System Digital Strategies to work as an integrated system.

Delivery Priorities

Delivery of NHS England priorities including ‘a wide-ranging and funded programme
to upgrade technology and digitally enabled care across the NHS’, recognising that
‘digital services and data interoperability give us [the NHS] the opportunity to free up
time and resources to focus on clinical care and staying healthy.’ It sets the
expectation that ‘all providers, across acute, community and mental health settings,
will be expected to advance to a core level of digitisation by 2024 .’

NHS England aims to support healthcare providers by accelerating the rollout of
Electronic Patient Record systems, aiming for 90% of NHS trusts to have an
electronic patient record in place by December 2023.

The Trusts do not currently have a single electronic patient record. There is a clear
mandate from NHS England to improve their current level of digitisation to a core
level.

We are working in partnership with our providers to deliver this ambitious and
challenging programme.

Ensuring Delivery

Integrated Care System Senior Responsible Owner:  Anthony McKeever
Barry Frostick

Integrated Care System Programme Director: Clare Steward

Essex Partnership University Trust Lead Senior Responsible Owner:

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 125



<17 » Mid and South Essex
1 3 Integrated Care m

“Iyr System Mid and South Essex

Paul Scott
Zephan Trent
Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust Lead Senior Responsible Owner:
Hannah Coffey
Charlotte Williams
Essex Partnership University Trust Delivery Lead: Adam Whiting
Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust Delivery Lead: Gemma Lawrence

There is an existing Digital, Data and Technology Board in place.

There are Trust level programme teams in place at both Essex Partnership
University Trust and Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust and workstreams are
aligned and established.

The organogram below shows the feed of work streams into the Programme Board,
Delivery Board and ultimately the Strategic Board. The Strategic Board membership
includes Mid and South Essex and Essex Partnership University Trust Chief
Executive Officer’s, Senior Responsible Officer’s and the Integrated Care System
Chief Digital Information Officer, providing the appropriate governance, oversight and
empowerment to action recommendations and resolve escalations.

Note: Initial Programme
Governance Structure to

EPR Governance Structure conmctsignature

EPUT
Trust Board
Strategic EPR Board
(Assurance) A‘DD’T
CEQ's/ BF /2T / CW -

EPR Delivery Board
(Delivery)
EPR Digital and
::;x:w" . T['ir‘" 'nd

NHSE/I
Assurance

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 126



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
v System Mid and South Essex
Delivery Plan
Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation of
objectives
Outline Business Case Approved Quarter one 2023/24
Invitation To Tender and Specification published Quarter two 2023/24
Intent to award published Quarter three 2023/24
Full Business Case Approved Quarter four 2023/24
Contract Signature Quarter four 2023/24
Deployment to be confirmed — subject to supplier To be confirmed
choice and full business case approval

Digital — Strategic Data Platform

What have we heard from our residents

Whilst impactful to residents this is not a resident facing product/programme of work

Current Conditions

In April 2021, Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System approved our Business
Intelligence Strategy. This set out a number of recommendations around people,
processes, information, and technology, to deliver on the key messages of improving
the lives of our residents. Central to this was the creation of a Strategic Data
Platform (now known as Athena) where data can be manipulated and collated to
provide a single source of truth.

This will enable better planning at an Integrated Care System level, to provide
evidence-based decision making and the ability to focus on improving services and
the health and wellbeing needs for the 1.2m population in Mid and South Essex.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

National guidance outlines that Integrated Care System’ must “develop shared
cross-system intelligence and analytical functions that use information to improve
decision-making at every level, including:

e actionable insight for frontline teams.
e near-real time actionable intelligence and robust data (financial, performance,
quality, outcomes).

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 127



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e system-wide workforce, finance, quality and performance planning; and
e the capacity and skills needed for population health management.

Our Ambitions
The implementation of a strategic data platform is one of the main foundations to:

e unlock the full potential of our vast data sets

e improve operational planning and more effectively target our finite resources
e empower our Stewardship programme

e improve the health of our residents through the proactive targeting of services
e provide a single source of data for our system partners

Delivery priorities

e To give all Mid and South Essex partners access to platforms a single view of
data.

e Integration of data into population health systems

e Creation of virtual analytics team

e Data alignment

e Future data resilience

Ensuring Delivery
Senior Responsible Owner: Steve Gallagher

All developments are run through a business intelligence governance board and
where appropriate we request clinical leads to own future dashboards

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Data sharing and sub license agreements that will | Quarter two 2023/24
enable all Integrated Care System partners access
to the data
Create a more enriched view of our residents Quarter two 2023/24
including non-health data, such as housing,
education etc
Single Data Services for Commissioners Regional | Quarter two 2023/24
Office feed ideally via Arden and Gem for all Essex
residents, including neighbouring Integrated Care
Boardss (Suffolk and North Essex and Herts and
West Essex) data too
To build a virtual advanced analytics team in Quarter three 2023/24
conjunction with Arden and Gem and Essex
County Council, to support future requirements

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 128



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation

around predictive analytics and demand and
capacity

of objectives

Create a single view of the data architecture
across Mid and South Essex, to enable a better
understanding of how data flows across the
organisation, to identify bottlenecks, data quality
issues, migration concerns

Quarter three 2023/24

Create a data quality framework, that includes an
assessment, programme, education and metrics,
to improve the quality of data across the ICS and
keep at a more consistently high level

Quarter three 2023/24

To migrate all necessary GEMIMA reports to the
Athena platform

Quarter one 2023/24

Ensure all General Practitioners have signed data
sharing agreements allowing access to patient
held data

Quarter one 2023/24

To move towards the creation of a single virtual (or
physical) data and analytics team for the
Integrated Care System, teaming or sharing
resources, technologies, methods of delivery etc.

Quarter four 2023/24

Alignment with the Federated Data Platform and
Secure Data Environment strategies with NHS
England

First half of 2024/25

Implementation of a consistent methodology for
the development, testing and release of future
dashboards, including upskilling the workforce, as
and where appropriate

Quarter two 2023/24

The inclusion of additional data flows to Athena,
including non-health data, workforce etc

Quarter two 2023/24

Development of the Integrated Care System
System Development Plan Business Case to
secure funding and ensure the platform can be
sustained in the next 3-5 years

Quarter one 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWward Plan 2023

129



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Digital — Digitising Social Care Record

What have our residents told us?

NHS England is running a programme to help Care Quality Commission registered
care providers to adopt a digital social care record system. They will fund 50% of
providers first year implementation costs. In Mid and South Essex, providers can
claim up to a maximum of £10,000.

Over 87% of care providers who do not have a Digital Social Care Record system
have said they would be interested in acquiring a system to enable them to spend
less time on paperwork and more time delivering care, leading to better and quicker
care plan creation and an overall increase in the quality of care they deliver.

Current Conditions

At the current time the care market is challenged by way of capacity to respond and
draw down resources even when they may be of benefit. Our priority is to look at
how the Integrated Care System invests further in resource to support the
engagement of the care market as part of a match funding arrangement over the
remaining two years of the national programme.

Working in partnership the Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System Digital
Social Care Record team resource have run a baselining exercise with neighbouring
Integrated Care Systems to establish how prevalent the use of Digital Social Care
Record systems are across our market. So far, this has indicated 37% of the market
use a Digital Social Care Record system, which is significantly below what Care
Quality Commission have stated, however, we have had difficulty in engaging with
the market to the extent we have hoped (18% of Mid and South Essex based
providers (111/619) have responded to our baselining survey to date) and we are
working to increase the response rate.

Locally across the Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System three local authority
footprints, there is an issue with the systems available to our care providers. The
systems eligible for funding must come from the NHS assured supplier list. For
example, in Essex, the Access Group have a high share of the market, but they are
not on this list. This has led to some providers not wanting to pursue funding.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

NHS England and NHS Improvement have set a target of 60% of care providers to
have a Digital Social Care Record system by 31st March 2023, and 80% by 31st
March 2024.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 130



T Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

From April 2023, the project will also include funding for falls technology, and a wider
scope for what providers can claim for in regard to digital social care records. For
example, they will be able to apply for funding for rostering systems.

Our Ambitions

e Ensure that all Care Quality Commission registered care providers have a
digital social care record system.

e To create a locally led falls programme and reduce the risk of and occurrence
of falls within our health and care system. The 10% of residents most at risk of
falls will have sensor-based falls technology in place by the end of the
programme.

Delivery Priorities

Mid and South Essex to achieve 60% of the market having an “NHS assured
supplier” Digital Social Care Record system in place by 31st March 2023, and 80%
having one by 31st March 2024.

Ensuring Delivery

Integrated Care System Senior Responsible Owner: Barry Frostick
Integrated Care System Programme Director: Clare Steward

The Digital Social Care Record programme reports to the Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care System Digital, Data and Technology Board. The work is being led
by Essex County Council on behalf of Thurrock and Southend local authorities.

Delivery Plan

Timespan for implementation of

Delivery Plan objectives

objectives
60% Care Quality Commission registered care Quarter one 2023/24
providers to have a Digital Social Care Record

80% Care Quality Commission registered care Quarter four 2023/24
providers to have a Digital Social Care Record

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 131



ol Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Appendix 7 — Improving
Operational Performance

Within this section you will find long term plans relating to:

e Maternity Services

e Elective Care (including Patient Choice)
e Cancer Services

e Primary Care

e Adult Mental Health Services

e Babies, Children and Young People Mental Health Services
e Neurodiversity Services

e Babies, Children and Young People Services
e Urgent & Emergency Care Services

e Respiratory Breathlessness Services

e OQutpatients Services

e Diagnostic Services

e Stroke Services

e Cardiac Services

e Cardiovascular Services

e Palliative and End of Life Care Services
e Diabetes Services

e Dermatology Services

e Eye Care Services

e Pharmacy and Medicines Optimisation
e Musculoskeletal and Pain Services

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 132



4 ,
\4

4
v LS

v

4

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Maternity

What have our residents told us?

Listening to women, people, and their families, is fundamental to improving maternity
and neonatal services. The Maternity Improvement Programme brings together all
associated activity needed to address regulatory, national, and local requirements
led by defined workstreams. Its progress is supported by representatives from the
Local Maternity and Neonatal System and the Maternity and Neonatal Voices
Partnership (a service user representative group), demonstrating the collaborative
nature of this approach. This ensures maternity and neonatal services are
coproduced and developed in conjunction with those using them.

Current conditions

Currently, local maternity services in mid and south Essex, are challenged by
significant midwifery vacancies. To overcome this, the Local Maternity and Neonatal
System, Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust and the Integrated Care System are
working collaboratively to ensure all avenues for both recruitment and retention are
pursued, with both a short-term and long-term view.

Maternity services at Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust are currently rated as
“Requires Improvement” by the Care Quality Commission, following their inspection
in 2022. The maternity service at Basildon has a Section 31 Care Quality
Commission Warning Notice in place and associated legal undertakings which are
monitored and supported by the Local Maternity and Neonatal System, Integrated
Care Board and NHS England.

Another important area of focus for local maternity services is their maternity
governance team, who following recent re-organisation, are working to embed their
work. Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust is working closely with their NHS
England Maternity Improvement Advisor to review governance processes, ensuring
they are effective and robust to underpin the safety of the service.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The NHS Maternity and Neonatal Long-Term Plan commits to achieve 50%
reductions in stillbirth, maternal mortality, neonatal mortality, and serious brain injury
by 2025.

It also seeks to reduce pre-term births by 25%, with a reduction in the preterm birth
rate from 8% to 6%. In conjunction with this over the next five years (2023-2028),
maternity and neonatal services will focus on delivery of the Maternity
Transformation Programme priorities and improving the quality of maternity and
neonatal care to enable the movement of the Care Quality Commission’s maternity
services rating from “Requires Improvement” to “Good”.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 133



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Our Ambitions

The Mid and South Essex Local Maternity and Neonatal System comprises a wide
variety of individuals and organisations involved in maternity and neonatal services,
including representatives for those who use them. It is committed to improving both
the quality of care and the experience of those using maternity services, ensuring it
reflects a safe, personalised, and equitable service, based around the needs of a
woman or person, and her family. We are working to implement the vision set out in
Better Births (2016) through delivery of the national Maternity Transformation
Programme.

Alongside this, the Local Maternity and Neonatal System will continue to have
oversight of the Immediate and Essential Actions identified within the final Ockenden
report as well as the recommendations from the independent investigation into East
Kent's maternity services. These will continue to inform maternity services
organisation and care delivery, which is key to the ongoing improvement and
learning needed by our services.

Delivery Priorities

The key priorities for the Local Maternity and Neonatal System and maternity
services provided in Mid and South Essex include:

e Supporting the provision of midwifery continuity of carer, as the default model
of care by ensuring the building blocks are in place for continued safe rollout.

e Ensuring the implementation of the five elements of the Saving Babies Lives
care bundle v2, including any future iterations of it.

e Ensuring ongoing participation in the national Maternity and Neonatal Safety
Improvement Programme.

e The establishment of Maternal Medicine Networks, so that women with
significant medical problems have timely access to specialist advice and care
at any stage of pregnancy. Maternity Medicine pathways will seek to
establish referral processes between primary care providers and local
maternity services, in order to achieve this.

e The Local Maternity and Neonatal System will support the delivery of the
Equity and Equality action plan, to reduce health inequalities in maternity and
neonatal care.

e The development of smoke free pregnancy pathways, reflecting the NHS
Long Term Plan ambition.

e Implementation of Maternal Mental Health Services, initially for those who
have experienced the loss of a baby, as part of a collaboration between
perinatal mental health and maternity services.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward ¥fan 2023 134



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care

{37 System

NHS

Mid and South Essex

e The development of local Perinatal Pelvic Health Services in conjunction with
specialist midwives and physiotherapists.

e Ensuring all women are offered a personalised care and support plan
underpinned by a risk assessment and in line with national guidance. These
will be developed in collaboration with Maternity and Neonatal Voices

Partnerships.

MSE Long Term Plan stillbirth rate ambition

Baseline 2021/
2016 2019/20 | 2020/21 29 2022/23 | 2023/24
Ambitio | Rate 3.6 35 33 | 34 2.9
n rate per
Actual 1,000
rate* live 43
(stabilis births ' 2019 2020 2021
ed and and 3.12 3.24 3.15
adjusted | stillbirth
) S

*Data source Perinatal mortality by organisation | MBRRACE-UK (le.ac.uk)

MSE Long Term Plan neonatal mortality rate ambition

Baseline 2021/
2016 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 oy | 2022/23 | 2023/24

Rate | Rate 09 08 08 07 06

Actual per

rate* 1,000

(eséaabégs lt:\i/r?hs 1.0 2019 2020 2021

adjusted | and 1.27 1.06 0.84

) stillbirth

S

*Data source Perinatal mortality by organisation | MBRRACE-UK (le.ac.uk)

Note: National data reported by calendar year with availability to 2021 currently. lItis
acknowledged that the pandemic has had an impact on rates of stillbirth and preterm
birth (which may in turn impact rates of neonatal death), and this should be taken
into consideration.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023

135



https://timms.le.ac.uk/mbrrace-uk-perinatal-mortality/
https://timms.le.ac.uk/mbrrace-uk-perinatal-mortality/

TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Frances Bolger
Clinical Lead: Gemma Hickford

The Local Maternity and Neonatal System has clear governance processes in place
that ensures oversight is provided by the Local Maternity and Neonatal System
Steering Board, which is chaired by the Maternity Senior Responsible Owner and
Chief Nurse for the Integrated Care Board. In line with NHS England guidance, the
Local Maternity and Neonatal System is responsible for full and ongoing oversight of
quality, and this understanding of the quality of local maternity and neonatal services
informs transformation.

In conjunction with this, the revised Perinatal Quality Surveillance Model has been
implemented, detailing the clear lines of responsibility and accountability held by the
trust, Local Maternity and Neonatal System/Integrated Care System, regional and
national NHS England teams, in terms of addressing quality concerns at each level
of the system.

Several of the priorities identified are operationally overseen by Trust based
workstreams, organisational escalation at Trust level is then expected to be through
the Maternity Improvement Programme Committee.

The Local Maternity and Neonatal System Steering Board will also receive
escalations and maintains system oversight of progress against priorities for
transformation.

The below shows the System governance structure.

Mid & South Essex LMNS Organogram 2022/23

ICB BOARD |
0 tearg osrs X\J N
s = Owersight
Cuality Group ‘Commitoee Group

www midandsouthessex ics nhs uk

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 136



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Reduce rates of maternal, neonatal deaths
stillbirths and brain injury by 50%

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Second half of 2024/25

Increase proportion of smoke free pregnancies to
94% or greater

Quarter two 2023/24

Improve access to perinatal mental health care

Quarter three 2023/24

Provide improved access to specialist pelvic
health services

Quarter three 2023/24

Ensure all women and pregnant people are
offered a personalised care and support plan
during pregnancy

Quarter three 2023/24

Reduce preterm birth rates by 25%, from 8% to

6%

Second half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023

137



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Elective Care (Including Choice)

What have our residents told us?

Our residents want the ability to choose provider, they want to be able to receive
care close to home and in a timely manner.

Current Conditions

The key challenge for elective recovery is the ability to provide continued service
when capacity for delivery is impacted by wider non-elective pressures within the
system. We continue to work with other System partners (Independent Sector and
Community Providers) so we can maximise capacity to support, manage and treat
people awaiting elective care. Sustaining focus on other key areas for example
virtual clinic appointments and patient initiated follow ups will be the key to releasing
capacity both now and for the future.

Enabling people to be well and as fit as possible whilst waiting for care is critical to
ensuring we can deliver treatments / procedures as quickly as possible. Information
and communication for people waiting has been developed — this is promoted via the
MyPlannedCare website. This is a national platform for the public to access
information about local services, including provider waiting times so that patients can
exercise choice as per the national Choice Framework.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Mid and South Essex System is required to respond to the national planning asks for
elective operating priorities, which are supplemented with asks from national team
throughout the year.

Our Ambition

As outlined in the Long Term Plan our focus for Elective care remains:

Bringing Care Closer to Home:

e Joining up our different health, care and voluntary services means we can
bring services closer people’s homes —whether that is through support on-line,
or by bringing health and care services into the community such as some
hospital outpatient appointments, tests like x-rays and blood tests and support
for people living with long term conditions like diabetes or breathing problems.

Improving and Transforming Our Services:

Ensuring our residents have the highest chances of recovery from their illness or
condition, and to give them the best treatment we can, to live as well as they can.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Bfan 2023 138



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

Demand for services is changing as people grow older and live with more long-term
conditions and there is much more we could do with technology, medical

advances and new ways of working to treat people at an earlier stage, avoid more
serious illness, and to live as well as they can for longer.

Delivery Priorities

e Having clear recovery trajectories and plans for the key asks as per the
2023/24 National Planning Guidance. Operating priorities will be subject to
change as Planning Guidance is released and refreshed annually.

e There were additional elective recovery asks sent to each System within the
National Tier 1 and Tier 2 letter. The Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust
board completed its assessment against these — these are overseen via the
Elective Board.

e The key Referral to Treatment deliverable is to have zero patients waiting 65+
weeks from March 2024 onwards.

The below table shows the Mid and South Essex system planned Referral to
Treatment 65+ week backlog trajectory to a zero position from March 2024.

Date April May June July August  September October

2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
No. 4,383 3,985 3,585 3,187 2,791 2,391 1,994

November December January February March

2023 2023 2024 2024 2024

No. 1,596 1,196 799 402 0

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Andrew Pike
Clinical Lead: Ronan Fenton

The Mid and South Essex Transformation and Improvement Board for Elective Care
oversees all aspects of elective (referral to treatment). The National Planning asks,
and delivery, recovery or mitigation plans are presented here for assurance.

This Board then collates headline risks, actions and escalation items which are
presented to the Mid and South Essex System Oversight and Assurance Committee.

The below shows the System governance structure.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWard Plan 2023 139



Mid and South Essex
'7 Integrated Care
¥ System

s0ac informed by the Elective Elective oversight and
Tran on and Imp ant assurance via the programme
soard lzads/SRO
Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Performance

I/
ry
s

independant Sector
5\
LY

\ Policy of Limited Clinical Effectiveness

Timespan for implementation

For detailed plans for 23/24 see operational
planning submission

of objectives
From quarter one to quarter
four 2023/24

Achievement of zero patients waiting over 65
weeks for their procedure

Quarter four 2023/24

Continue to increase number of patients receiving
virtual outpatient appointment

From quarter one to quarter
four 2023/24

Continue to increase number of patients receiving
their follow up appointment as patient initiated as
opposed to a pre-booked appointment
(empowering the patient)

From quarter one to quarter
four 2023/24

Continue to reduce patients waiting over 52 weeks
for their procedure

From quarter one 2023/24 to
second half of 2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023

140



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Cancer Services

What have our residents told us?

Currently our patients are waiting too long to find out if they have a cancer diagnosis,
or for their treatment.

Cancer Stewards to continue to lead the Cancer transformation programme across
Mid and South Essex including involvement in best practice pathway review and
sustainability, allocation of Cancer Alliance resources for the optimum outcome that
supports the short-, medium- and long-term System ambition for cancer services and
population health.

Ensuring our residents have the highest chances of recovery from their illness or
condition, and to give them the best treatment we can, through implementation of
best practice pathways. Demand for services is changing, we will use technology to
implement new ways of providing care.

Personalisation is paramount to how we engage with our population and
underpinned by leadership and a skilled workforce who can respond to population
needs, this includes use of shared decision making to ensure that the patient
pathway is right for them.

To achieve our ambition, we need to understand what our population want from us
and ensure that any change is underpinned by experience, feedback and
engagement from service users, ensuring use of co-production in future pathway
redesign.

Recognising the importance of pre-habilitation and rehabilitation and improving post
treatment care for those individuals, their families and carers. Empowering people to
re-engage with services as part of their self-management plan.

Current Conditions

To effectively deliver best practice pathways and develop cancer services we need
the right workforce across all specialties. Succession planning, recruitment and
retention of workforce is essential to service delivery. The right staff and ongoing
training must be part of our workforce plans. Workforce considerations for effective
and safe cancer services need to include diagnostics and pathology because without
capacity here the ability to recover cancer services will be impacted.

Across Cancer services working with all partners including primary care networks is
critical, work with the Primary Care Networks is essential to improving information
shared with referrals to enable patients to be actively triaged to the right pathway for
them.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWWard Plan 2023 141



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

The System is moving services closer to home, particularly for diagnostics and
chemotherapy.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Mid and South Essex System is required to respond to the national planning asks for
cancer, these are supplemented with asks from national team throughout the year.

Our Ambitions

As outlined in the Mid and South Essex Long Term Plan our focus for Cancer
remains:

e Promoting use of screening and tests to enable early diagnosis across cancer
services including access for marginalised groups. This promotion extends to
non-invasive tests to support early diagnosis.

e Consolidation of the Rapid Diagnostic Service for patients to incorporate a
consistent offer across our population this will include non-site specific
symptoms which could indicate cancer and ensure people are on the correct
pathway.

e Implementation of a range of Targeted Interventions to enable case finding
and active promotion and prevention for individuals

e Continuing National Targeted Lung Health Checks to support earlier diagnosis
of lung cancer as per National requirement.

Delivery Priorities

To enable safe care our patient pathways, need to be supported by enablers
including the shared patient record, so that wherever the patient attends for their
care, their clinical team can see their records to reduce delays.

Joining up our different health, care and voluntary services means we can bring
services closer to people’s homes. Opportunities for care closer to home include
chemotherapy, infusions, surveillance diagnostics, local tests and access to
medication.

We will develop a System wide approach for cancer patients ensuring effective
pathways and partnership working and following Nationally agreed best practice
pathways.

We will continue to work with our patient population. The two pilots in development:

1. Virtual Group Cancer Care Review
2. Prostate Case Finding pilot

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 142



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

are two examples of co-production that have involved patients from the very start,
and we are committed to build on co-production work.

We will continue to involve and listen to our Mid and South Essex Patient Champion
Engagement Committee.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Karen Wesson
Clinical Lead: Liz Towers

The Mid and South Essex Transformation and Improvement Board for Cancer
oversees all aspects of cancer care. The National Planning asks, and delivery,
recovery or mitigation plans are presented here for assurance. This Board then
collates headline risks, actions and escalation items which are presented to the Mid
and South Essex System Oversight and Assurance Committee.

Mid and South Essex NHS Foundation Integrated Care Board & System Regional & Nationally Led
Trust (MSEFT) Led Led
TMEX/Finance and
Performance
commitiee e Tier 1 Cancer Meeting -
MSEFT Portfolio Monthl every two weeks
Y
Board
Monthly
MSE System Cancer
MSE Cancer Transformation and
Programme Board Improvement Board
ICB & Trust Monthly
Monthly
Cancer
Workstreams
ICB & Trust
Monthly
MSEFT
Cancer Huddle &
Operational Meeting —
COO0 led
Weekly

The above shows the System and internal Trust governance structure.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWWard Plan 2023 143



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for

The priority pathways with continued initial focus for
2023/24 to reduce patients waiting over 62 days
are:

Skin

Colorectal

Prostate

Gynaecology

Breast

(For detailed plans for 23/24 see operational
planning submission)

implementation of objectives
From quarter one to quarter
four 2023/24

June 23 /70% - Sept 23/ 72.5% - Dec 23/ 75% -
March 24)

Trust tracking of tumour site trajectories for Quarter two 2023/24
Haematology, Head & Neck, Lung and Upper

Gastrointestinal Intestinal during 23/24

28-day Cancer faster diagnosis standard (67.5% - | Quarter four 2023/24

Targeted improvement and recovery plans for
increasing % of cancers diagnosed at states 1 & 2
(See 23/24 operational plan for further details
relating to —

e Lynch Testing
Prostate Case Finding
Cervical Screening
IT system improvement
Pathology systems improvements
Bowel Screening
Non-specific Symptoms pathways
Targeted Lung Health Checks

From quarter one to quarter
four 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pran 2023

144



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Adult Mental Health Services

What have our residents told us?

Working with our communities and against national guidance has been key to how
we transform mental health services. The message from our local population has
been an ask for services to be more joined up, ensuring users and communities are
part of co-producing services, making care individualised and responsive with
prevention and early intervention to support them live well in their communities.

We continue to hear from local residents, staff working within the Integrated Care
System and in the Integrated Care Board about the challenges of joined up working.
This spans across the acute, secondary, and primary care space and across
physical and mental health care and social arenas. This means a change in
language, physical and digital space and building confidence in the workforce to be
able to hold the whole person in mind and make sure that we optimise every contact.

Current Conditions

Our Mental Health Partnership Board through the Whole System Transformation
Group has overseen the development of the transformation to enhance effective
delivery on the Long Term Plan commitments through the Mental Health Investment
Standard. The current transformation of community mental health services whilst
ongoing has highlights of a system with significant reliance on inpatient services, a
workforce challenge and sometimes a lack of defined structure between system and
place.

Through our focus on the wider determinants of health, our primary care networks,
and place-based plans, we want to ensure the system rebalances in favour of
prevention, early intervention, resilience, and recovery.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Mental health transformation continues to take place in Mid & South Essex, aligned
with the calls to improve and widen access to mental health support outlined in the
2021 report from the independent Mental Health Taskforce review, the Five Year
Forward View for Mental Health1 and the NHS Long Term Plan.

Our Ambitions

The Southend, Essex and Thurrock Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2017-
2021, (being refreshed 2022) articulated a common vision and ambition for the
development of high-quality mental health care, around the commitment to “ensure
that everyone needing support in Southend, Essex and Thurrock—including families
and carers —get the right service at the right time from the right people in the right

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint For\WWard Plan 2023 145



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

way”2. The Strategy explicitly acknowledged the 8 principles set out in the NHS Five
Year Forward View for Mental Health.

Our vision for mental health in Mid & South Essex Integrated Care System is to:

e Improve urgent and emergency care mental health — crisis response and care.

e Integrate social care, mental health and physical health — parity of esteem and
care closer to home.

e Promote good mental health and preventing poor mental health — early
intervention and prevention.

e Moving the narrative to a ‘we/our’ shared language rather than ‘them/us’
language, to support understanding and confidence in the system about the
person’s journey through services.

e Collocating services either physically or virtually so that every contact can be
maximise and skills can be shared.

e Commitment to all age MH strategy and delivery through a collaborative as
part of the strategy implementation

Delivery Priorities

Urgent and Emergency Care Mental Health

Liaison Mental Health

Adult and Older Adult Crisis

Acute Care (including Out of Area Placements)

Community Serious Mental lliness services for Adults and Older Adults
Early Intervention in Psychosis

Individual placement services

Serious Mental lliness — Physical Health Checks

9. Advancing Inequalities in Mental Health

10.Integrated Primary and Community Care Mental Health

11. Community Chronic Mental lliness for Adults and Older Adults
12.Improving Access to Psychological Therapies

13.Perinatal

14.Integrated model

15.Dementia

16.Functional Older Adults

17.Suicide Reduction & Bereavement

18.Bereavement

19.Complex Care & and move from Care Programme Approach

NN =

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Maria Crowley
Clinical Lead: Amy Bartlett

Below organogram of system governance arrangements.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 146



< Mid and South Essex
1 3 Integrated Care
{37 System

‘Governing Bodies; Boards; Local

Authority Cabinets; Provider Boards etc

Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Board

NHS

Mid and South Essex

System Oversight; HOSCs;
Health & Wellbeing Boards; Urgent & Emergency

Care Board; Safeguarding Boards etc

Mental Health Partnership Board

Mental Health Inequalities

Whole System Transformation Group

Integrated Primary & Community Care Mental Health
Steering Group

}

weay.
uoneLLIIOjsURl|
HIN 2041 89

HW 22d1 35

we3)
uonewsojsues|
HIN 2041 PIN
uopewIiojsuel|
dnoig Bupaagg
uopuaNaLg
Pppmns
adeujans /
LT uosien HA

Place SM MH Transformation Governance

N Mid and South Essex
. .. Integrated Care
“d%” System

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Urgent & Emergency Care Steering Group

XK B [ o
|

Mental Health Accommodation
Transformation Group

[
| g I | |
g 2 I 3
R PRI SR £
ol B A R

MSE MH Transformation Governance

www.midandsouthessex.ics.nhs.uk

Timespan for implementation
of objectives

A range of complementary and alternative crisis
services to Accident & Emergency and admission
(including in Voluntary and Community, Faith and
Social Enterprise/ local authority-provided
services) within all local mental health crisis
pathways;

Quarter three 2023/24

Deliver against Integrated Care Board level plans
to eliminate inappropriate adult acute out of area
placements as against planned trajectory

Quarter four 2023/24

The therapeutic offer from inpatient mental health
services will be improved by increased investment
in interventions and activities, resulting in better
patient outcomes and experience in hospital. This
will contribute to a reduction in length of stay for all
services to the current national average of 32 days
(or fewer) in adult acute inpatient mental health
settings (“Time to Care”)

First half of 2024/25

Established new specialist mental health provision
for rough sleepers

Quarter two 2023/24

Deliver against multi-agency suicide prevention
plans, working towards a national 10% reduction
in suicides with a suicide bereavement plan in
place

Quarter one 2023/24

All areas within Mid and South Essex Integrated
Care Board will maintain the existing Talking

Quarter three 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWWard Plan 2023

147



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan objectives

Therapies referral to treatment time and recovery
standards

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation

of objectives

Supporting women to access evidence-based
specialist mental health care during the perinatal
period. This will include access to psychological
therapies and the right range of specialist
community

First half of 2024/25

Provision of NHS specialist treatment for people
with serious gambling problems.

Quarter four 2023/24

Mental health professionals working in ambulance
control rooms, Integrated Urgent Care services,
and providing on-the-scene response via a Mental
Health ambulance car in line with clinical quality
indicators

Quarter two 2023/24

Continuation of the new integrated community
models for adults with Serious Mental lliness
(including care for people with eating disorders,
mental health rehabilitation needs and a
‘personality disorder’ diagnosis) spanning both
core community provision and implementation of
the complex care pathway with a move to
“personalised Care “for greater choice and control,
moving away from the care programme approach

Quarter three 2023/24

Implementation of recovery colleges and
improving access to Individual Placement and
Support to be doubled, enabling people with
severe mental illnesses to find and retain
employment.

Ensuring over 60% of people experiencing a first
episode of psychosis will have access to a
National Institute for Health and Care Excellence -
approved care package within two weeks of
referral. 60% of services will achieve Level 3
National Institute of Health and Care Excellence

concordance by end 2023/24

Quarter four 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfn 2023

148



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Children and Young People Mental Health

What have we heard from residents/patients

The evidence tells us that Children and Young People are continuing to recover from
the impact of the pandemic which for some has had a negative effect on their
development, emotional wellbeing, and mental health.

Families tell us it remains difficult to access specialist mental health services in a
timely way and that the wide variety of services on offer are challenging to navigate.

What is the current state of play/local challenges

The demand has risen for services with the number of children who have concerns
with their mental health increasing to 1 in 6 in comparison to 1 in 9 only 5 years ago
(Young MINDs).

What is the requirement from NHS

The NHS Long Term Plan sets out the ambition to expand Children and Young
Peoples Mental Health Services widening the access to services closer to home,
reduce unnecessary delays and deliver specialist mental health care in ways which
work better for families. This builds on the commitment from the Children and Young
Peoples mental health green paper which brings together the Department for
Education and Department of Health in a programme of work to strengthen the
support and offer in educational settings. Working in partnership we will continue to
educate families and young people in managing and preventing the potential risks of
online harm and high-risk behaviours.

What is the ambition?

The Southend, Essex and Thurrock Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy is an all-
age strategy which identified specific areas for focus including Eating Disorders,
Crisis services, integrated care within local acute trusts, improving access and ability
to measure outcomes and use of digital technology to support care.

We know the support young people require as they move into adulthood often needs
to be bespoke and holistic to this age group and will be working across the sectors to
develop this further.

What are the delivery priorities?

1. To continue with the expansion and transformation of mental health services,
as set out in the NHS Mental health Implementation Plan and improve the
quality of Mental Health care across all ages.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForWWard Plan 2023 149



v

41 » Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

2. There are clear pressures in relation to Children and Young People referrals
(demand), acuity and severity of needs. A whole system approach is needed
to harness effective prevention and early intervention initiatives. This
acknowledges the health inequalities which are influenced by economic
factors, relational influences, individual and family health and wellbeing and
environment in which we live.

3. Toincrease access and equality, build capacity and capability in the system
and build resilience in the community.

4. Priorities prevention and early intervention across education, health and care
and Voluntary and Community, Faith and Social Enterprise pathways and
continue to transform services to deliver better outcomes and more resilient
Children and Young People

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Maria Crowley
Lead Director:
Clinical Lead: Amy Bartlett

Delivery of the strategic ambitions and programme will be overseen by the Children’s
Commissioning Collaborative for Southend, Essex and Thurrock with the
development of the Mental health Strategy Implementation Group which will provide
the oversight for both adults and children mental health programmes of work. Mid
and South Essex publish our Open Up Reach Out Local Transformation Plan
annually which identifies areas of investment and progress on delivery.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4®fan 2023 150



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Timespan for implementation

Transformation of the Children and Young People
Eating Disorder Pathways to include Specialist
Treatment and Recovery Service roles

of objectives
From quarter three to quarter
four 2023/24

To use feedback tools and routine outcome
measures to ensure the voice of the Children and
Young People is centre and care is person
centred.

Quarter four 2023/24

Develop the service offer for 18—25-year-olds to
support transition to adulthood.

From quarter one to quarter
four 2023/24

Expansion of Mental health Support Teams in
Schools waves 7 & 9

From quarter three 2023/24
to first half of 2024/25

Embedding Children and Young People Mental
Health practitioners in a phased approach with
Primary Care.

From quarter three 2023/24
to second half of 2024/25

Expansion of Learning Disability /Neuro Diversity
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Team

From quarter four 2023/24 to
second half of 2024/25

Capital development programme for Children and
Young People Eating Disorder Service

From quarter four 2023/24 to
first half of 2024/25

Review and design a model of care with Voluntary
and Community, Faith and Social Enterprise
providers for Mid and South Essex.

From quarter two 2023/24 to
first half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fortt#ard Plan 2023

151




4

4
'L

.
')

4

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Neurodiversity

What have our residents told us?

The current challenge is to fully understand the models of provision and identify the
gaps and variations across Mid and South Essex and (where appropriate) on the
greater Essex landscape. This includes working with a wider set of partners,
stakeholders and communities, experts by experience and their families to obtaining
feedback to help shape and deliver modern fit for purpose models of neurodiversity
provision.

Current Conditions

Currently neurodiversity services are delivered by a range of statutory and voluntary
agencies which are not aligned or delivered within an agreed strategic approach.
This presents with challenges of inequitable access, variation in provision,
fragmented delivery which is not maximising the opportunities of working
collaboratively within an all-age approach to provide the best and most efficient
models of care for people requiring support with neurodiversity presentations.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

We need to ensure the provision and commissioning of models of care meet the
statutory requirements.

To ensure local provision reflects the needs and requirements of the standards or
codes of conduct to addresses inequalities in access, variations in provision.

To ensure appropriate governance and oversight of the provision of services, to
continuously review and evaluate the models of provision to reflect the changing
socio-economic situations impacting on local populations.

Our Ambitions

For NHS, Local Authorities, voluntary services and others to work collaboratively to
co-produce services that are equipped and designed to around family health models.

To deliver models of care that maximise resource allocation within a whole system,
all age pathways.

To develop new and innovative ways of partnership working that focus on family
health models (all age models) with better alignment between the NHS, local
authority and associated partners.

To address the growing demand for access and whole system models of provision
that maximise resources.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023 152



T Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Priorities

2023/24 we will undertake a comprehensive mapping of current service provision
and identify the gaps to inform an all age, whole systems joined up approach to
deliver fit for purpose Neurodiversity programmes.

The Integrated Care Board Board has approved the appointment of a dedicated
project lead post on a fixed term basis to undertake this mapping work.

We will develop new partnership models for delivery of our Neurodiversity
programmes which aligns to the babies, children and young people’s programme,
and in line with the spirit of the Integrated Care Strategy. This will complement
existing work underway to develop and all age, mental health strategy pan Essex.

Ensuring Delivery

A senior responsible owner will be identified at Integrated Care Board Board level for
the Neurodiversity portfolio.

Clinical Lead: Dr Maria Crowley

The delivery of programme of work for Neurodiversity will be set out in 2023/4 and
remain accountable to the Integrated Care Board board on deliverables. The
Integrated Care Board Board will provider oversight and governance on the
programme and will want to ensure alignment to the Children and Young People and
mental health programmes of work.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for

implementation of
objectives
Integrated Care Board in consultation with partners Quarter one 2023/24
and providers undertake an all-age review of the
current provision of services across Essex, identifying
the current pathway and provision, identify gaps in
provision.
Develop new partnership models for delivery of Quarter two 2023/24
the Neurodiversity programmes which aligns to the
babies, children and young people programme and is
in line with the Integrated Care Strategy.
Ensure appropriate procurement and commissioning of | Quarter three 2023/24
fit for purpose, evidence based modern models of care
for Neurodiversity that is aligned to Children and
Young People and mental health commissioned

services.

Review and evaluation of the commissioned models of | From quarter four
provision to inform ongoing service developments in 2023/24 to first half of
consultation with stakeholders which takes into 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort#ard Plan 2023 153



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

account research findings, new and emerging policy
changes.

Babies, Children and Young Peoples
Services

What have our residents told us?

Co-production with Children and Young People and families is central to the
development of our strategic direction and is reflected in the development of agreed
values and principles.

Current Conditions

Mid and South Essex has a Children population of circa 270k and although there are
similarities in health needs there are also significant variations associated with
demographics and wider determinants of health.

Mid and South Essex will have a Children and Young People Panel to support the
strategic work of the Integrated Care Board which will be further developed with
Children and Young People in parallel with the Children’s Partnership Framework.

We continue to shape services adopting the principles of a person-centred approach
to care and preparing Children and Young People and their families for effective
transition to adulthood.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The Integrated Care System will deliver the ambitions of the NHS Long Term Plan
supported by the partnerships and identifying synergies with wider Government
Strategies including Levelling Up and Regeneration, Social Care reforms, Schools
white paper opportunity for all and Family Hubs and Start for Life programme.

The NHS has specific statutory requirements under the Children’s and Family Act
and Special Education Needs and Disabilities Code of Practice in relation to Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities and will continue to work in partnership with the
Local Areas Special Education Needs and Disabilities Boards in delivery of the
respective Special Education Needs and Disabilities Strategies and Inclusion Plans.

The Core 20+5 Framework for Children and Young People has identified areas for
focus including Diabetes, Epilepsy, Asthma, Oral Health and Mental Health. There
will be a continuous focus on improving the outcomes for those in our most deprived
areas and cohorts of Children and Young People where the outcomes are not
comparable with their peers such as children who are in care, Special Education
Needs and Disabilities and those involved in the youth justice system.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4®fan 2023 154



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

The Children and Young People ambitions will be the responsibility of the Growing
Well Programme Board led by the Director for Children and Young People and
clinical lead. The Growing Well Programme Board will align and connect with the
Essex, Southend and Thurrock Children and Young People partnership forums and
the 4 Alliances.

Our Ambitions

As a partnership, we are committed to improving the lives of Children and Young
People and it stands as a top priority for us as a system. To support this ambition,
we have developed a Partnership Framework which recognised the strategies and
priorities held by many organisations and is designed as an enabler recognising that
we can have a bigger impact by working on factors that influence health and
wellbeing, not just at the point of illness or crisis.

In 2023/24 we will develop new partnership models for delivery of our Children and
Young People and Neurodiversity programmes, working with a wider set of partners
and stakeholders and communities, in line with the spirit of the Integrated Care
Strategy. It is anticipated this will see us securing additional resources to bring this
work forwards. This will complement existing work underway to develop and all age,
mental health strategy pan Essex.

Delivery Priorities

We have 6 priority areas of work with associated programmes. These include
Children and Young People Mental health, Special Education Needs and Disability,
Neurodiversity, Palliative and End of Life, Transformation of Community Services
and Urgent and Emergency pathways.

There is an opportunity with existing partnerships to secure development resources
to form a new integrated Babies, Children and Young People approach, starting with
early years health and care and then extending into all Children and Young People.

Ensuring delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Maria Crowley
Lead Director:
Clinical Lead: Dr Sooraj Natarajan

The Children and Young People ambitions for the NHS Long Term Plan will be the
responsibility of the Growing Well Programme Board led by the Director for Children
and Young People and clinical lead. The Growing Well Programme Board will align
and connect with the Essex, Southend and Thurrock Children and Young People
partnership forums and the 4 Alliances.

Below organogram of system governance arrangements.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023 155



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care

{37 System

How we organise ourselves and

The irderd heve (s fo wisaliee e os o Pardoership
we drew ar the shills, insights, reloBoaships and
sharad resourees fo ke @ meanigrin mpact jor
chilgren, young peogie ond famifies.

NCREASINE
LCALISSTION

NHS

Mid and South Essex

get things done

"
Targeted initiatives with clearpurpese, deliversd
alacebasad ar neighbourhaed [ewl : with autanom
rrprogise L Tl il thal gurpose, Baved on local in

" \4

FLACE-N&SD LA B PLECE85L0 ACLRST PLAE-BALLL PLCE2E LD ACEeSET LAl EANLL PLRCE2RE LD
FRIDATFY FRIIRMES: FRIOETIFS} FECAITFY FAKIRMES: FRINETIFSE FEMANFY FAITRMES: ARNIETIFS!
PENIECTS ROIETS PROIECTE FENIETS SROIETTS PROECTS PECIETTS SAOIETTS PRIECTS
BESILDC N & SCUTH EAST ESSEX
5 £ WILTE SE X
(LR ﬁEfoE"ﬁg;i labr RRENTWITIOD LLANCE SOUTHEND HEATH G | | Loca
AL ALLLATE WELLIEI W BOARD | | saratig
THIRERH \ } PENTS FLAt
LHILEHER' Y
W Térlu:ﬁli‘rc I LSSLE D LR LoSLE SEALTH LSS LE D ILIRLN 5 EAFE -
' : Sl it WELLBE MG B | 2 : -
FLTLIFFE PARTHEREHIE PARTREHS HIF SOARD AT SR AR SURNHERG Sl | GUARDNE
" -~ . . ™
& rrultsectar hody with a faoused remit af children Local mulector parinerships across mid
EROWING WELL and sauth Essex, who anderstand loom

ard young people, thatspans the MA5E sytem, :?
2 steeran whers to put eHort and resources, [2%d
shared accountablliby for autoames
A

-
& mulHsactar body that has responsibilingfor
parpula lizr healll improve menl and spand h

WEE system, with the abilityto allocate resources

A

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

PROGRARMME EQARD

neads, assels, and communities; ailaring
the shared focus to lag@l cantexts.

SOAL | Systern Oversight & dssorance
Cnmimibhee]
= tercing mh;sre
KITECRATET CANF ISR

Timespan for implementation

of objectives

Agreed Children and Young People End of Life
Ambitions Framework Implementation Plan by
December 2023

Asthma: Children and Young People Community | Quarter four 2023/24
Asthma team aligned to 8 PCNs in South East

Essex by March 2024

Children and Young People End of Life: First half 2024/25

Children and Young People End of Life: 24/7
Palliative and End of Life Care service in place by
March 2025

Second half 2024/25

Monitoring and insulin pumps within agreed
protocols and National Institute of Health and Care
Excellence Guidance by 25/26

Diabetes: Agreed Improvement Plan developed by | Quarter four 2023/24
March 2024
Diabetes: Increase access to Continuous Glucose | 2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4®fan 2023

156



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care

¥ System

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation

of objectives

Epilepsy: Agreed Improvement Plan developed by | Quarter four 2023/24
March 2024
Urgent & Emergency Care: Hospital@Home pilot | First half of 2024/25

in place by September 2023

Urgent and Emergency Care: Long-term
Paediatric Acute Respiratory Infection Model in
place by December 2023

Quarter two 2023/24

To reduce the number of children requiring higher | Quarter one 2023/24
levels of mental health services by strengthening

early intervention, support and education for

Schools and Colleges.

To improve access to specialist Children and Quarter one 2023/24

Young People Mental Health Services

To improve the outcomes and experience of
children and young people with Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities and ensure the
Integrated Care Board meets it statutory
requirements.

Second half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forttard Plan 2023

157



TR Mid and South Essex
® Integrated Care m

4
'L 4

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Reducing Pressure on Urgent and
Emergency Care Services

What have our residents told us?

Co-production with patients and families and system partners is central to the
development of our strategic direction for Urgent and Emergency Care services.

Current Conditions

The urgent care system is under significant pressure and this impacts on our
responsiveness to sustain delivery to elective and cancer services. All partners are
working hard to address urgent care pressures and ensure service provision for
people alternative to Emergency Department that meet their needs and
requirements.

We have three established sub-systems for urgent and emergency care (southeast,
southwest, and mid Essex). These sub-systems currently have their own delivery
boards, where partners work together to deliver improved urgent and emergency
care services, which feed into the Mid & South Essex Urgent and Emergency Care
Transformation & Improvement Board

111 Service:

We have a comprehensive NHS 111 service covering the entire mid and south
Essex population. This includes a single multidisciplinary Clinical Assessment
Service within integrated NHS 111, ambulance dispatch and General Practitioner out
of hours services. NHS111 provision from Mid & South Essex is provided by 1C24,
who went live with the online NHS111 in December 2022, as well as the continuation
of the telephony service.

As part of the national Pathways Light programme, from April 2023 our 1C24
Provider will be increasing service provision to incorporate access to Dental Service
Advisor, urgent repeat prescriptions and Minor Injuries Service Advisor.

Same Day Emergency Services:

All three hospitals offer a same day emergency service for 12 hours/day, 7
days/week. These services provide fast access for patients to diagnostics and
treatment and reduce hospital admissions.

The Same day emergency service models are currently under review to ensure
maximise service provision opportunity to ensure same day treatment.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023 158



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Alternative to Emergency Department:

Mid & South Essex will be an early adopter, commencing in Quarter 1 2023/23 for
Alternative to Emergency Department to support the delivery of a roadmap for
individuals to be aware of service existence, and how to access the service. As well
as overview of gaps in the roadmap for further interventions/investment.

Older People’s Service:

Our three hospitals have worked to develop assessment and treatment units
specifically to meet the needs of older people.

At Broomfield, the operating hours of the Frailty Ambulatory Service is 08.00-20.00
Mon-Sun.

At Southend the Frailty Service currently operates Monday-Friday 09:00 to 17:00.
Basildon offers a full 7-day frailty service.

Virtual Wards:

The current baseline of virtual ward capacity for Mid and South Essex is 175 virtual
ward beds. The virtual ward baseline as at 31.03.23 is as follows:

e Respiratory Virtual Ward: 45 beds

e Frailty Virtual Ward: 60 beds

e Hospital@Home Virtual Ward: 55 beds
e Heart Failure Virtual Ward pilot: 15 beds

We continue to work towards the national ambition of 480 virtual ward beds
operational by December 2023. Our current plans include a revision of our
Respiratory virtual ward based on recent occupancy from 45 to 15 virtual wards
beds; plus inclusion of our virtual Emergency Department of 42 VW beds delivered
via our Urgent Community Response Teams.

The Frailty Virtual Ward will soon incorporate an additional 15 unplanned out of
hours response Virtual Webs beds, and 60 further VW beds delivered via the
complex wound care team. We intend to include these within our Virtual Wards from
the end of May following completion of our governance processes.

The ongoing efficiency programme including a focus on digital, workforce and
communications enablers will be a key ongoing element of developing our capacity
and occupancy — particularly within the Frailty virtual ward where we know the
biggest opportunity lies.

In addition, our Stroke Earlier Supported Discharge pathway will deliver 60 Virtual
Ward beds and the Mental Health Crisis Response Teams and Dementia Services a
further 30 Virtual Ward beds.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forid#8rd Plan 2023 159



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

All of the above equates to an assumption for September 2023 that 370 Virtual Ward
beds will be available within our system with further pathways are being developed
including Children’s Hospital at Home, Musculoskeletal Post-surgical, and further
expansion of Frailty Virtual Ward to include Acute Kidney Infection.

Urgent Community Response Team:

Full geographic coverage from 8am-10pm 7 days a week is in place across Mid and
South Essex. The service provision covers the nine clinical conditions or needs,
including level 2 falls, in line with the national 2-hour guidance. Scoping has
commenced to identify potential demand outside of operational hours and
considerations of extending beyond core hours underway.

Newly enhanced service whereby Urgent Community Response Teamwork in
collaboration with East of England Ambulance Trust to support in clinically
appropriate referrals being shared with Urgent and Community Response Team to
support visits and care to patients requiring urgent care, enabling the ambulances to
be released to support those individuals requiring emergency care. Mid and South
Essex are consistently exceeding the minimum threshold of reaching 70% of 2-hour
crisis response demand within 2 hours.

Further exploration in progress in implementation of ‘call before you convey’, working
with System partners and East of England Ambulance Trust to support ambulances
with alternative options to Emergency Department, and all crews will dial one
number whereby they will have a Multi-Disciplinary Team to support patients into
alternative pathways, excluding priority and C1 calls. Rollout anticipated for Q3 in
2023/34

Improving Discharge:

Implementation of data platform systems to support with real-time decision making to
support patient flow and discharge throughout the System. Shrewd Resilience and
Teletracking systems will be utilised to daily monitor the discharges identified against
the requirement to ensure patients flow from front to back door, and early
intervention implemented where there a deficit is identified.

By the end of June 2023 Criteria Led Discharge will be implemented across the
hospital sites, which will provide a framework to facilitate ‘home for lunch’ discharges
as well as increasing weekend discharge rates.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The Integrated Care System acknowledges the requirements within the NHS
England published national delivery plan for recovering urgent emergency services.

Date published: 30 January 2023

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 160



Pt Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Our Ambitions

A system that provides more, and better care in people’s homes, gets ambulances to
people more quickly when they need them, sees people faster when they go to
hospital and helps people safely leave hospital having received the care they need.

Everyone to receive the very best urgent and emergency care, raising standards of
quality and safety patients and their families:

We will work to expand and better joining up health and care outside hospital:
stepping up capacity in out-of-hospital care, including virtual wards, so that people
can be better supported at home for their physical and mental health needs,
including to avoid unnecessary admissions to hospital.

We will make it easier to access the right care: ensuring healthcare works more
effectively for the public, so people can more easily access the care they need, when
they need it.

Delivery Priorities

e Expand 111 service offer in accordance with pathways light programme.

e 111, Primary Care and East of England Ambulance Trust Ambulance to
directly book Same Day Emergency Care slots into the service in Quarter 2 of
2023/24.

¢ Improve awareness and access to alternative services avoiding emergency
departments.

e Expansion of virtual ward capacity increasing referrals and utilisation of the
virtual ward capacity.

¢ |dentify potential Urgent Community Response Team demand outside of
operational hours and considerations of extending beyond core hours.

e Implement Multi-Disciplinary Team support number for ambulance crew

support to ensure alternatives to Emergency Department fully optimised.

Increase ‘home for lunch’ discharges through criteria led discharge initiatives.

Ensuring delivery

Whole pathway responsibility:

Clinical Lead: Dr Eddie Lamuren, Clinical Director (Emergency Care), Mid and South
Essex Foundation Trust, supported by Hospital Site Emergency Department Clinical
Leads

Senior Responsible Owner: Hospital Site Managing Directors, Mid and South Essex
Foundation Trust

111 Governance:

Senior Responsible Owner: Samantha Goldberg

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023 161



ol Mid and South Essex

v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex
Clinical Lead: Dr Sanjeev Rana

Delivery will be monitored via the daily and monthly NHS111 volumes and
performance metrics, as well as increase in alternative to Emergency Department
dispositions.

Same Day Emergency Care Governance:

Senior Responsible Owner: Samantha Goldberg
Clinical Lead: Eddie Lamuren

Delivery will be monitored through the monitoring of referrals received and accepted
into the service and reduction in admission into acute hospital beds

Alternatives to Emergency Department Governance:

Senior Responsible Owner: Samantha Goldberg
Clinical Lead: Sarah Zaidi / Matt Sweeting

Delivery will be monitored through the volume of ambulance conveyed to the
hospital, ambulance offload times, and increase in referrals to alternative services.

Older People Services Governance:

Senior Responsible Owner: Samantha Goldberg
Clinical Lead: Eddie Lamuren

Virtual ward Governance:

Senior Responsible Owner: Gerdi Du Toit
Clinical Lead: Sarah Zaidi / Matt Sweeting

UCRT Governance:

Senior Responsible Owner: Samantha Goldberg
Clinical Lead: Yvonne Mubu

Monitored through the increase in referrals from East of England Ambulance Trust to
Urgent Community Response Team and reduction in C3 ambulances conveyed to
the hospital

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
111 dental advisors, urgent repeat prescriptions Quarter one 2023/24
and minor injuries advisor go live
Same Day Emergency Care direct booking slots Quarter two 2023/24
available (111, Primary Care, Ambulance
Services)

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 162



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation

of objectives

2023.

Commence early adoption of alternative to Quarter one 2023/24
Emergency Department roadmap
480 virtual ward beds operational by December Quarter three 2023/24

Multi-Disciplinary Team East of Essex Ambulance
Trust alternative to Emergency Department
contact system rolled out

Quarter three 2023/24

Criteria led discharge fully implemented across
hospital sites

Quarter two 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥ard Plan 2023

163



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Respiratory Services

What have our residents told us?

Our residents /patients want to be fully involved in the co-production of respiratory
transformation plans and a co-production approach is currently being developed
with our patient focus group, with support from Health Watch and the voluntary
sector. Services need to be easily accessible, and a combination of both physical
and remote provision is welcomed where appropriate.

Current Conditions

Only one in three patients newly diagnosed with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary
Disease receives a spirometry-based screening and this can result in unnecessary
hospital attendances and admissions, on average three attendances per patient.

The requirement to pause respiratory diagnostics during the COVID-19 pandemic
has led to an increased backlog of patients waiting for these tests. As a result, the
existing services need to be enhanced to meet the increasing demands and reduce
waiting times. To achieve this training and review of staffing skill mix is required, to
build the clinical knowledge and expertise across Mid and South Essex Integrated
Care System at the scale required.

Current limitations around estates and suitable clinical spaces to undertake
Spirometry and associated respiratory diagnostics for people, have necessitated
looking to alternative options to facilitate the restoration of respiratory diagnostic
services following COVID-19.

In respect of the virtual ward there is an ongoing need to raise awareness within
secondary care of the services being provided by the virtual ward teams that they
can refer into.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The integrated Breathlessness and Diagnostic Service model has been identified by
respiratory and cardiology stewards as a means of reducing duplication of care
interventions, aligning care pathways and improving care outcomes for patients
experiencing breathlessness across Mid and South Essex. The proposed holistic
model also provides opportunity for ongoing efficiency savings going forward.

Our Ambitions

The long-term plan is for the Integrated Breathlessness and Diagnostic Service to
deliver joined up respiratory health, care and education for the Mid and South Essex
population aged 12 years and older, improving the quality of respiratory services
locally and moving clinical activity from secondary care into community and primary

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 164



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

care to prevent accidents and emergency attendances, avoidable admissions and
reduce unnecessary outpatient appointments.

Respiratory Virtual ward

There are currently three respiratory virtual wards across Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care System, providing 15 virtual ward beds per area and 45 in total. The
number of beds is to be reviewed by September 2023, as other virtual wards come
online, as this is impacting the level of occupancy, for example those patients that
are frail and also have a respiratory condition. The virtual ward provides both step
up and step-down access to support early discharge from secondary care and
prevent unnecessary admissions.

What are our delivery priorities?

1. Early and Accurate diagnosis: with a particular emphasis on spirometry
testing in the community to offer breath tests and discussion to assess lung
cancer risk in mobile units, with any patient at risk to have an immediate low-
dose CT scan.

2. Pulmonary Rehabilitation: offer a structured exercise and education
programme designed for those with lung disease or breathlessness.

3. Correct Medication: Pharmacists in primary care networks will undertake a
range of medicine reviews, including educating patients on the correct use of
inhalers and contributing to multidisciplinary working.

4. Pneumonia: to ensure a consistent use of risk scoring to reduce avoidable
admissions, increased training provision and awareness sessions, as well as
nurse-led supported discharge services to support safe out of hospital care.

5. Flexible Learning: a ‘first contact’ package will be developed to support
those diagnosed with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease and asthma,
and form part of the treatment plan. This will include face to face and digital
options.

6. Breathlessness: the NHS Long Term Plan highlights breathlessness as a
common symptom shared across cardiac and lung conditions and commits to
producing an evidence base for joint cardiac and pulmonary rehabilitation
models, which can then be rolled out across the NHS.

7. Respiratory Virtual Ward: Fully optimise respiratory virtual ward by
December 23

8. Acute Respiratory Infection Hub: In line with the national guidance Mid and
South Essex Integrated Care System has plans in place to pilot Acute
Respiratory Infection Hubs across Mid and South Essex Integrated Care
System and undertake a full evaluation and align to wider initiatives that will

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥ard Plan 2023 165



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

support further improvements in service provision e.g., Community Diagnostic
Centres due to open from March 2024 in Thurrock and Mid Essex.

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Selina Douglas
Clinical Lead: Dr Abi Moore,
Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System

Ensuring delivery

The Respiratory Programme is one of our key priority areas and transformation of
services is supported by a formal governance structure. The programme is provided
with dedicated programme support provided by Mid and South Essex Partners and
has clinical oversight from the Mid and South Essex Respiratory Stewards and Mid
and South Essex Integrated Care System Respiratory Clinical Lead.

In addition to this, there is a Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System
Respiratory Clinical Network to ensure alignment of respiratory plans and
transformation across services within Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Increase diagnostic provision to include cardiac Quarter three 2023/24
and respiratory diagnostics for breathlessness by
Oct 2023 (currently being piloted in Mid Essex).

Recruit additional psychologists to provide support | Quarter one 2023/24
for breathless patients across both Respiratory
and Cardiology pathways by April 2023.

Work with Healthwatch to develop Pulmonary Quarter one and four 2023/24
Rehabilitation co-production model and then
extend out across respiratory services by May 23

Ensure Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Quarter four 2023/24
System is compliant with National Asthma and
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease Audit
Programme by March 2024.

All staff to be fully accredited or underway in the First half of 2024/25
pathway of accreditation by the Royal College of
Physicians Pulmonary Rehabilitation Services
Accreditation Scheme by March 2025.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 166



1 Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
{»7 System

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation

To hold awareness raising events re the signs of
pneumonia and preventative action that can be
taken, which will include dedicated events for
Learning Disability and neuro disability patients /
carers / next of kin by June 2023.

of objectives
Quarter one 2023/24

Undertake Evaluation and submit business case
for sustainable Acute Respiratory Infection Hub

model by June 2023 and align to fully optimized

respiratory virtual wards by Dec 23.

Quarter two 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥ard Plan 2023

167



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Outpatient Programme

What have our residents told us?

A patient engagement session is planned for end of March '23 to support the new
workstreams supporting the move to a single integrated access service.

Feedback from patients regarding issues affecting their ability to attend planned
appointments is currently being gathered within work to better understand Did Not
Attends.

What is the current state of play/local challenges

The Programme has improved visibility of the key performance indicators for the
operational teams using Power Business Intelligence, so these metrics are now able
to be reviewed weekly by the care groups to ensure continued focus and
improvement. The project team will be conducting ‘health checks’ with each
operational specialty before rolling improvement initiatives out to further improve
performance in identified areas.

During the next year, teams will be working to improve the central access function
which will deliver an improved service for patients and a better experience for our
staff through enhanced training and improved technology solutions.

The programme will continue the roll out of eConsult to all specialities and introduce
phase 2 of the Programme during the year.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Key Performance Indicators for 2023/24 is to reduce Follow-up activity by 25% (of
baseline 2019/20 activity) by March 2024.

Our Ambitions

WS1 - Operational Excellence: We will equip managers with the right tools and skills
to make data driven decisions to help achieve key national performance Key
Performance Indicator's across all specialties by end March 2024

WS2 - Reshaping Access: By end of March 2026, we will deliver better patient and
staff experience through implementation of consistent streamlined booking
processes which will enable better management of referrals and new demand.

WS3 - Virtual Outpatients: We will adopt and implement new digital technologies and
approaches that will deliver care in an innovative, efficient, and patient centric way
by end of March 2024

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fn 2023 168



T Mid and South Essex
.1 I3 Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

WS4 - System Pathway redesign: We will deliver new models of care across Mid and
South Essex Integrated Care System, giving patients seamless experience and right
care at the right time by the end of March 2024

Delivery Priority

e Better experience for patients

e £42m of improved value through reducing waste and using technology

e 2% reduction in Did Not Attends, from current c8% to 6%

e Enhanced capacity (increase in Advice and guidance utilisation, Patient-
initiated follow-up

e 25% reduction in follow ups (2019/20 baseline)

¢ New single integrated access team

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Andrew Pike
Clinical Lead: Professor Tony Young

The programme team will deliver using detailed project plans for each workstream
on the Smartsheet system. Reporting dashboards will be used to inform sponsors,
programme boards and executive groups.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan  Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter First Second
objectives one two three four half of half of

2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 2024/25 2024/25

Reduce follow up | 5% 12% 20% 25%
activity by 25% by
end of March 2024

Reduce Did Not 8% 8% 7% 6%
Attends from 8%
to 6% by end of
March 2024
Efficiency
Delivery:

WS1: Operational | £1.1m £1.3m £1.4m £1.5m £5.8m £5.8m
Excellence
WS2: Reshaping | £0.3m £0.3m £0.3m £0.3m
Access

WS3: Virtual
Outpatients — to
be modelled

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥8rd Plan 2023 169



.5 Integrated Care
< r<

{37 System

Delivery Plan

objectives

WS4: System
Pathway Redesign

T Mid and South Essex

Quarter
one
2023/24

£0.9m

Quarter
two
2023/24

£0.9m

Quarter
three
2023/24

£0.9m

Quarter
four
2023/24

£1.0m

First
half of
2024/25

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Second 2025
half of to
2024/25 2028

Total of WS1 to
WS4

£2.3m

£2.5m

£2.6m

£2.8m

£5.8m

£5.8m

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023

170




TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Diagnostics

What have our residents told us?

Our residents want the ability to access tests to diagnose their condition close to
home, they want to access diagnostics once and not have them repeated
unnecessarily.

Our residents want timely results and the least invasive test to enable them to
receive a diagnosis or treatment plan.

Current Conditions

The key challenge for diagnostic recovery is the ability to provide continued service
when capacity for delivery is impacted by wider pressures within the system. We
continue to work with other System partners (Independent Sector and Community
Providers) so we can maximise diagnostic capacity to support, people to access the
most appropriate diagnostic test for their condition.

We are working to increase early diagnosis and the turnaround time for results of
diagnostic tests across all our providers.

We have been working with our primary care practices to increase the use of Faecal
Immunochemical Test tests, a non-invasive test that supports diagnosis for bowel
conditions; the use of this test reduces the need for more invasive diagnostic tests
whilst providing results to the patient in a timely manner.

We continue to progress the two key national requirements of Systems for
diagnostics:

e Community Diagnostic Service/Centres and
e Rapid Diagnostic Service

Both of these will increase capacity and support the ambition of care closer to home
and easier access locally for our residents.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Mid and South Essex System is required to respond to the national planning asks for
diagnostics, which are supplemented with asks from NHS England national team
throughout the year.

Our Ambitions

As outlined in the Long Term Plan our focus for Diagnostics remains:

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint For¥ard Plan 2023 171



TR Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m

4
v LS 4

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Bringing Care Closer to Home:

Joining up our different health, care and voluntary services means we can bring
services closer people’s homes — whether that is through support on-line, or by
bringing health and care services into the community such as some hospital tests
like x-rays and blood tests and support for people living with long term conditions like
diabetes or breathing problems.

Ensuring that every Place has adequate and appropriate provision, based on its
demographic and need, of both Screening and diagnostic services

Improving and Transforming Our Services - Ensuring our residents have the highest
chances of recovery from their illness or condition, and to give them the best
treatment we can, to live as well as they can.

Demand for services is changing as people grow older and live with more long-term
conditions and there is much more we could do with technology, medical advances
and new ways of working to treat people at an earlier stage, avoid more serious
illness, and to live as well as they can for longer.

Delivery Priorities

e Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust and Integrated Care Board Partners
are working to ensure clear recovery trajectories and plans for the key asks as
per the 2023/24 National Planning Guidance. Operating priorities will be
subject to change as Planning Guidance is released and refreshed annually.

e The key diagnostic deliverable is to:

o Have increased number of patients receiving diagnostic tests within six
weeks - the March 2025 ambition of 95%

o Meet the cancer faster diagnosis standard by March 2024 so that 75% of
patients who have been urgently referred by their General Practitioner for
suspected cancer are diagnosed or have cancer ruled out within 28 days.

o Increase the percentage of cancers diagnosed at stages 1 & 2 in line with
the 75% early diagnosis ambition by 2028

The below table shows the Mid and South Essex system planned diagnostic
trajectory for 2023/24 as the first year to achieve the planning ask.
Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Dr Ronan Fenton
Clinical Lead: Dr Ronan Fenton/Dr Qaiser Malik

The Mid and South Essex Transformation and Improvement Board for Diagnostics
oversees all aspects of diagnostics including performance (escalation from sub-

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023 172



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

group — see below), Community Diagnostic Service/Centre implementation and
Rapid Diagnostic Service to support early cancer diagnosis.

The Board receives performance information from its diagnostic performance sub-
group. This group focuses on the referral to diagnostic test, turnaround time for
results across acute, community and independent sector providers. The National
Planning asks, and delivery, recovery or mitigation plans are presented here for
assurance.

The performance sub-group escalates the key risks to the Board which are
presented to the Mid and South Essex System Oversight and Assurance Committee.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Recovery of the referral to diagnostic test standard | March 2025
(6 weeks) so 95% of patients receive their test in
six weeks

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023 173



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Stroke Services

What have our residents told us?

There is variation across alliance areas in care received, particularly with reduced
level of support for patients after stroke across Alliance areas. Stroke Stewards are
focussing on a number of projects to improve access to post stroke care and access
to local voluntary support groups.

Current conditions

Across Mid and South Essex:

¢ Not all stroke patients are being admitted to stroke wards due to bed
pressures within the acute resulting in a number of medical outliers on stroke
wards. Two acute sites in Mid and South Essex have an E rating on Sentinel
Stroke National Audit Programme for this indicator.

e Delays in scanning at arrival to hospital due to front door acute pressures thus
reducing the number of patients eligible for thrombectomy.

e No community bed pathway for Covid positive patients resulting in discharge
delays until patients test negative or are out of isolation period.

e Community Early Supported Discharge services are under pressure, intensity
of rehabilitation has been reduced due to the number of referrals and
rehabilitation requirements, Mid Essex service is currently holding a waiting
list.

e There is differential access to community services across the system

e Workforce is an issue across acute and community stroke services.

Partnership working:

e Both community bed sites, Cumberledge Intermediate Care Centre and St
Peter’s are working in collaboration and now have a single acceptance
criterion.

e Therapists across acute and community have worked in partnership to align
patient assessments and reviews by all using the EQ-5D tool.

e Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System is part of the South East of
England Integrated Stroke Delivery Network to support and align work plans
across the region. The Integrated Care System has successfully bid for
numerous funding to support different ways of working such as the Mid and
South Essex Catalyst funding project, focussing on growing our own Stroke

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023 174



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Multi-Disciplinary Team workforce using band 4 Rehabilitation Assistants to
enhance the Community Stroke pathway across Mid and South Essex.

e Stroke Programme Board and Stroke Stewardship in place with
representation across primary care, community, acute and voluntary sectors.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

This below system vision links to the NHS Long-Term Plan which highlights both
increased thrombectomy and improved post hospital stroke rehabilitation models.

Our Ambitions

The stroke stewardship team are reviewing the end-to-end pathway to ensure that all
elements are delivered in line with the National Stroke Service Model and the
Integrated Community Stroke Service. A recent review of quality adjusted life years
data demonstrated that Mid and South Essex should invest less into acute services
and more into community services and Thrombectomy to provide better outcomes
for stroke survivors.

Delivery Priorities

e Acute action plans to improve Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme
rating at all three sites by June 2023.

e Acute audit to be undertaken to identify delays in the system by March 2023.

e Community bed reconfiguration by September 2023 (subject to public
consultation).

e Implement the Integrated Community Stroke Service model by April 2024.
Implement the Integrated Community Stroke Service model by April 2024.
The Integrated Community Stroke Service model has nine key components;
integration, responsive and intensive, needs based, pathways of care, seven
day working, team composition, specialist service, education and training and
tailored goals and outcomes.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Selina Douglas
General Practitioner Lead: Dr Deepa Shanmugasundaram
Consultant Lead: Dr Ramanathan Kirthivasan

The table below shows the System governance structure.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023 175



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

System governance and governance architecture

System Oversight Community Oversight and
‘—
Assurance Group Assurance Board
(SOAG)
EOE South Integrated T /
Stroke D?l:;;"’; Network __» Stroke Programme Board — Stewardship
Task & Finish Groups
Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Acute Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme | Quarter one 2023/24
rating to improve to an A rating by June 23

Reconfigure community stroke beds (42-48) From quarter two to quarter
(subject to public consultation) three 2023/24

Implement Integrated Community Stroke Service First half of 2024/25
specification ensuring all stroke survivors access
to community support / rehab

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023 176



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Cardiac Services

What have our residents told us?

Local residents and patients want to be able to access services closer to home.
Patients also want and need all parts of the health system to communicate all of their
information when they are being referred on from primary care to community,
secondary or tertiary settings. This includes avoiding repeating tests or investigations
when moving between care providers and levels of care.

Our approach is to provide local access to services where possible and centralise
services where necessary to achieve true clinical excellence.

We aim to increase the provision of tertiary and quaternary services in the Essex
Cardiothoracic Centre so fewer patients need to travel out of area for specialist care.

Current Conditions

We have a significant deficit in cardiac diagnostic capacity which needs to be
addressed through medium- and long-term actions. Echocardiography is a key
diagnostic for many cardiac conditions in both elective and acute presentation.
Demand for echocardiography will continue to grow and we will need a growing
cardiac physiology workforce to meet this demand. System partners will work in
collaboration to implement a strategic workforce plan and career pathway for cardiac
physiology to locally develop specialist staff to deliver an integrated service in
hospital, in community diagnostic hubs and in other community settings.

Cardiac CT is increasingly important as a first line diagnostic test in cardiac
presentations. Availability is highly variable across the system and overall, less than
half the capacity recommended for our population. The new community diagnostic
hubs will accommodate low risk CT activity freeing capacity in hospitals for these
specialist Cardiac CT scans. This will allow us to meet overall demand and ensure
equitable access to these specialist diagnostics.

Cardiac MRl is a highly specialist diagnostic currently operated from the tertiary
Essex Cardiothoracic Centre. We have developed a regional hub and spoke model
to improve equity of access for patients across the region. The first spoke site is
Ipswich hospital. With the introduction of community diagnostic hubs freeing MRI
capacity in hospitals we aim to expand this model so that patients can access this
tertiary diagnostic service in their local hospital with expert oversight and support
clinically from the Essex Cardiothoracic Centre.

The Heart Failure team in Basildon have an excellent service for local patients with

seamless integration of community, hospital and tertiary clinical teams. This service
has published national findings in optimal management of heart failure including the
development of the new “Quad Score” to avoid treatment inertia and maintain focus
on optimisation of heart failure medications. We will continue to roll out these clinical

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint For¥ard Plan 2023 177



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

models across the system to ensure that patients receive the best care. Heart failure
patients require intense monitoring in the first 12 weeks to optimise management
and avoid more invasive and expensive interventions. We have a significant shortfall
in our specialist HF nursing workforce required to meet this need. We will be
developing a workforce plan to include nursing and other roles within the multi-
disciplinary team to ensure that all patients are optimally supported delivering better
care and better value care overall.

Inherited Cardiac Conditions, including heart muscle disease (cardiomyopathy) and
sudden arrhythmic death syndrome, affects 1 in 250 people worldwide and thorough
family screening is needed to identify relatives at risk of potentially life-threatening
heart disease. NHS England document A09/S/c 2013/14 “Inherited cardiac
conditions” states that anyone with Inherited Cardiac Conditions, and their first-
degree relatives, should have access to specialist ICC services within the catchment
area. Genetic testing is centrally funded from April 2020, at no cost to the Trust.

All of our planned improvements in cardiac services require greater digital integration
across the system, between sites and providers. Failure to achieve risks creating
duplication and clinical risk.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Heart and circulatory disease, also known as cardiovascular disease, causes a
quarter of all deaths in the United Kingdom. Cardiovascular disease is the single
biggest condition where lives can be saved by the NHS over the next 10 years. The
Long-Term Plan describes a number of improvement actions required.

Our Ambition

We plan to support the these aims for cardiac services through 6 key improvements:

e Earlier diagnosis of more people with heart conditions through increased
access to specialist cardiac diagnostics including echo, CT, MRI via
community diagnostic hubs and specialist hospital-based services

e Better support for patients with chronic cardiac conditions including heart
failure and heart valve disease including access to nurse specialists working
seamlessly with specialist consultants through Multi-Disciplinary Team and
virtual ward models

e Increased use of genetic testing enabling early diagnosis and treatment
including development of the inherited cardiac conditions service.

e Access to life-saving emergency and acute diagnosis and treatment with
further improvements in rapid access to tertiary treatment for Percutaneous
Coronary Intervention, Coronary Artery Bypass Graft and Cardiogenic shock

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4#fn 2023 178



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e Continued development of local access to specialist tertiary services at the
Essex Cardiothoracic Centre so that patients can access the latest advances
in cardiac care locally within Mid and South Essex such as minimally invasive
cardiac surgery, specialist aortic surgery, percutaneous valve repair /
replacement and Electrophysiology

e Expanding access to cardiac rehabilitation services to help people recover
after treatment including diverse offers for community access and virtual
support

Delivery Priorities

The recovery of access standards in cardiac services is a significant priority. Timely
access to cardiac diagnostics, in particular echocardiography and CT, will be linked
to collaborative system delivery of community diagnostic hubs and specialist
workforce planning in cardiac physiology.

Through the Covid-19 pandemic cardiac services have unfortunately been impacted
through periods of reduced activity and resultant increase in waiting lists. Increased
waiting times have also led to higher clinical acuity of patients in both emergency
and elective pathways. Hospital Cardiology services are working to reduce waiting
times for outpatient and elective care in line with national Referral To Treatment
recovery trajectories. Effective use of clinical triage and of improved technologies
has reduced delays in outpatient pathways. Patients now have access to virtual
appointments in many cases when in person appointments are not required (for
example for physical examination).

In the tertiary setting the greatest impact of the pandemic on waiting times has been
for cardiac surgery. A cardiothoracic surgery recovery plan is in place and has seen
good delivery through 2022. This work will continue and is reliant upon a large
specialist clinical workforce and balancing the demands of elective and emergency
surgery. We have invested in additional facilities within the Essex Cardiothoracic
Centre to create additional capacity. Cardiac Intensive Care Unit capacity is key to
supporting the surgical recovery and we will be continuing to invest in Intensive
Treatment Unit clinical workforce to meet this need.

We have an excellent emergency service for primary Percutaneous Coronary
Intervention based at the Essex Cardiothoracic Centre and have made good
progress with improvements in the Non-ST-Elevation Myocardial Infarction
pathways. We aim to further improve the Non-ST-Elevation Myocardial Infarction
service to reduce time to treatment in line with the national standards. This will be
through extended weekend working and through earlier transfer of patients to the
specialist centre by increasing capacity. We will continue to focus on clinical
efficiency and value by extending our nurse-led discharge pathway.

Our ability to rapidly transfer inpatients to the tertiary centre is an important enabler
for effective acute inpatient care, ensuring that we avoid delays and also supporting

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint For¥ard Plan 2023 179



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

efficient scheduling. Current pressure on the ambulance service have impacted on
cardiac transfers. We will work with the ambulance Trust to develop innovative new
models and modes for patient transfer.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Dr Ronan Fenton
Clinical Lead: Dr Sunil Gupta

Our overall programme of work to achieve our ambition will be overseen through the
Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System Cardiovascular Disease Programme
Board. There will also be specific working groups leading on specialist pathways and
projects including the Cardiogenic Shock Working Group and Cardiology
stewardship group.

We aim to ensure delivery through excellent multi-disciplinary and inter-sector
engagement, collaboration and commitment to delivering improvements for patients
that also present a more clinical effective and resource-efficient whole system
approach to cardiac care.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Comprehensive Cardiac Cardio Thorasic service (1) quarter three 2023/24 (2)
in plan in all acute hospital settings (1) developing | 2025/28
capacity alongside Congenital Diaphragmatic
Hernia models sufficient to meet local population

need (2)
Cardiac Physiology workforce strategy (1) quarter two 2023/24 (2)
implemented (1) and delivering improved 2025/28

retention, development of teams to fill vacancies
and meet clinical service need (2)

Standardised integrated model of care for Heart Second half of 2024/25
Failure patients underpinned by Multi-Disciplinary
Team working and collaboration to ensure that
Heart Failure patients receive the care they need
with no barrier to movement between providers
and levels of care.

Rapid Non-ST-Elevation Myocardial Infarction First half of 2024/25
service in place across system with early inter-
hospital transfer and weekend working

Recovery of waiting times for elective cardiac First half of 2024/25
surgery

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward $fan 2023 180



v

.1 I3 Integrated Care
{37 System

PRt Mid and South Essex

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation

of objectives

Commence Mitral Transcatheter Edge to Edge
Repair service (1) and develop to full population
roll out as high-volume centre (2)

(1) quarter two 2023/24 (2)
2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023

181



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Cardiovascular Services

What have our residents told us?

We have conducted a survey, including interviews as well as shorter form questions,
of people accessing our BP@Home programme. The results are being analysed at
present.

Current Conditions

In parallel with activity nationally, our cardiovascular disease detection and treatment
activity dipped during the Covid-19 pandemic. We are working to restore and expand
previous detection and management levels.

Whilst our Alivecor and BP@Home programmes have accelerated progress relating
to Atrial Fibrillation and Blood Pressure, we will need to expand capacity within the
lipid management pathway to increase diagnosis and treatment levels.

Our baseline data shows the following trends in hypertension and cholesterol:

e Below national average (57%) of patients aged 18 or over with no GP-
recorded cardiovascular disease and a General Practitioner recorded QRISK
score of 20% or more, on lipid lowering therapy.

e Below national average, and lowest in East of England Region percentage of
patients aged 18 and over, with General Practitioner recorded Cardiovascular
Disease (narrow definition), in whom the most recent blood cholesterol level
(measured in the preceding 12 months) is non-HDL cholesterol less than
2.5mmol/l or LDL-cholesterol less than 1.8mmol/I.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Increase percentage of patients with hypertension treated to National Institute for
Health and Care Excellence guidance to 77% by March 2024.

Increase the percentage of patients aged between 25 and 84 years with a
cardiovascular disease risk score greater than 20 percent on lipid lowering therapies
to 60%.

The NHS is working collaboratively across primary, secondary and community care
settings to improve and integrate cardiovascular disease pathways and workstreams
into normal working practices.

Our Ambition

Our long-term vision is to continue moving upstream in our approach to
cardiovascular disease, including prevention and early detection of atrial fibrillation,

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward $fan 2023 182



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

hypertension and high lipids, so that our residents are able to enjoy more years of
healthy life, with lower rates of heart attacks and strokes.

We will do this by focusing on:

e Primary prevention: working in partnership with communities and place-
based teams on primary prevention, including links with our partnership
approach to healthy weight and smoking.

e Detection and ‘datafication’: identifying residents with risk factors or
established disease, using risk stratification approaches, and generating
valuable data to drive proactive and, where possible, predictive, activity

e Early intervention: providing holistic, personalised support and treatment to
residents with identified risk factors or early-stage cardiovascular disease.

e Treatment: providing holistic, personalised support and treatment to those
with more established cardiovascular disease.

At system level, system programmes drawn together in alignment, with Population
Health Management, personalised care, inequalities etc running through.

Delivery Priorities

Different Cardiovascular Disease prevention-focused workstreams will align with our
system prevention approach:

e Primary prevention: linking with healthy weight and tobacco dependency
support to reduce cardiovascular disease related risk factors.

e Detection
o NHS Health checks
o BP@Home programme
o Breathlessness van (with mobile Blood Pressure devices)
o Exploring potential to expand use of Fibricheck whilst Alivecor use is
reviewed nationally.

e Datafication, early intervention and treatment
o Proactive care framework
o Lipid management pathway — expanding access to genetic testing for
familial hypercholesterolaemia, as well as to first- and second-line
therapy.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Dr Ronan Fenton
Clinical Lead: Dr Pete Scolding

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023 183



Mid and South Essex
', Integrated Care m

¥ System Mid and South Essex

The different workstreams (Atrial Fibrillation, Blood Pressure and lipids) will report
into a system Cardiovascular Board (established Feb 23). This board will be
accountable to the Community Partnership Board. See below organogram.

Community Partnership

Board

Population Health
Improvement Board

MSE ICS Partnership Board

Cardiovascular Disease
Programme Board

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for

implementation of
objectives
Expand BP@Home scheme by working alongside our | Quarter four 2023/24
community pharmacists and further integration into
relevant clinical pathways such as Renal

Monitor National review of Kardia Alivecor mobile heart | Quarter four 2023/24
monitors, and if re-approved expand use in General
Practitioner surgeries, community centres and on our
outreach bus.

Scope potential to expand use of fibricheck app as
alternative.

Participate in Innovations for Health Inequalities Quarter four 2023/24
Programme to expand the mobile unit (outreach bus)
to a targeted core20Plus population, to include broader
cardiovascular disease risk assessment and
management (including Atrial Fibrillation, blood
pressure, cholesterol, smoking)

Maximise Community Pharmacy Hypertension case Quarter four 2023/24
finding

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward $fan 2023 184



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for

implementation of

objectives
Implement University College London Partners Quarter four 2023/24
Proactive care framework for risk stratification and
prioritisation of atrial fibrillation, blood pressure,
cholesterol and type 2 diabetes

Scope and agree approach to improving lipid Quarter four 2023/24
outcomes.

Palliative and End of Life Care

What have our residents told us?

A Health Needs Assessment was undertaken in 2022 by Healthwatch Essex with the
oversight of the Hospice Collaborative. Three key themes emerged:

e Improvement to accessing services: including 24/7; bereavement support;
access to medication and pain relief

e Improved communication: between professionals; ease of contact for
information and advice

e Clearer information: clear pathways for care, to preserve independence
including sign posting and earlier referrals between services and hospices

Current Conditions

Across the ICS there are multiple organisations providing Palliative and End of Life
Care with varying service models between Alliances with different population health
needs. A gap analysis benchmarked against the National Ambitions Framework
identified the following challenges:

Lack of Co-ordinated, consistent access to care:

To achieve our ambitions for Palliative and End of Life Care, collaboration across the
full spectrum of health and social care, voluntary and third sector organisations, and
local communities will be essential. The recent establishment of the hospice
collaborative and the community collaborative will have a key influence. The
challenge is developing 24/7 models of care that address the population needs of
each Alliance in a co-ordinated, equitable, and consistent way. Lack of digital
solutions to support shared care records and Electronic Palliative Care Coordination
System are negatively impacting on delivering co-ordinated care. Inequities in
access to high quality bereavement services also affects the wellbeing of families
and carers long term.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023 185



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Reactive rather than proactive care:

Patient experience and outcomes that matter most are improved through early
recognition of the End of Life and personalised care planning for the future. To move
to a proactive approach to care will require a significant cultural shift within the
Integrated Care System, but one that is necessary to reduce unnecessary hospital
admissions and therefore, system pressures. There is a need to empower our
patients and families through practical support, information, and training in the End of
Life care.

Skilled workforce:

Nationally, there is known shortage of multi-professional specialists in Palliative and
End of Life Care which is affecting recruitment and retention of staff within our
Integrated Care System. Without the right workforce, the ambition to support people
and their families/carers to have the best support and outcome at the End of Life will
not be achieved. In addition, a recent Mid and South Essex wide education gap
analysis also identified that our current healthcare workforce would benefit from
blended education and training programmes to increase their confidence and skills in
the delivery of Palliative and End of Life Care.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

We are committed to the standards required to deliver high quality Palliative and End
of Life Care services within the Integrated Care System. These include:

e Ambitions for Palliative and End of Life Care: a National Framework for Local
Action 2021 — 26

e NHS Long Term Plan

e NHS Palliative and End of Life Care Statutory Guidance for Integrated Care
Boards, September 2022

Our Ambitions

Working in partnership across health and social care, including the voluntary sector
and local communities, we will ensure that the palliative and end of life care needs of
people of all ages with life-limiting illness, and their families/carers, are met so that
they receive the care and support they need to live and die well. This is irrespective
of diagnosis or condition, and especially in the last year of life. We will focus on the
“outcomes that matter most” to those we care for.

Delivery Priorities

The Palliative and End of Life Care Programme Board will be responsible for
delivering a robust Palliative and End of Life Care workplan through 6 workstreams
(as detailed below):

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward $fan 2023 186



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

e Improving the recognition of people in the last year of life to focus on early
personalised care planning and proactive anticipatory care

e Ensure that people are cared for and die in their preferred place of care, and
to avoid unnecessary hospital admissions

e Ensure equity of access for our population to 24/7 co-ordinated care,
information and advice, including access to anticipatory medication

e Complete the System-wide roll out of an Electronic Palliative Care
Coordination System to improve co-ordinated and informed care. This will
support the development of a Palliative and End of Life Care dashboard and
its link to Population Health Management

e Support development of a single shared care record to ensure care is
delivered at the right time by the right person with the right information

e Develop models of care to support the needs of families and carers

e Improve the quality of Palliative and End of Life Care through training and
education to ensure a skilled, and confident workforce. This includes
sustainability and innovation through workforce planning

e Improve the reach of Palliative and End of Life Care through mobilising
community focussed approaches to palliative and end of life care, such as
compassionate communities and integrated neighbourhood teams

e Increase equity of access to high quality all age bereavement services

e Improve the quality of Palliative and End of Life Care through training and
education to ensure a skilled, and confident workforce. This includes
sustainability and innovation through workforce planning

e Improve the reach of Palliative and End of Life Care through mobilising
community focussed approaches to palliative and end of life care, such as
compassionate communities and integrated neighbourhood teams

e Increase equity of access to high quality all age bereavement services

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Karen Wesson
Clinical Lead: Dr Eva Lew

The Palliative and End of Life Care Programme Board will be responsible for
delivering a robust Palliative and End of Life Care workplan through 6 workstreams
(as detailed below):

The Palliative and End of Life Care Programme Board reports to the Community
Transformation and Improvement Board which is then overseen by the Strategic

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint For¥ard Plan 2023 187



T Mid and South Essex
I I, Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Oversight and Assurance Committee. It is expected that the four MSE Alliance End
of Life Network Groups will have representation on the Palliative and End of Life
Care Programme Board and be active members on the Palliative and End of Life
Care Palliative and End of Life Care workstreams.

Below organogram of system governance arrangements.

CTIB oversight and Proaramme Delivery for
SOAC informed by the assurance via the ogramme Uetvery 1o
i System Community
Community programme leads/SRO idi
Transformation and of community programmes = provicing
| t Board includi update, assurance, risks and
mprovement Boar programme including escalation to the CTIB

transformation

Respiratory
Programme

Stroke Programme

Palliative and EOL
Care

Community
Transformation Diabetes
and g Programme

Improvement R
Board (CTIB) Babies, Children and
Young People

Community Beds

Community Elective

Community Nursing
LT

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Increase recognition of population last 12 months | Quarter three 2023/24
of life achieving 1% by 2028

Increase proportion of people offered personalised | Quarter four 2023/24
care support

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward $3fan 2023 188



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan objectives

Deliver 24/7 coordinated care, information and
advice including access to anticipatory medicine

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for implementation

of objectives
First half of 2024/25

Deliver sustainable end of life care workforce

Second half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023

189



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Diabetes Services

What have our residents told us?

There is variation across alliance areas in care received, for example, there is
reduced uptake or completion of annual health checks in South-East Essex area in
comparison to others and we see increased amputation rate for diabetic foot disease
in parts of this area. The Integrated Care Board has led projects to improve uptake of
checks and develop pathways centrally with varied results.

Current Conditions

There are approximately 69,000 (5.7% population) people living with Diabetes
across MSE who could be at risk from diabetes complications, and additionally
28,705 people with Non-Diabetic Hyperglycaemia at risk of developing Type 2
Diabetes within 3 years. Effective management of Diabetes is vital for people to
avoid complications that are a detriment to quality of life and require health care
interventions. An increase of preventable Type 2 diabetes could pose a significant
strain onto the Integrated Care Board in the medium term if preventative
interventions are not made.

Challenges in community/integrated Diabetes services and hospital trusts as they
work together to develop a joined up and equitable approach, aligning policy and
pathways between 3 hospital sites and 3 community providers with varied models of
delivery. In addition, there are increased caseloads of people presenting with
complications arising after the covid-19 pandemic.

The Integrated Care Board is currently going through formulation of leadership via
recent recruitment of a System Diabetes Clinical Lead and the development of
stewardship programme therefore these should be supportive in achieving
objectives.

Need to deliver at lower cost to ensure sustainability in the system whilst meeting an
increased population demand. Future investment amounts from NHS England
Cardiovascular Disease and Respiratory network are currently unknown therefore
planning for future quality improvement projects is challenging.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

In line with the NHS Long Term Plan, the Diabetes team are undertaking several
quality improvements pilots and projects, some transformational and funded by NHS
England and some now business as usual programmes that will impact prevention,
patient understanding, knowledge and management of diabetes and improve
pathways with aim of reducing long-term complications and health care
interventions.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 190



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Our Ambitions
In line with the NHS long term plan the Integrated Care Board aims to;

e Develop data sources and use of data and information to have better
overview of population needs and health inequities with the aim of sharing
data and working more collaboratively with services.

e Have a heavy focus on prevention, particularly on the significant population
size at risk through preventative and educational programmes.

e Increase number of those attending structured education or using digital tools
to support.

e Significant increase in completion of diabetes annual health checks and
recovery of treatment targets to pre pandemic levels and above.

e Improve pathways for diabetic foot management and preventative
interventions to reduce amputation rates and improve quality of life for people
with a Diabetic foot condition.

e Support nursing teams to be fully staffed delivering 6-7 days services across
Integrated Care System.

e Increased use of technology such as Glucose monitoring delivered to all Type
1 diabetes patients and many Type 2 multiple daily injections.

Delivery Priorities

e Diabetes dashboard to be finalised ready for analysis and identification of
health inequalities, informing strategic planning by the Diabetes programme
board.

e Maintain and increase referrals into services such as diabetes prevention
programme, Low Calorie Diet Programme, structured education or digital
tools.

e Significant increase in completion of all 8 key diabetes care processes/annual
health checks to be at 34% of the diabetes population (currently 27.6%) and
recovery of treatment targets to pre-pandemic levels to be at 33% (currently
27.1%) by March 2024.

e Ensure an effective and clear pathway for the Diabetic Foot in Mid and South
Essex with relevant preventative steps and being used effectively

e Support nursing teams to be fully staffed delivering 6-7 days services by
2024 _25.

e Increased use of technology such as Glucose monitoring delivered to all T1
diabetes patients (70% by 2024 and 95% by 2025 26)

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Foridard Plan 2023 191



T Mid and South Essex
.1 I3 Integrated Care
{37 System

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Dr Ronan Fenton
Clinical Lead:

Systermn Oversight
Assurance Commitiee

(SOAC)

|

EQE Diabetes Oversight
Group

|

MSE ICE Diabetes
Programme Board

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Deepa Shanmugasundaram

Community Oversight and
Assurance Board

-
-

-

=— MSE Stewardship Group

Task & Finish Groups

The above shows the System governance structure.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Timespan for implementation

Self-management digital and education support
tools to newly diagnosed patients

of objectives
From quarter one to quarter
two 2023/24

Improved care processes uptake from ~27% to
~34% across 8 rolling care processes

Quarter three 2023/24

and in use across Integrated Care System

Target improvements across 3 x treatments from Quarter four 2023/24
~27% to ~ 33%
Power Business Intelligence dashboard finalised Quarter four 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 192



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Dermatology Services

What have our residents told us?
The Dermatology patient survey in February 2023 found that:

e 59% of respondents had accessed care from their General Practitioner for
their skin condition with 62% of patients regularly managing their skin
conditions at home. Only 23% had a tele dermatology assessment.

e 44% of respondents had accessed skin treatment via a community or hospital
service with mixed outcomes, the common trend being that the clinical care
received by hospitals was good but often experienced long waiting times and
thought the service was not patient focussed.

o 45% stated that their skin condition has impacted on their mental health and
wellbeing with common themes being that skin conditions are leading to lack
of sleep, increased anxiety of visual appearance.

Current Conditions

Challenges driving dermatology pressures include a shortage of consultant
dermatologists and an ageing workforce, variation in diagnosis and management in
primary care due to a lack of dermatological training for General Practitioners; limited
or fragmented use of available technology; inadequate triage in both primary and
secondary care, limited and inconsistent coding of outpatient activity (NHS England
Transforming Elective Care Services - Dermatology).

Local pressures resemble the national picture for Dermatology with increased patient
waiting lists: dermatology is one of three priority areas due to significantly increasing
demand for Dermatology services. The Integrated Care System has formed a
Dermatology Board with representation across primary care, community and acute
services. The Dermatology Board has overseen development of joint pathways with
community and acute services to improve care for service users.

The Dermatology Programme Board alongside Dermatology Stewards have
committed to implementing a single Community Dermatology Service across the
Integrated Care System to support improvement in Dermatology services, reducing
health inequalities, improving patient experience and patient outcomes,
communication, and waiting times for patients.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The Dermatology Programme Board are implementing an Integrated Community
Dermatology Service, acting as a single point of access into community and
secondary care services in line with national guidance. The service will be innovative
and improve outcomes for service users.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Foridard Plan 2023 193



Mid and South Essex

Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex
Our Ambitions

Through use of tele dermatology the service will ensure that service users are seen
in the right setting, first time, subsequently improving the early diagnosis of Skin
Cancer and reducing hospital waiting times through triage. This links to the NHS
Long Term Plan to boost out of hospital care and use technology to redesign clinical
pathways.

In addition, Dermatology Stewards have identified key improvement areas. These
include:

e Public health promotion of Dermatology conditions

e Continued engagement and training with General Practitioners and Health
Care Professionals

e Initiatives to support the retention and training of workforce

Delivery Priorities

¢ Improve Skin Cancer 2 week wait and Referral to Treatment waiting times

e Achieve the faster diagnostic standard for skin cancer

e Implement the Integrated Community Dermatology Service by November
2023.

e Deliver a seamless care pathway for our residents from point of prevention
onwards

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Emily Hughes
Clinical Lead: Karen Wesson
Below organogram of system governance arrangements.

Dermatology Programme Stewardship

Task & Finish Groups )
Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation
of objectives

Implement a single Integrated Community Quarter three 2023/24

Dermatology service across Mid and South Essex

by December 23

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 194



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Eye Care

What have our residents told us?

The common theme in feedback from residents is that the quality of care given
during attendances is good, however the waiting time for appointments (particularly
follow up care), delays for surgery and telephone access to the service require
improvement. Care closer to home and easier to access is well received, this is
supported by Friends and Family Test responses that are more positive for
satellite/community locations than for attendances at the large Trust sites.

Current Conditions

Eye care services across mid and south Essex are significantly challenged as a
result of year-on-year growth in demand and the added impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. The number of people waiting for appointments at hospital is at a record
high particularly for those with developing or chronic conditions. This has an impact
on the avoidable deterioration of vision and long-term outcomes for our population.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

By understanding our current demand and future growth in demand for eye care
services we will target pathway transformation to maximise capacity to ensure
patients are treated in a timely manner and as close to home as possible.

The Planning Guidance for 23/24 identifies the requirement to ensure direct referral
routes from community optometrists to ophthalmology for all urgent and elective eye
consultations.

Our Ambitions

The aim of the Mid and South Essex Eyecare Transformation Programme is to
‘improve and preserve the vision of our residents now and in the future by achieving
a system-wide sustainable and integrated eye care service across mid and south
Essex’

We intend to reduce the non-admitted waiting list and improve Referral to Treatment
performance, significantly reduce the overdue follow up waiting list and improve
patient outcomes, particularly relating to avoidable deterioration of vision whilst
waiting for treatment).

Delivery Priorities

Led by the Eyecare Transformation Programme Board, improving outcomes for
patients and their experience of care will be achieved through:

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Foridard Plan 2023 195



~

<
v4

v
4 )4

Ly

4

37 System

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
Mid and South Essex

e Developing new pathways and increasing capacity and efficiency of services
to meet growing demand

e Reducing waiting times for care

e Maximising the clinical capabilities of the ophthalmic workforce and
developing new roles

e Improving estates and digital infrastructure to support the future delivery
model

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Andrew Pike
Clinical Lead: Dr Boye Tayo

Below organogram of system governance arrangements.

National Eye Care
Programme Board

Regional Eye Care System Oversight
Programme Board Assurance Group

MSE Elective Care Board

MSE Eye Care
Transfarmation
Programme Board

Elective New Model
Recovery & Workforce Infrastructure
o of Care
Digital

Delivery Plan

Timespan for implementation
of objectives

Delivery Plan objectives

Complete review of 8,00 glaucoma patients Quarter one 2023/24
Full implementation of Referral Hub with clinical Quarter one 2023/24
triage

Implement one diagnostic hub and develop Quarter three 2023/24

specification for spokes (subject to business case)

Expand use of Eyecare electronic Referral System | Quarter two 2023/24
and implement Advice & Guidance functionality

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 196



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for implementation

of objectives
Develop and implement pre-op cataract pathway From quarter three to quarter
and glaucoma case finding four 2023/24

Review and develop end to end pathways for First half of 2024/25
medical retina

Implement diagnostic pathway with associated Second half of 2024/25
capacity across all mid and south Essex

Development and mobilisation of long-term 2025/28
estates and infrastructure solutions for acute
ophthalmic care as per the new model and
pathways

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forif#ard Plan 2023 197



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Pharmacy and Medicines Optimisation

What have our residents told us?

O“'ed patient O""th
Ly

\eo®°

ot

And
Me, on\lo‘ s
me. ASurement & M on

dicines optimisa®

Current Conditions

Antimicrobial Stewardship: National target has not been achieved since November
2021, some of this increase is attributed to surge in demand for management of
Group A Strep and prevention of Diphtheria and in line with increase in antibiotic
prescribing seen nationally. There is steady decrease in the use of broad-spectrum
antibiotics.

Patient Safety: Reduction of dependence forming medicines is a priority. Mid and
South Essex currently has over 1000 patients prescribed >120mg morphine daily.
New guidance and implementation documents in place to support patient and
prescribers.

Resources: Cost pressures arising from increasing demand for medication, increase
in price due to shortages leading to price inflation and Department of Health price
concessions.

Over-prescribing: Overprescribing directly affects some groups with protected
characteristics. In Oct 2022 there were 111,458 (10.87% c.f. 10.79% national
average) people taking 8 or more unique medications (range across Alliances 8.33%
to 11.04%) and the average number of unique medicines prescribed for all patients
in MSE was 3.66 compared with 3.53 nationally.

Community pharmacy integration: Slow uptake of community pharmacy
consultation service and under-utilisation of community pharmacy clinical services
(both nationally and locally commissioned) to increase capacity within General
Practitioner practices.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 198



v

41 » Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

The Essex Pharmacy Leads network was re-invigorated during the pandemic and
continues to support system wide working.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

¢ A whole system approach to medicines optimisation to improve population
health.

e Improve access to medicines.

e Improve health outcomes from medicines.

e Reduce inappropriate prescribing.

e Deliver value from medicines.

¢ Reduce waste.

e Promote self-care.

Our Ambitions

To ensure that people living in Mid and South Essex have access to the medicines
they need, in the right place and at the right time; to achieve the greatest health
outcomes for themselves and the local community, within the resources available.

Delivery Priorities

e Achieve the antimicrobial prescribing metrics year on year by implementation
of National Institute for Health and Care Excellence guidance and cross-
sector guidance on common infections in line with Integrated Care Board
Antimicrobial Resistance Workplan 2023-2026

o Patient Safety- Patient Safety- reduce the risk of medicines-related harm from
high-risk drugs- Valproate Prescribing in Females under 55 and other Patient
Safety Incident Response Framework priorities; improved monitoring to
reduce risk of harm Eclipse Patient Safety indicators

e Reduce number of patients on high dose opioids to Integrated Care Board
average electronic Patient Aligned Care Team 2 Opioid Prescribing
Dashboard

e Resources-make best use of NHS funding by managing cost pressures
arising from increasing demand for medication and reduce variance in
prescribing spend £per ASTRO-PU electronic Patient Aligned Care Team2
between Mid and South Essex practices to drive equity, appropriate
distribution and best use of resources and make best use of existing
pharmacy workforce and developing a pharmacy workforce pipeline strategy.

e Reducing over-prescribing and over supply- reducing carbon burden of
medication. Polypharmacy- reduce inappropriate polypharmacy- reduce
variation across Mid and South Essex electronic Patient Aligned Care Team 2
Polypharmacy Prescribing Comparators

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forid8rd Plan 2023 199



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

e Integration of community pharmacists and community pharmacies into ICB
pathways; optimising the use of nationally commissioned services Community
Pharmacy Consultation Service Discharge Medicines Service, Blood Pressure
Check Service and Oral Contraceptive Service; development of clinical
services delivered including Independent Prescribing by Community
Pharmacists.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Paula Wilkinson
Clinical Lead: Dr Aravinda Guniyangodage

The Mid and South Essex Medicines Optimisation Committee is in place and working
towards single formulary and prescribing guidance for the Integrated Care System.
Evolving Integrated Pharmacy and Medicines Optimisation Committee and
system/alliance medicines optimisation groups to drive systemisation of medicines
optimisation and pharmacy integration

The below shows the proposed governance structure.

Integrated Care Board
Finance and Investment Primary Care Strategic Oversight .

MSE Integrated Pharmacy and Medicines Optimisation Committee

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for

implementation of
objectives
Establish Mid and South Essex Antimicrobial Quarter one to quarter three
Resistance network of Primary Care Network lead 2023/24
pharmacists and train the trainer programme; and
audit programme to drive change

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward#fan 2023 200



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan objectives

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for
implementation of

Implement and embed Patient Safety Incident
Response Framework; patient safety audit
programme

objectives
From quarter two to quarter
three 2023/24

Undertaken pharmacy workforce gap analysis and
develop a pharmacy workforce strategy for Mid and
South Essex.

From quarter two to quarter
three 2023/24

Optimise use of High Cost Drugs- use of biosimilars

From quarter three 2023/24
to second half of 2024/25

Implement annual system wide Medicines
Optimisation Locally Enhanced Scheme to drive
quality, equitable and cost-effective prescribing and
reduce variance MOLES 23-24

From quarter one to quarter
three 2023/24

Increase delivery of high-quality structured
medication reviews to improve outcomes and
reduce medicines-related problems for patients
ensuring equity in access and focus on people with
Serious Mental lliness and those with Learning
Disabilities.

From quarter two to quarter
three 2023/24

Develop and implement action to address the
carbon impact of unnecessary prescribing and
medicines waste in areas other than inhalers.

From quarter two to quarter
three 2023/24

Implement and evaluate Independent Prescribing
Pathfinder within community pharmacy with focus
on extension of Community Pharmacy Consultation
Service service initially.

From quarter one to quarter
four 2023/24

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023

201




4

4
'L

.
')

4

Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Musculoskeletal and Pain Service

What have our residents told us?

A small-scale survey was undertaken in 2023, 108 people responded in total with 46
expressing an interest in being involved in future discussions. An online event was
held 11t May 2023 targeting the people who responded to the survey. In addition,
face to face survey engagement will be undertaken at Musculoskeletal, Pain and
Rheumatology outpatient clinics during May.

Current Conditions
Current challenges and pressures:

e Differential access to services across the system in community and secondary
care.

e Waiting list pressures in secondary care, admitted and non-admitted.

e Workforce pressures.

Partnership working:

e Musculoskeletal Delivery Group in place with speciality specific task and finish
groups. All groups have representation from all providers currently offering
Musculoskeletal care across the system including primary, community and
secondary care.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

Musculoskeletal is one of the three speciality priorities described in the NHS
Planning Guidance 2021/22 to support a reduction in variation in access and
outcomes. Within the Mid and South Essex Integrated Care System there are six
providers providing Musculoskeletal services across community and multiple NHS
and Independent Sector delivering secondary care, which creates a variation in both
access to services and pathways being delivered across the population.

Our Ambitions

Musculoskeletal transformation includes trauma and orthopaedics, rheumatology,
pain management and therapies. Working with stakeholders since Autumn 2021, the
Musculoskeletal System Delivery Group have developed a new community pathway,
for people aged 16 years and over, based on the East of England Musculoskeletal
Pathway Improvement Framework, the Best MSK high impact recommendations and
adhering to the Getting It Right First-Time pathway.

The proposal is to commission a single Community Musculoskeletal and Pain
Service for mid and south Essex which aims to triage, assess, and treat more
patients outside of acute services and improve outcomes, quality and patient

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 202



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

experience of care. Residents that cannot be managed in primary care will be
referred to the community service via a Single Point of Access for assessment,
diagnostics, diagnosis, and treatment. Patients who require surgery or specialist
assessment and/or treatment will follow a pathway through the community service
into an acute service of their choice.

Delivery Priorities

e System wide community Musculoskeletal and pain service to be implemented
by Q4 23/24

e 80% conversion rate to surgery

e <20% discharged at first appointment.

e Support waiting list reduction.

The new service will deliver high quality, patient focussed care that is innovative,
improves outcomes and reduces health inequalities for patients. Expected outcomes
will include:

e Delivering a population health approach focused on optimising outcomes,
including reducing health inequalities

e Providing a service that delivers equitable outcomes and experience

e Improving life-long best Musculoskeletal health for the population of Mid and
South Essex using preventative and anticipatory care approaches

e Delivering a seamless integrated pathway

e Adherence to Referral to Treatment standards and more efficient recovery of
waiting lists.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Tiffany Hemming

Clinical Lead: Gurvinder Saluja
Clinical Lead: Mr Sean Symons Mid and South Essex Foundation
Trust

The table below shows the System governance structure.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥ard Plan 2023 203



T Mid and South Essex
.1 I3 Integrated Care
{37 System

System Oversight
Assurance Group
(SOAG)

e

o 0O
O Outpatient System Board () E

Regional Steering Group

NHS

Mid and South Essex

and o ., “0
EoE Network \ T
MSK Delivery Group \
T&O Task & Finish Group Rheumatology Task & Pain Management Task &
Finish Group Finish Group

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives

Timespan for

implementation of objectives

Service to be in place in 23/24 Quarter 4

Specification to be signed off by the Delivery Group | Quarter one 2023/24
Further resident engagement event Quarter one 2023/24
Scoping exercise around paediatric orthopaedic Quarter three 2023/24
pathways

System wide Musculoskeletal and Pain Community | Quarter four 2023/24

Identification and prioritisation of further initiatives to
improve pathways and outcomes

First half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023

204



T Mid and South Essex
®| Integrated Care m
{17 System Mid and South Essex

Appendix 8 — Supporting
System Development

Within this section you will find long term plans relating to:

e System Governance

e Tackling Violence and Aggression against Women and Girls

e Research Studies

e Delegation of Services (Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental Services)
e Specialised Commissioning

e Community Mobilisation, Transformation & Resilience

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥ard Plan 2023 205



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Building our Integrated Care System
Governance

Governance arrangements to establish the Integrated Care Board are sound, meet
the requirements of the Act and were seen as good practice by NHS England. As the
Integrated Care Board matures to meet its objectives of subsidiarity and integration,
governance must evolve to enable this maturity.

Residents/patients have asked the Board for more focussed engagement on
decision making and expect standards of business conduct / transparency of
decision making in line with our goals to be robust, demonstrating our accountability
and influence over the performance of the system.

Governance is an enabling function and so must work closely with all directorates to
achieve its objectives and the Integrated Care Board ambition.

What is the requirement from NHS

The Integrated Care Board must ensure that systems of internal control are robust to
manage system and local Integrated Care Board risks that threaten the achievement
of Integrated Care Board objectives and maintain and strengthen compliance with
legislation and codes of governance.

This includes the approval of plans, strategies, and business cases as well as
scrutiny of decisions and seeking assurances and legal advice that Integrated Care
Board functions are delivered appropriately. As the Integrated Care Board develops,
taking on delegated functions from NHS England, strengthening subsidiarity and
integrating with our partners, governance will need to evolve to enable these
functions to be delivered.

What is the ambition

To maintain compliance with statutory duties and good governance practices. In line
with the NHS Long Term Plan and Integrated Care Partnership Strategy:

e Support integration with partner organisations — strong system decision
making and risk management

e Establish governance to support Subsidiarity — fully integrated and
streamlined Provider Collaboratives / lead provider model

Satisfactory outcome to Care Quality Commission inspection of Integrated Care
Systems

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward#fan 2023 206



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

What are the delivery priorities?

e Maintain good governance and compliance with statutory duties for example
the duty to obtain appropriate advice.

e Enhance reporting and information flows to the Board and committees using
synthesised ‘highlights and exception’ approach for escalation of performance
(incl. constitutional standards, quality, and finance) risk and assurance as the
key components of core reporting.

e Embed and enhance robust governance and the Integrated Care Boards
standards of business conduct at all relevant levels including arrangements
for effective decision making, management of conflicts of interest and
ensuring all aspects of the Integrated Care System uphold the Nolan
Principles of conduct in public life

e Utilise data and dashboards to ensure that assurance of performance to
Board and committees is high quality, contemporary and serves the need of
the organisation’s governance.

e Create the appropriate governance functions in support of the delegation of
NHS England commissioning functions for podiatry, optometry and dentistry
and shadow arrangements for specialised commissioning, as well as
delegation to place, collaboratives, the role of stewardship groups etc.

e Create more effective and agile decision making that aligns, where
appropriate, organisational governance processes to support delivery of
system priorities e.g. business cases for transformational investment, financial
recovery programme(s).

e Develop collaboration with partners to support Integrated Care System
integration and the management of risk across the system that enables
individual accountability and collective responsibility.

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Anthony McKeever
Lead: Mike Thompson

How will we ensure delivery

The below diagram shows the Integrated Care Board accountability structure

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023 207



<17 » Mid and South Essex
I I3 Integrated Care m

{37 System Mid and South Essex

v
4
~

Southend, Essex,
Thurrock Health &
MSE Integrated Wellbeing Boards

Care Partnership
Local Authorities

MS5E Integrated
Care Board

Remuneration
Committes

Quality
Committee

Primary Care
Commissioning
Committes

C

0 i
:::::S::s Mid Esse: Thurrock South East Essex
Alliance Alliance Alliance Alliance

The below shows the System governance structure.

System Transformation & Investment Group

Synthesizes Supports

advice from decisions of
SFLG
FIC
SEPB ICB &
SOAC
fl> Provider
climPC
ass Boards
Gateways

Strategic Alignment
Investment/benefits realization/ROI
Change/ improvement expertise
Programme Management

Escalation of risks / issues

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for
implementation of
objectives

Maintaining robust governance to keep the From quarter one 2023/24

Integrated Care Board safe / meet statutory to 2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward#fan 2023 208



T Mid and South Essex
» Integrated Care m
7 System Mid and South Essex

Delivery Plan objectives

Timespan for
implementation of

requirements e.g., annual report, duty to obtain
appropriate advice.

objectives

Enhance performance quality and finance reporting
to Integrated Care Board Board and assurance
through committees

Quarter one 2023/24

Revise and update business case process

From quarter one to quarter
two 2023/24

Review and update Scheme of Delegation for
decision making and onward delegation

Quarter two 2023/24

Support effective use of system transformation and
investment group

From quarter one to quarter
two 2023/24

Guidance and training for staff on effective decision | Quarter two 2023/24
making
Support the delivery of the governance peer review | Quarter one 2023/24

Implement strengthened governance outcomes from
the peer review

From quarter two to quarter
three 2023/24

Establish governance for Specialised
Commissioning

Quarter four 2023/24

Work with system partners and place to fully
understand what governance structure is required.

From quarter one to quarter
two 2023/24

Support the development of delegation to place,
collaboratives

From first half 2024/25 to
2025/28

Develop integration of governance with partners and
system risk management

From quarter two to quarter
four 2023/24

Co-ordinate the preparation for and response to
Care Quality Commission inspection of the
integrated care system

From quarter two 2023/24
to second half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥8rd Plan 2023

209




TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m
“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Victims of Abuse (including Violence
Against Women and Girls)

What have our residents told us

Everyone has the right to live safely, free from abuse and neglect. Abuse and
neglect can occur anywhere; at home, public place or whilst receiving services such
as health care, education, or in social care setting. There are many forms of abuse;
sexual, physical, psychological, domestic, discriminatory, financial and neglect.

What is the current state of play/local challenges

Victims of abuse are also more likely to develop a dependency to or misuse alcohol
and/or drugs and domestic abuse has been strongly associated with sleep and
eating disorders and exacerbation of psychotic symptoms. Individuals with mental
health problems may also be more vulnerable to domestic abuse.

Abuse can result in a wide range of significant impacts on the health of an individual
ranging from physical to mental health concerns. Prolonged exposure to physical
abuse can lead to significant long-term health problems or death. Domestic abuse
can have a widespread and significant impact on mental health and can lead to
conditions such as anxiety, depression, suicidal behaviour, and post-traumatic stress
disorder.

Integrated Care Board statutory duties within the Domestic Abuse Act 2021
Integrated Care Board statutory duties within the Serious Violence Duty 2022

What is the requirement from the NHS

Breaking the cycle of domestic abuse is one of the priorities in the Police and Crime
Plan for Essex. The Government’s Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy
2016-20 follows a framework that includes: provision of services, partnership working
and pursuing perpetrators. It has a focus on the need to transform service delivery,
have a change in social action to achieve a sustainable long-term reduction in the
prevalence of abuse and to break the inter-generational consequences of abuse.

Reducing violence in in our communities and the impact of drug driven violence, is
the key priority for the Essex Violence and Vulnerability Partnership.

What is Our Ambition

The Integrated Care Board has committed to work in partnership with Police, Social
Care and many of our local charities and voluntary organisations to address the
many forms of abuse and violence our residents are experiencing.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023 210



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e Partners in the Southend, Essex and Thurrock Domestic Abuse Board
working together to commission a range of specialist victim and
perpetrator services and raising awareness and recognition of abuse.

e Partners in the Essex Violence and Vulnerability Partnership
commissioning a joint strategic approach in preventing violence and
protecting the vulnerable in our communities

e Partners with the Community Safety Partnership teams which bring
together organisations and groups that share responsibility of tackling
crime and disorder, anti-social behaviour plus drug and alcohol related
offending

What are the delivery priorities?

Domestic Abuse Strategy five key outcomes:

e Children & young people can recognise and form healthy relationships;

e People experiencing and at risk of experiencing domestic abuse are
supported to be and feel safe;

e Everyone can rebuild their lives and live free from domestic abuse;

e Supporting and disrupting perpetrators to change their behaviour and break
the cycle of domestic abuse;

e Communities, professionals, and employers can recognise domestic abuse at
the earliest opportunity and have the confidence to act.

Violence and Vulnerability Strategic Objectives

e Voice of our communities

e Targeting interventions

e Developing the workforce

e Communications — raising awareness
e Improving understanding

Community Safety Partnership Objectives

e Tackling violence against women and girls

e Tackling community based antisocial behaviour and safeguarding victims
e Safer communities

e Human trafficking, modern day slavery and organised immigration crime

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Jeff Banks
Clinical Lead: Linda Moncur Director of Nursing for Safeguarding

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forard Plan 2023 211



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

How will we ensure delivery

Through partnership working across the Integrated Care Partnership the Integrated
Care Board will deliver its statutory duties and realise the outcomes identified in the
Domestic Abuse Strategy, the Violence and Vulnerability Strategy and the
Community Safety Partnership Priorities.

The strategic working of the Alliance Groups is inclusive of the need to address the
social determinants of healthcare and health related behaviours between areas and
communities and the need to address inequalities particularly through the work on
Core20PLUS5 Framework.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for

implementation of objectives
Existing or new partnership established for joint Quarter one 2023/24
decision making with partners
Evidence based analysis completed identifying local | Quarter three 2023/24
serious violence issues
Prepared local strategy to contain prevention and Quarter four 2023/24
reduction initiatives
Review and refresh of needs analysis and strategy | First half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward 4®fan 2023 212



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Research in Primary Care and Community

What have we heard from residents/patients

This is an internal organisational requirement only

What is the current state of play/local challenges

Relatively little health-related research has been conducted in Mid and South Essex
compared to other areas of England. This is partly due to the absence of large
research-based academic institutions and medical schools in the area. This may be
having a damaging effect on the local health care economy by reducing opportunities
for innovation and research available to local patients, reducing the attractiveness of
the area to high performing health care professionals and reducing the investment
that is associated with research centres.

In addition, all community services are suffering with workforce shortages, increased
clinical needs and backlogs caused in part by the Covid pandemic. Primary care in
particular is fragile with its highly fragmented structures, limited and variable
management capacity and poor morale and retention.

Increasing research activity and collaboration between partners may achieve
economies of scale, mutual support and better outcomes. In addition, it may help
attract and retain highly skilled staff and create a virtuous circle of more sustainable
health care systems.

What is the requirement from NHS

Community, Primary Care and other out of hospital Health Services in Mid & South
Essex include

150 General Practitioner practices organised into 27 Primary Care Networks
3 Community and Mental Health Providers

approx. 550 schools

>69 care homes

3 hospices

6. 1 prison

abhwd -~

Plus, many more community dentists, pharmacists and optometrists.

Currently each community provider is conducting research supported through its own
research office which provide varying levels of support to researchers.

In addition, the North Thames Clinical Research Network, which currently covers Mid
and South Essex, supports the implementation of research in partner organisations
including primary care and agile settings such as those above. Funding is from the
National Institute of Health Research via the local primary care office based in
Broomfield Hospital. This covers Mid & South Essex, West Essex, Luton and Herts

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForRard Plan 2023 213



v

41 » Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Valleys. In April 2024 the footprint will alter so that Mid and South Essex will become
part of the East of England Local Clinical Research Network. Although the footprint
and relationships will change the underlying NIHR priorities and funding should
remain similar.

What is the ambition

As a system, Mid & South Essex aims to increase the number of research studies
conducted in the community and to increase the number of research-active primary
care networks.

It will help achieve this in partnership with the Local Clinical Research Network by
promoting research activities through its publications and website, through
incorporating research activity in its commissioning activities and supporting
Research Champions in primary care.

There are four themes to the Vision:

1. Research is available and responsive to the health and care needs of our
population

2. Adaptive connection of research systems and processes to Primary Care
systems

3. Strategic engagement and incentivisation in Primary Care
4. Strategic development of the Primary Care Research Workforce

The longer-term vision is to partner with local academic institutions to increase the
local base of academic expertise to lead more locally designed and locally relevant
research studies. The Anglia Ruskin University Medical School is developing its
long-term strategy in partnership with the Integrated Care Board to deliver this.
Ultimate goal to establish a Centre for Advancing Primary & Integrated Care.

What are the delivery priorities

e Develop community of practice in out of hospital research between providers:
North-East London Foundation Trust, Essex Partnership University Trust,
Provide, Primary Care. Initial meetings commenced Nov 2022 and planned
quarterly contact meetings to explore and support options for collaboration
and mutual support and development. To initiate by April 2023.

e |dentify options to increase capacity to support and develop research through
funding applications to employ a coordinator for primary and community care
research. Sept 2023

e Support collaborative links with local universities to develop and champion
primary care and community research within Mid and South Essex. Agree
joint strategy. Sept 2023

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4%fan 2023 214



T Mid and South Essex
1 3 Integrated Care m

4
<

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

e Recruit and support research champions in primary and community care
across Mid and South Essex. Sept 2023 and ongoing.

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Ronan Fenton
Clinical Lead: James Hickling

How will we ensure delivery

L Research
Promotion

Activity

Above organogram of system governance arrangements.

Currently the research workstream in Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Board
has no budget allocation. It relies on soft leadership, networking and influence to
work with partners to meet its objectives. Reporting is proposed to be via the Primary
Care Commissioning Committee.

Delivery Plan
Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for
implementation of objectives
Establish community of practice Quarter one 2023/24
Agree options to support and develop activity Quarter two 2023/24
Links with academic institutions Quarter two 2023/24
Research Champions Quarter three 2023/24
Increase collaboration across community-based Second half of 2024/25
research active organisations
Increase quantity, quality and proportion of locally 2025/28
led research through Centre for Advancing Primary
& Integrated Care

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForRard Plan 2023 215



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023

NHS

Mid and South Essex

216



TR Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Research in Acute Setting

What have we heard from residents/patients

This is an internal organisational requirement only

What is the current state of play/local challenges

Mid and South Essex Foundation Trust has a proud and growing reputation as a
centre of innovation and research but only 33 of >700 consultants are research-
active, and we are unsure of other healthcare professional involvement. However,
our geography means we compete with larger London research institutions. We
should look to work with partners to define the unique offer that Mid and South Essex
Foundation Trust has and to develop a long-term system wide research strategy.

In addition to this, we must consider how we improve training provision to increase
the overall satisfaction of staff with their onsite training. Our General Medical Council
National Teaching Survey scores continue to be lower than our peers. Continuing to
grow our partnership with the medical school at Anglia Ruskin University and with
the University of Essex will help to build our teaching capability.

What is the requirement from NHS

The Health and Care Act 2022 (the 2022 Act) sets new legal duties on Integrated
Care Boards around the facilitation and promotion of research in matters relevant to
the health service, and the use in the health service of evidence obtained from
research.

What is the ambition

Key points in the draft Research & Development strategy document:

1. Establish a culture where research is appreciated across all staff groups and
embedded into routine practice

2. Develop a High-Quality Research Portfolio offering access to patients across

all specialties and sites

Increase quantity of research

Patients and public are engaged with, participate in and benefit from research

Research is adequately funded via National Institute of Health Research

funding, external grant applications, commercial research income and charity

funding

6. Research is well governed, managed, supported and delivered and studies
are delivered as agreed

o s w

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint ForRard Plan 2023 217



41 » Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

What are the delivery priorities

The immediate plan is to develop a system-wide research strategy that incorporates
research in acute settings with research in community and primary care (see
separate Joint Forward Plan). This will cover People, Partnerships, Portfolio of
assets, and Patients/Populations.

Joint funding from the Anglia Ruskin University, Integrated Care Board and Mid and
South Essex Foundation Trust has allowed recruitment to two posts to create a
research strategy team.

They are currently involved in a stakeholder engagement exercise to draw up the
priorities for a strategy, which is due to be published in June 2023.

Engagement will take place in the summer of 2023. Draft objectives are stated
above.

Governance

Senior Responsible Owner: Ronan Fenton
Clinical Lead: James Hickling

How will we ensure delivery

Short term collaborative funding has supported the establishment of a small research
strategy group. Delivery of the strategy will depend on system-wide partners
including NHS providers, academic institutions and the Integrated Care Board.

National support through National Institute of Health Research and other funding
sources. Oversight will be through the Clinical & Professional Leadership
Directorate. Overall governance to be agreed.

Delivery Plan
Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for
implementation of objectives
Conduct initial stakeholder engagement Quarter one 2023/24
Publish System-Wide Research Strategy Quarter two 2023/24

Further engagement and final strategy production Quarter three 2023/24

Implement Research Strategy From quarter four 2023/24
to 2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward4fan 2023 218



TR Mid and South Essex
® Integrated Care m

4
'L 4

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental Services
Delegation

What have our residents told us?

Access to all primary services (including Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental services)
is a priority for our local population. Many residents see accessing these services as
both an alternative to hospital-based care and as the gatekeeper to hospital-based
services where required.

Residents are struggling to access dental services particularly in some more
deprived areas of the Integrated Care Board. Many residents access private dental
services due to a lack of NHS provision.

Current Conditions

Pharmacy optometry and dentistry services will be delegated to Integrated Care
Boards as of 1 April 2023. Transition plans are underway, but there are significant
challenges in taking on these responsibilities including access to care, quality and
finance.

Access to dental services nationally is a significant challenge. This is in part due to
workforce constraints but also is attributed to the existing contractual settlement with
dentists. The contract framework is currently under review nationally.

Nationally, there are also challenges within the community pharmacy workforce.
There is concern that the planned expansion of community pharmacy services as an
alternative to general practice cannot be supported within the current resource
constraints.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

The Planning Guidance for 23/24 identifies the following requirements that impact on
Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental services.

e Recover dental activity, improving units of dental activity towards pre-
pandemic levels

¢ Increase the use of Community Pharmacy Services as an alternative to
general practice

e Ensure direct referral routes from community optometrists to ophthalmology
for all urgent and elective eye consultations

e Recovery of secondary care dental service waiting lists as part of overall
waiting list recovery

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint For8rd Plan 2023 219



ol Mid and South Essex
v1 [ Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Our Ambitions

The Integrated Care Board seeks to ensure that Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental
services form a key part of our Integrated Neighbourhood Team model for urgent
and episodic care, complex care and prevention.

Delivery Priorities

Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental Services will be delegated to Integrated Care
Boards from 1st April 2023. As such, our initial priority is to stabilise arrangements
and ensure we are delivering our business-as-usual functions effectively. From this
foundation we will then undertake a process of strategy development over a six-
month period. We will engage with stakeholders throughout this process.

From the end of 23/24, we will seek to deliver upon our strategic ambitions.

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Dr Ronan Fenton,
Medical Director Integrated Care Board
Clinical Lead: Dr James Hickling

A number of subgroups of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee will oversee
the effective commissioning of Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental services. In
addition, the Primary Care Commissioning Committee will oversee the development
of clear local strategies that link in with our Integrated Neighbourhood Team
ambitions.

Delivery Plan

Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for

implementation of
objectives
Transfer and stabilise services following delegation | Quarter one 2023/24
from NHS England

Ensure Business as Usual functions are undertaken | Quarter two 2023/24

effectively

Develop Community Pharmacy and Dental From quarter three to

Strategies (and continue Ophthalmology quarter four 2023/24

Stewardship programme)

Implement Strategies From first half on 2024/25 to
2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 220



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Community Resilience and Engagement

What have our residents told us?

We knew it was essential that the building-blocks of our strategy and the ambitions
of the Joint Forward Plan were informed by a range of conversations with residents,
community organisations, clinicians, care professionals and leaders in the NHS, plus
our local authorities.

In developing the integrated care strategy, we held eight workshops based in
community venues, collectively engaging over 170 people from all parts of our
system, including elected councillors, system leaders, staff and, most importantly,
members of our community. We also used the ‘Essex is United — Your Questions
Answered’ Facebook group to ask a series of questions of the general public. Each
was viewed on average 1,700 times, with an average of 280 comments and votes on
each question.

We use our Community Campaign Model and our emergent Community Assembly to
convene and engage with our communities iteratively, we have a network of 10,200
Community Groups. We have engaged digitally with 3000 members of the public to
support the development of the Assembly. This is an approach we intend to continue
to evolve to support the delivery of the Joint Forward Plan.

We have adopted a convening, iterative engagement approach that; meets people
where they are and focuses on appreciative enquiry.

We have asked people what is working well and what could we do more of. The
emergent themes from our community conversations are:

e Access: Personalisation and complexity remain a challenge both physically
and digitally for our communities. We must make our offer obvious and our
systems intuitive with a focus on primary care, urgent care and care closer to
home

e Equitable and Honest: More work is required to meet inclusion health groups
where they are, whilst being open on what is possible. This will become an
ongoing feature of the work of the Integrated Care Partnership as it moves
forward. Additionally, a commitment to learning from issues and sharing this
openly.

e Awareness: Further development of behaviour change support to address
the wider determinants of health through collaboration around early
intervention and prevention

e Building Responsible Community Together: Active listening and
development of equitable mechanisms that offer a proportionate way for
communities to work with us to solve the societal challenges we all face.

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint FortWard Plan 2023 221



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Current Conditions

We cannot service our way out of the current service and societal challenges we
face. Communities are our greatest asset in driving behaviour change to empower
people to Live Well - this requires a new model of civic infrastructure. This means we
will need to meet people where they are and work shoulder to shoulder with our
people to leverage the best outcomes for our communities.

What is the requirement from the NHS?

As articulated in the Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Strategy, "Engagement of
partners and stakeholders will not be an occasional duty but will be a permanent
feature of the work of our Partnership”

Our Ambition

We will create a whole system, asset-based approach to working with communities.
We will empower people to connect face to face and virtually around societal, system
and neighbourhood-based challenges, that are important not only to communities of
place, purpose and interest but also supports driving social movements that ensure
better system outcomes, that are relevant to the communities MSE serves, this will
create the foundations of resilient, citizen-led communities that can truly level up and
reduce health inequalities.

We believe that engagement with our communities should be:
Organisation:
1. Supported by those with the power to change things

2. In aninclusive society, public engagement should be built into the decision-
making.

3. Processes of systems, funding bodies, innovators and communities
themselves to drive a series of common endeavours

Open to Experimentation:

4. Supportive of a focus on Citizen-led approaches from arts-based engagement
to the use of social media that can highlight concerns that can be missed in
institutional engagement.

Purposeful:

5. Engagement should be about shaping priorities and decisions rather than
simply a consultation to gain acceptance of the public for a new policy or
strategy

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward Pfan 2023 222



TR Mid and South Essex
. .o Integrated Care m

“I3v System Mid and South Essex

Sensible about measures of success:

6. A report is often the outcome of engagement activity. However, public
engagement can do much more than this. Just as important as the formal,
documented outcomes should be how the process itself influences
participants and leads to open and surprising discussions about societal
issues that matter to our communities

Participants - Targeted at Specific and Universal Audiences:

7. A sensitively focussed approach that includes but is not dominated by an
interested and motivated group only. Our thoughtful engagement approach
seeks to consider how we meet diverse communities and those with protected
characteristics on their terms

Beneficial for Participants:

8. Crafting an engaging experience for participants, or offering support, skills
and training that empowers participants to act as community organisers and
intermediaries between the statutory and community sector.

Methods Informed and Facilitated:

9. Ensuring our teams have skills in engagement that enable them to explore
different views, to provide information where necessary and then to use
judgement to interpret findings.

Delivery Priorities

e We will establish a Community Assembly model that aligns to system and
place through our Alliances, an Independent and Private Providers Network,
and a Community Voices Network to ensure a wider range of partners are
able to influence and contribute to achieving our shared objectives.

e We will establish a partnership-based Co-Production and Engagement
Steering Group to ensure effective planning, accountability and inclusion.

e We will create a paired leadership and learning programme for Voluntary and
Community and Social Enterprise and Clinical Leaders to support better
collaboration and growth for our people

e We will establish an influencer network to ensure we can diversify our
approach to community building and engagement.

e We will further develop our approach to Volunteerism to support system
pressures and communities themselves

e We will establish an engagement impact framework to ensure efficacy and
inclusion of our engagement approaches

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fori¥ard Plan 2023 223



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care m
¥ System Mid and South Essex

e We will develop an ongoing series of community conversations, workshops,
seminars, and engagement activities, which draw together a much wider set
of contributors into the work of our Integrated Care Partnership.

e We will grow our Community Campaign approach, to consider a digital first
approach to engagement and peer support, we will develop a Human Library
and Lived Experience network, which will ensure a better approach to
immersive practice as a system

e We will co-produce a Community Engagement Benefits framework with our
Communities to ensure equity and reciprocity for participation in our
engagement approaches.

e We will deliver a mid-point review on our Year 1 and 2 approaches to confirm
and challenge impact and efficacy.

Year 4 and 5 to be determined by Year 3

Ensuring Delivery

Senior Responsible Owner: Kirsty O’Callaghan
Clinical Lead: To be established after approval at Steering Group

The governance routes are being established re engagement steering group and
assembly - both of which are in co-production phase now. There is a draft and not
yet agreed model for the engagement steering group in development and approval of
this will be an action for completion in due course.

Delivery Plan
Delivery Plan objectives Timespan for
implementation of objectives
Community Assembly Model Agreed and From quarter one to quarter
Established four 2023/24

Co-Production and Engagement Steering Group Quarter one 2023/24
Operational

Influencer Community Builder Enabling Network Quarter two 2023/24

Established

Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise Quarter three 2023/24

Partnership and Engagement Framework Agreed

Community Conversation Cycle From quarter two 2023/24 to
second half of 2024/25

Expansion of Community Campaign Digital First From quarter one 2023/24

Programme to second half of 2024/25

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Forward #fan 2023 224



Mid and South Essex
Integrated Care
¥ System

Delivery Plan objectives

Community Engagement Benefits Framework

NHS

Mid and South Essex

Timespan for
implementation of objectives
From quarter three 2023/24
to second half of 2024/25

Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise and
Clinical Paired Leadership Programme

From first half 2024/25 to
second half of 2024/25

Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise
Referral Tool delivered

From quarter two 2023/24 to
second half of 2024/25

Efficacy Review Interdependent

2025/28

Mid and South Essex NHS Joint Fort¥ard Plan 2023

225



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 6 March 2023
	5 Southend Drugs and Alcohol Strategy 2023 - 2025: Our collective priorities for delivering the Governments 10 year drugs strategy
	Appendix 1 - Drug Alcohol Strategy

	6 A Better Start Southend Update
	8 NHS Mid and South Essex Joint Forward Plan
	Appendix 1 - Joint Forward Plan Draft
	Foreword from our Chair
	About this Document
	Part 1: The Collective Ambition of NHS Partners
	Introduction
	Our Vision
	The Scale of the Challenge
	Commitments
	Ground Rules

	Our Key Strategic Ambitions
	We have established a Chief Executive Forum spanning the Integrated Care Board, Mid & South Essex Foundation Trust, Essex Partnership University Trust, North-East London Foundation Trust and Provide Community Interest Company. The commitments outlined above have thus been agreed and recommended by the partner organisation’s respective Chief Executive Officers before being adopted by the Integrated Care Board and provider Boards.
	Over and above the commitments in the 2023/24 operational plan, and the delivery plans outlined in the appendices of this Joint Forward Plan, the Chief Executive Officers / Boards have committed to:
	Improving Quality
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Health Inequalities
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Financial Sustainability
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Operational Delivery
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Supporting our Workforce
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Let staff lead
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Population health improvement
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Digital, Data and Technology
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Mobilising and Supporting Communities
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Improving our System Oversight Framework rating
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Research and Innovation
	Why is this important
	How will we do it

	Further developing our system
	Why is this important
	How will we do it



	Part 2 – Improving population health and reducing health inequalities
	Integrated Care
	Our priority is to integrate services at every level:

	The Importance of Local Delivery
	Stewardship
	Selected highlights:
	Challenges and areas for development
	Opportunities:

	Improving Population Health
	Reducing Health Inequalities – the Core20Plus5 Frameworks
	Health Inequalities Funding
	Basildon and Brentwood Alliance
	Mid Essex Alliance
	South East Essex Alliance
	Thurrock Alliance
	Health Inequalities research

	A focus on Prevention
	Our Initial Prevention Priorities
	Cardiovascular Disease
	Healthy Weight
	Tobacco Dependency
	Innovative partnerships with industry
	Future areas of focus

	Enabling Improvements in Population Health
	Improving Operational Performance
	Supporting System Development

	Part 3 – Delivery Plans
	Appendix 1 – Local Delivery
	Basildon and Brentwood Alliance
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	Population size and demographics
	Health Inequalities
	Workforce:
	Estate:

	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambition
	Delivery priorities:
	Ensuring Delivery:
	Delivery Plan

	Thurrock Alliance
	What have our residents told us?
	Current conditions:
	Workforce
	Data quality and lack of effective business intelligence
	Estates

	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our ambitions:
	Delivery Priorities
	Developing Primary Care
	Supporting Urgent and Episodic Care
	Developing relationships between Primary and Secondary Care
	Ensuring Delivery
	Local Governance architecture in Thurrock
	Delivery Plan

	South-East Essex Alliance
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	Workforce:
	Data quality and lack of effective business intelligence:
	Estate:

	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Developing Primary Care
	Supporting Urgent and Episodic Care
	Developing relationships between Primary and Secondary Care
	Delivery Plan

	Mid Essex Alliance
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	Population size and demographics:
	Health inequalities:
	Workforce:
	Data and Information:
	Geography and Estate:

	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Health Inequalities:
	Develop primary care and build Integrated Neighbourhood Teams:
	Support Integrated Care System and national priorities:

	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Transforming Primary Care
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Digital Access to Primary Care
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	NHS Long Term Plan:
	Fuller Stocktake:

	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Developing our Community Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Challenges
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Integrate
	Innovate
	Improve

	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan


	Appendix 2 – Improving Population Health
	Population Health Improvement Board
	What have our residents told us?
	Current conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Adults focus
	Children and young people focus

	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Personalised Care
	What have residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Leadership
	Culture Development
	Supporting Strategy
	Quality Improvement

	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Population Health Management
	What have our residents told us?
	What is the current state of play/local challenges?
	What is the requirement from NHS?
	What is the ambition?
	What are the delivery priorities?
	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery?
	Delivery Plan

	Stewardship
	What have our residents told us?
	Current conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Our duty to seek advice

	Ensuring Delivery
	How will we ensure delivery

	Delivery Plan

	Innovation
	What have our residents told us?
	Current conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan


	Appendix 3 - Workforce
	Workforce
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	What is the ambition
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Clinical and Care Professional Leadership
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Nursing Quality and Safety
	What have our residents told us?
	Current conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	A shared commitment to quality:
	Population focussed:
	Coproduction with the people using the services:
	Clear and transparent decision making:
	Timely and transparent information sharing:
	Subsidiarity:

	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan


	Appendix 4 – Infrastructure
	Estates
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from NHS
	What is the ambition
	What are the delivery priorities
	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery

	Delivery Plan

	Capital Estates
	What have we heard from residents/patients
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from NHS
	What is the ambition
	What are delivery priorities
	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery

	Delivery Plan

	Sustainability
	What have we heard from residents/patients
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from NHS
	What is the ambition
	What are delivery priorities
	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery

	Delivery Plan


	Appendix 5 - Finance
	Finance
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from NHS
	What is the ambition
	What are the delivery priorities
	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery

	Delivery Plan

	Procurement
	What have we heard from residents/patients
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from NHS
	What is the ambition
	What are delivery priorities
	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery

	Delivery Plan

	Specialist Commissioning Services
	Current Issues
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our ambition
	What are the delivery priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan


	Appendix 6 – Digital, Data and Technology
	Patient Knows Best
	What have heard from our residents
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Shared Care Record
	What have we heard from our residents?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Digital – Data Quality
	Current Condition
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our ambitions
	Deliver Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Electronic Patient Record
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Digital – Strategic Data Platform
	What have we heard from our residents
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Digital – Digitising Social Care Record
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan


	Appendix 7 – Improving Operational Performance
	Maternity
	What have our residents told us?
	Current conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	MSE Long Term Plan stillbirth rate ambition
	MSE Long Term Plan neonatal mortality rate ambition

	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Elective Care (Including Choice)
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambition
	Bringing Care Closer to Home:
	Improving and Transforming Our Services:

	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Cancer Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Adult Mental Health Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Children and Young People Mental Health
	What have we heard from residents/patients
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from NHS
	What is the ambition?
	What are the delivery priorities?
	Governance
	Delivery Plan

	Neurodiversity
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery

	Delivery Plan

	Babies, Children and Young Peoples Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Reducing Pressure on Urgent and Emergency Care Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	111 Service:
	Same Day Emergency Services:
	Alternative to Emergency Department:
	Older People’s Service:
	Virtual Wards:
	Urgent Community Response Team:
	Improving Discharge:

	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring delivery
	Whole pathway responsibility:
	111 Governance:
	Same Day Emergency Care Governance:
	Alternatives to Emergency Department Governance:
	Older People Services Governance:
	Virtual ward Governance:

	UCRT Governance:
	Delivery Plan

	Respiratory Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Respiratory Virtual ward

	What are our delivery priorities?
	Governance
	Ensuring delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Outpatient Programme
	What have our residents told us?
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priority
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Diagnostics
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Bringing Care Closer to Home:

	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Stroke Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current conditions
	Across Mid and South Essex:
	Partnership working:

	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery

	Cardiac Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambition
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Cardiovascular Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambition
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Palliative and End of Life Care
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	Lack of Co-ordinated, consistent access to care:
	Reactive rather than proactive care:
	Skilled workforce:

	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Diabetes Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery

	Dermatology Services
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery

	Eye Care
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Pharmacy and Medicines Optimisation
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Musculoskeletal and Pain Service
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan


	Appendix 8 – Supporting System Development
	Building our Integrated Care System Governance
	What is the requirement from NHS
	What is the ambition
	What are the delivery priorities?
	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Victims of Abuse (including Violence Against Women and Girls)
	What have our residents told us
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from the NHS
	What is Our Ambition
	What are the delivery priorities?
	Domestic Abuse Strategy five key outcomes:
	Violence and Vulnerability Strategic Objectives
	Community Safety Partnership Objectives

	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Research in Primary Care and Community
	What have we heard from residents/patients
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from NHS
	What is the ambition
	What are the delivery priorities
	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Research in Acute Setting
	What have we heard from residents/patients
	What is the current state of play/local challenges
	What is the requirement from NHS
	What is the ambition
	What are the delivery priorities
	Governance
	How will we ensure delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental Services Delegation
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambitions
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan

	Community Resilience and Engagement
	What have our residents told us?
	Current Conditions
	What is the requirement from the NHS?
	Our Ambition
	Delivery Priorities
	Ensuring Delivery
	Delivery Plan







